
CABINET

GWYNEDD COUNCIL

DATE Tuesday, 5th November, 2019

TIME 1.00 pm

LOCATION Siambr Hywel Dda, Council Offices, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, 
LL55 1SH

CONTACT POINT Annes Siôn
01286 679490
cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET MEMBERS

Members

Dyfrig L. Siencyn Leader

Dafydd Meurig Deputy Leader, Cabinet Member for 
Adults, Health and Wellbeing

Craig ab Iago Cabinet Member for Housing

Gareth Wyn Griffith Cabinet Member for Environment

Nia Wyn Jeffreys Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Support

Dilwyn Morgan Cabinet Member for Children and 
Young People

Gareth Thomas Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development and Community

Ioan Thomas Cabinet Member for Finance

Catrin Elen Wager Cabinet Member for Highways and 
Municipal

Cemlyn Rees Williams Cabinet Member for Education

Complete Agenda



AGENDA

Item Submitted 
by

Officer Page

1  APOLOGIES

2  DECLARATION OF PERSONAL 
INTEREST

3  URGENT ITEMS

4  MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY

5  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 
15 OCTOBER 2019

3 - 9

6  YSGOL LLANAELHAEARN Cyng / Cllr 
Cemlyn 
Williams

Gwern ap 
Rhisiart

10 - 
136

7  GWYNEDD COUNCIL STAFF TRAVEL 
SAVINGS

Cyng / Cllr 
Gareth 
Griffith

Dafydd Wyn 
Williams

137 - 
141

8  NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
FRAMEWORK CONSULTATION

Cyng / Cllr 
Gareth 
Griffith

Gareth Jones 142 - 
167



THE CABINET, TUESDAY, 15 OCTOBER 2019

Present:
Councillors: Dyfrig L. Siencyn, Dafydd Meurig, Craig ab Iago, Gareth Wyn Griffith, Nia 
Wyn Jeffreys, Gareth Thomas, Catrin Wager and Cemlyn Rees Williams.

Also present-
Dilwyn Williams (Chief Executive), Iwan Evans (Head of Legal Services), Dafydd 
Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Morwena Edwards (Corporate Director) and 
Sion Owen (Democratic Services Officer). RHUN

Item 5:  Catherine Roberts (Senior Operational Officer Gwynedd and Anglesey 
Community Safety Partnership) 
Item 6: Gareth Jones (Assistant Head of Environment Department), Rebeca Jones (Joint 
Planning Policy Unit Manager)
Items 7 and 8: Ffion Madog Evans (Senior Finance Manager)
Item 11: Sioned Williams (Head of Economy and Community Department) and Nia 
Bowden (High Value Jobs Programme and Snowdonia Enterprise Zone Manager)

1. APOLOGIES

Cabinet Members and Officers were welcomed to the meeting.
Apologies were received from Councillor Dilwyn Morgan. 

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

There were no declarations of personal interest. 

3. URGENT ITEMS

There were no urgent items.

4. MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

There were no matters arising from overview and scrutiny.

5. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 SEPTEMBER 2019

The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meeting held on 17 September 
2019 as a true record, subject to the amendment of the original record as follows 
(addition in italics):

It was emphasised that Welsh Government did not identify Ysgol Abersoch as a 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



Rural School, but the Education Department would follow the School 
Organisation Code, using the same guidelines and treating the school as if it 
were.

6. BANGOR PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER

The report was submitted by Cllr Nia Jeffreys

DECISION

1) To approve the introduction of a Public Spaces Protection order (PSPO) for 
the city of Bangor for a period of three years, as per the draft Proposed Order 
attached to the report.

2) To revoke the Gwynedd Council Alcohol Consumption in Designated Public 
Places for the Areas of Caernarfon and Bangor Order 2004 (Current Order) on 
the making of the PSPO to the extent that it applies to Bangor.

3) To authorise the Head of Corporate Support to undertake the introduction of 
the Proposed Order and revocation of the Current Order.

DISCUSSION

It was noted that a report had been submitted to Cabinet on 16 July 2019 to 
approve a public consultation on the introduction of a Public Spaces Protection 
Order in a specific area of Bangor. Thorough consultation had been held with 
Local Members and the Police, as well as the public consultation. A good 
response had been received to the consultation, and the results of the 
consultation noted that a number of Bangor residents were concerned about anti-
social behaviour in the city. Following the consultation and based on Police 
evidence, it was decided to expand the area of the order. The next steps would 
be to erect signs to inform the public, and the Police would also promote the 
order. Assurance was also received that the Order would not be used to target 
homeless people in Bangor.

Observations arising from the discussion
 It was noted that it was clear that thorough work had been carried out in 

order to prepare the Order. 
 Groups that worked to promote the City were very supportive of the work, 

and saw its need as part of the jig-saw of Bangor's thriving development.

7. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT

The report was submitted by Cllr Gareth Griffith 

DECISION

Page 4



1) To accept the Final Annual Monitoring Report in Appendix 1 for submission 
to the Welsh Government by 31 October 2019.

2) To give permission to the Assistant Head of Environment Department to 
undertake any editorial and typographical changes to the Annual Monitoring 
Report before submitting to the Welsh Government.

3) To give permission to the Assistant Head of Environment Department in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member to undertake any amendments, which 
arise from matters raised by Isle of Anglesey County Council

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted, noting that this was the first monitoring report for the 
Joint Local Development Plan, reporting on the period between August 2017 and 
the end of March 2019. The report had already been submitted to the 
Communities Scrutiny Committee and the Joint Planning Policy Committee, and 
it had also been presented at workshops for Members. It had not yet been 
submitted to the Anglesey County Council Scrutiny Committee or Executive.

It was noted that the report was part of creating an evidence base in order to 
review the Plan in due course, reporting on 69 performance indicators whilst 
setting a baseline for them. It was required to review the Plan every four years; 
however, before reviewing the Plan, a minimum of three monitoring reports would 
need to be published. It was added that the Plan's local market housing policy 
was pioneering as the only one of its kind in Wales.

In relation to Wylfa, it was noted that the best course of action for the time being 
would be to exercise discretion until the situation settled. It was also emphasised 
that the policies in the Plan were robust, and that as part of planning applications, 
developers were required to prove the need for developments. 

8. REVENUE BUDGET 2019/20 - END OF AUGUST REVIEW

Presented by Cllr Ioan Thomas

DECISION

To accept the report on the end of August 2019 review of the Revenue Budget, 
and:  

1) Note that there is a significant overspend by the Adults, Health and Well-
being Department this year, and as complex details need to be clarified in 
this picture in Adults care, the Chief Executive has already called a meeting 
of the relevant officers to gain a better understanding and a clear response 
programme, as is the case in Child care.

2) Ask the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People, together with the 
Head of Children and Families Department, to get to the root of the 
Department's overspend and take steps to bring the situation within control 

Page 5



and within budget by the end of the financial year and report to the Cabinet 
on their response plan. 

3) Allow the Environment Department to earmark (£220k) of the department's 
underspend following a recent judicial review of a capital scheme relating to 
the Llanbedr access Road, due to reasons beyond the Council's control, by 
putting it into a specific fund for this purpose. 

4) On Corporate budgets, transfer:  
- (£240k) relating to capital costs to the capital programme’s financing 

fund. 
- (£995k) relating to repair and maintenance to the repair and 

maintenance fund. 
- net underspend of (£1,632k) on Corporate Budgets to the Supporting 

the Financial Strategy Fund to mitigate the risk of overspending of 
Council departments in 2019/20. 

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted, noting that it presented the end of August review for 
the Council's revenue budget. The review showed a mixed picture and reported 
an acceptable level of financial management by a number of the Council’s 
departments. However, the pressures on some of the departments was 
highlighted following savings to the tune of £32 million since 2015 coupled with 
an increase in the demand for services.

Due to the scale of overspend anticipated in the Children (£2.9 million) and 
Adults (£1.6 million) departments, it was concluded that there was a need to get 
to the root of their inability to keep within their budgets. It was noted that the 
demand was higher than expected for the services of both departments, and the 
Adults department had also failed to realise nearly a million pounds in savings. In 
order to attempt to bring the situation under control, the Chief Executive had 
already held meetings with the departments in order to start this work, with the 
intention of reporting back to the Cabinet in due course. 

It was added that the Highways and Municipal Department had overspent by 
approximately £733k. However, it did not cause such concern as it included costs 
that would come under control in changing collection arrangements in the Waste 
field.

It was prudent to transfer the funds available due to the underspend on 
Corporate budgets in order to mitigate the risk of overspending of Council 
departments in 2019/20.

Observations arising from the discussion
 Concern was noted about the level of overspend in the Children and 

Adults departments, noting that this was not unique to Gwynedd and it 
was the result of years of austerity and financial squeeze.

 Concern was noted that the increase in demand was unexpectedly high in 
the care sector. 

Page 6



 It was noted that there was a clear message for Welsh Government here, 
following the prioritisation of the Health Service in 2019/20. The Council 
needed a better settlement in order to cope with the impact of inflation and 
increase in demand.

 Although the Council has been able to cope with the savings and 
increased demand in previous years this was not sustainable and there 
was no certainty that the Welsh government appreciated that.

9. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20 - END OF AUGUST REVIEW 

Presented by Cllr Ioan Thomas

DECISION

To accept the report on the end of August 2019 review of the capital programme, 
and approve the revised financing worth £17.85 million, namely:

      Use of £8.304 million of various sources to fund actual slippages from 
      2018/19

      Increase of 
£5.936 million in the use of borrowing 
£3.411 million in the use of grants and contributions
£82k in the use of capital receipts
£154k in the use of renewal funds and others

       Reduction of £37k in the use of revenue contributions

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted, noting that it presented the end of August review (position 
as at 31 August 2019) for the Council's capital programme as part of the procedure 
for reviewing the 2019/20 budget. 

It was necessary to ensure appropriate financing arrangements for the Council’s plans to 
spend on capital, and the Cabinet was required to approve the capital programme and its 
sources of funding. The Council was in a position to be able to invest £39.7million in 
capital in 2019/20, with 17.9million of it deriving from grants

Although incorporating funding via grant was a point of order, it was also necessary to 
deal with situations where there had been a change in expenditure profiles between 
years and a change in the value of capital receipts and contributions. 

10. THE CABINET’S FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

Presented by Cllr Dyfrig Siencyn for information.

Page 7



11. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

Presented by Cllr Dyfrig Siencyn

DECISION

It is resolved that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during the 
discussion on the item following due to the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in Paragraph 14 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information)

There is an acknowledged public interest in openness in relation to the use of 
public resources and related financial issues. It is acknowledged however that 
there are occasions, in order to protect the financial interests of public authorities 
that matters related to commercial information need to be discussed without 
being publicised. The report relates specifically to contracting with a commercial 
company in relation to grant funded projects. The nature of the information is 
sensitive to the company and its publication could affect their commercial 
interests. The publication of commercially sensitive materials of this kind could 
also undermine the confidence of grant applicants to approach the Council. This 
would undermine the public interest of allowing frank and thorough discussions 
with applicants for financial support. For these reasons the balance lies with 
considering the matter as an exempt item.

12. CONTRACT WITH SNOWDONIA AEROSPACE LLP TO DELIVER THE 
INFRASTRUCTURE SCHEME AT LLANBEDR AEROSPACE CENTRE

The item was presented by Cllr Gareth Thomas.

DECISION

1) Based on the report, risk assessment and expert advice received, to authorise 
the delivery of the Infrastructure scheme at Snowdonia Aerospace Centre, 
Llanbedr.

2) To authorise the Head of Economy and Community Department, in 
consultation with the Head of Finance Department and the Head of Legal 
Services, to negotiate and sign a contract with Snowdonia Aerospace LLP 
which will protect the Council's interests as far as possible, including restriction 
for civil use of the centre only.

3) That the contract secures the civil use of the development by including a 
clause that will prohibit the military use of the buildings improved via the 
European funds project.

DISCUSSION

Page 8



It was noted that a complete funding package was now in place for the 
Snowdonia Aerospace Centre Infrastructure scheme, including £7.5M of 
European funding. It was emphasised that the funding package was for the 
development of buildings for the Centre.

Gwynedd Council was the accountable body for the European funding; however, 
the leaseholders / operators of Snowdonia Aerospace Centre - Snowdonia 
Aerospace LLP - would be responsible for the work to be undertaken on the 
Llanbedr airfield site.

As far as possible, the Council's interests needed to be secured by establishing a 
legal contract with Snowdonia Aerospace LLP which reflected and responded to 
the risks to the Council stemming from delivering the scheme, including 
restricting the use of the centre to civil use only.

The meeting commenced at 1.00pm and concluded at 2.15pm. 

CHAIR

Page 9



 

1 
 

MEETING Gwynedd Council Cabinet 

DATE 5 November 2019 

CABINET MEMBER Councillor Cemlyn Rees Williams 

OFFICER Gwern ap Rhisiart 

TITLE OF ITEM Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

 

1. THE DECISION SOUGHT 
The permission of the Council Cabinet is sought to begin a period of statutory consultation in accordance with 
the requirements of section 48 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 on the proposed 
proposal to close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn on 31 August 2020 and to provide places for pupils at Ysgol Bro Plenydd, 
Y Ffôr, on 1 September 2020.  

2. THE REASON FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION 

2.1. The reason for seeking permission to consult on the basis of the preferred proposal is the need to address the 
vulnerable position of the school. There has been a significant fall in numbers recently which has led to a 
critical situation with eight pupils on the roll in the September 2019 census, with projections indicating that 
there will be a further fall to five pupils on the roll by 2021. The eight pupils are taught in two classes - one 
class of three and one class of five pupils. 

3. BACKGROUND  

3.1. Recent Developments 

3.1.1. Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is located in the centre of the village of Llanaelhaearn between Pwllheli and 
Caernarfon. Pupil numbers at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn have been falling over recent years, and this has 
led to the critical situation of only eight pupils on the register.  

3.1.2. At the Cabinet meeting on 4 June 2019, the Cabinet’s decision was ‘to grant permission to the 
Education Department to hold formal meetings with the governing body and other relevant 
stakeholders to discuss a range of potential options for the school’s future’.  

 
3.1.3. Three meetings were held between June and October 2019. During the initial meeting, the Governing 

Body and other relevant stakeholders presented ideas for possible options to resolve the key 
challenges facing the school. Following a detailed assessment of these options, a second local 
meeting was held, in which the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats for these options 
were outlined, with input provided by the Governing Body and stake-holders. This information was 
used to weigh up the options on the basis of whether they addressed the challenges facing the 
school. A third local meeting was then held to present these options.   

 
3.2. The Strategic Context 
 
 3.2.1. At its meeting on 18 December 2018, the Cabinet approved the principles of a 'Fit for Purpose 

Education System', as the foundation for delivering the Education Department’s vision and 
developing a system to ensure high quality education for the children and young people of Gwynedd 
for the twenty first century. This would specifically be achieved through rationalising the age ranges 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



 

2 
 

in classes and providing head-teachers with the opportunity to focus on leadership issues in primary 
schools.  

 
 3.2.2. The Council has implemented the 'Excellent Primary Education for the Children of Gwynedd Strategy' 

since its adoption in April 2009. This strategy notes factors which support the process for reviewing 
catchment areas or specific situations. The details relating to these factors appear later in the report 
(Part 5 - Options Appraisal). 

 
4. THE CURRENT SITUATION AT YSGOL LLANAELHAEARN  

4.1. Pupil numbers at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn have fallen in recent years. There has been a substantial drop in numbers 
since 2013, as seen in the graph below. Although the school has a capacity of 47 (Reception to Year 6) and six 
nursery places, since 1980, the highest number on the school register was 42 pupils in 2012. Since then, 
numbers have fallen with eight pupils attending the school in September 2019. 

  
 

 
4.2. As a result of the current low numbers, the school is in a vulnerable position and under increasing budgetary 

pressures, specifically: 
i. School numbers are concerning. In September 2019, eight pupils were registered at the school. 

ii. The classroom sizes are small - with one class of three pupils and one class of five.  
iii. Projections indicate seven pupils in 2020, five pupils in 2021, and five pupils in 2022.  
iv. Number of surplus places - 83% surplus places (39 Reception to Year 6, and six surplus places in 

Nursery).  
v. Ysgol Llanaelhaearn receives an additional sum to the usual allocation via the minimum staffing 

protection policy. This additional sum during the 2019/20 financial year was £43,774. This will only 
enable the employment of a head-teacher and assistant in the future.  

vi. The per pupil cost for Ysgol Llanaelhaearn during the 2019/20 financial year is £12,671 (based on 
September 2018 numbers, i.e. 11 pupils), compared with the county-wide average per pupil cost of 
£3,884 for the same period.  

vii. 2018 data shows that 39 children live in the Llanaelhaearn catchment area, 28 of whom attend other 
schools. 
 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn Pupil Numbers 
2005-2019

Reception - Year 6 Numbers Nursery - Year 6 Numbers

Page 11



 

3 
 

5. OPTIONS APPRAISAL  

5.1. During the local meetings several possible models were proposed and discussed, specifically:  

i. Do nothing (maintain the status quo) 
ii. Change the staffing structure 

iii. Establish an Early Years Observation unit at the school 
iv. Formally federate with another school or other schools 
v. The Authority to guarantee that the school remains open for five years to provide an opportunity to 

increase numbers. 
vi. Establish a childcare club on the site of the school 

vii. A community café at the school 
viii. Close the school, with pupils being educated at an alternative school. 

Appendix A contains an appraisal of these options.  

5.2. In line with the 'Excellent Primary Education for the Children of Gwynedd' Strategy, many factors were 
considered in appraising the options for the situation, specifically: 

i. Classroom Sizes 
ii. Pupil Numbers 

iii. Leadership and Staffing 
iv. The Community 
v. Financial Resources 

vi. The Welsh Language 
vii. Geographical Factors 

5.3. During the Options Appraisal, the Governing Body and other relevant stakeholders provided input and 
comments. 

5.4. It should be noted that the option described above in 5.1 (v) was proposed by the Governing Body in view of 
their concern that a meeting with Education Officers, parents and School Governors during July 2016 resulted 
in a significant reduction in pupil numbers. It was alleged that comments from Education Officers had led to 
parents deciding to move their children to nearby schools. 

The Governing Body invited the Education Officers to the meeting as the School did not have a headteacher in 
place for the following September. This represented the severity of the situation at the time as a school cannot 
open without a Headteacher. In accordance with normal practice, the Department advertised the 
Headteacher's post twice externally, and twice internally. However, there were no suitable candidates. This 
was the context for the meeting. At the end of the meeting, a number of parents made enquiries with the 
Education Officers about the procedure to transfer children to other schools. Officers informed them in 
accordance with the usual procedure. 

Numbers have fallen steadily since 2012. Numbers decreased from 42 in 2012 to 26 July 2016 and fell further 
to 20 by September 2016. Therefore the fall in pupil numbers cannot be related to alleged comments from 
Education Officers at the end of one meeting. Rather, the meeting highlighted the critical situation of the 
School at that time and as a result many parents may have chosen to move their children as there was no 
Headteacher in post for September 2016. The Authority has been working with the Governors since 2016 to 
support and maintain the School. 

It is also important to note that the Authority is unable to commit to not taking any action in respect of the 
school for 5 years. This would represent an unlawful fettering of its statutory rights. 

Page 12



 

4 
 

5.5. Following the appraisal, two options emerged as being the most viable and realistic to address the school’s 
situation: 

i. Formally federate with a nearby school or schools  
ii. Close the school, with pupils being educated at an alternative school. 

This report details and elaborates on the school's vulnerable situation and the need to take further steps to 
address this. Whilst the option of maintaining the current situation has been considered, we are not of the 
opinion that it would address the issues that need attention. 

5.6.      Several of the other options made better use of the building, such as establishing an Early Years Observation 
Unit, Opening a Café or a Child Care club. Nevertheless, these options were not considered to be ones that 
would resolve the key challenges facing the school when appraised against the factors noted above in 5.2 (A 
full assessment is provided in Appendix A).  

IMPACT ASSESSMENTS - ASSUMPTION AGAINST CLOSING RURAL SCHOOLS 

5.7. The Schools Organisation Code 011/2018 has introduced new, special arrangements in relation to rural 
schools, establishing a procedural presumption against closure. This does not mean that a rural school will 
never close but that the case for closure must be strong, and that all other viable options have been 
conscientiously considered. Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is designated a 'rural school' for the purpose of the Code. This 
means that a more detailed set of procedures and requirements must be followed when formulating a closure 
proposal.  

5.8. In addition to the factors relevant to the development of any proposal, specific assessments must also be 
carried out in relation to a proposed proposal of this kind. Several assessments were conducted in line with 
the requirements of the Code for the options considered to address the school situation. As noted above, 
these options were to federate or close the school.  

5.9. An Assessment of the Likely Impact on the Quality and Standard of Education (Appendix B) 

5.9.1. The Assessment of the Likely Impact on the Quality and Standard of Education demonstrates that 
forming a federation would not necessarily have an effect on the school’s current situation in the 
short term due to an existing informal collaboration arrangement with another school which would 
be likely to be continued under a formal federal model arrangement.  

5.9.2. According to the most recent Estyn reports, Ysgol Bro Plenydd would offer education of equal if not 
better quality than Ysgol Llanaelhaearn.  

5.9.3. Ysgol Llanaelhaearn was last inspected in April 2015. The inspection concluded that the school's 
performance was adequate with expectations for improvement. It is acknowledged that the school, 
since the time of the inspection, has been on an improvement journey under the leadership of 
several different head-teachers.  

 
5.9.4. In 2019, the school was placed in the Welsh Government's 'yellow' category in terms of support and 

the school's ability to improve.  
 

5.9.5. Ysgol Bro Plenydd was last inspected in February 2015. The inspection concluded that the school's 
current performance was good.  

 
5.9.6. In 2019, the school was placed in the Welsh Government's green category in terms of support and 

the school's ability to improve.  
 

Page 13



 

5 
 

5.9.7. The alternative school offers education of at least equal standard, and provides pupils with more 
opportunities for collaborating and socialising with their peers, and enables the pupils to gain a range 
of curricular and extracurricular experiences. Further relevant information is available in Appendix 
B. 

 
5.9.8. Due to the existing low pupil to teacher ratio at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, the children are making good 

progress.  
 

5.9.9. Delivering this proposal would give pupils opportunities to be educated in peer groups with a far 
smaller age range and would provide daily opportunities to improve the pupils' educational and 
social experience.  

 
5.9.10. The needs of any vulnerable groups, including children with additional learning needs, would be 

assessed and implemented in line with the Authority's policy and procedures.  
 

5.10. Assessment of the likely impact on different transport arrangements 

5.10.1. The Assessment of the likely impact on different travelling arrangements demonstrates that 
introducing a federal model would not have an effect on travelling arrangements for the pupils. They 
currently visit Ysgol Chwilog on a weekly basis using Ysgol Llanaelhaearn’s minibus, and it is 
anticipated that this would continue under a formal federal model, by either federating with Ysgol 
Chwilog, or another local school.  

5.10.2. The option to close the school would result in pupils from Ysgol Llanaelhaearn travelling farther to 
school every day. As the alternative school is more than two miles from their homes, they would 
have the right to free transport to the alternative school. Ysgol Bro Plenydd, is 3.6 miles from Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn, and it is anticipated that the journey would take five minutes each way in a car or by 
bus. This is deemed to be within the reasonable distance that primary pupils are expected to travel 
to school in line with the 'Excellent Primary Education for the Children of Gwynedd Strategy' of 30 
minutes each way.  

5.10.3. Transport to the alternative school would be offered in line with Gwynedd Council transport policy.   

5.10.4.  Appendix B contains an assessment of the likely impact on transport arrangements.  

5.11. Assessment of the likely impact on the community 

5.11.1. An Assessment of the likely impact on the community was carried out which concluded that 
federating with another school would not have an impact on the community, due to the continuation 
of the school’s presence and activities in the community, as in the current situation.  

5.11.2. Implementing the proposal to close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and educating the pupils at Ysgol Bro 
Plenydd, Y Ffôr, would have some negative impact on the Llanaelhaearn community. Although the 
school building is not used by the community, the school uses the local community centre, Canolfan 
y Babell. However, in 2018, seven pupils living in the Ysgol Llanaelhaearn catchment area attended 
Ysgol Bro Plenydd. Therefore, a link already exists between the school and the wider area.  

5.11.3. To mitigate the impact, community collaboration between Ysgol Bro Plenydd and the community of 
Llanaelhaearn will be encouraged, where appropriate.     

 

 

Page 14



 

6 
 

5.12. Other Options  

5.12.1. The Schools Organisation Code 011/2018 notes examples of possible options that may be worthwhile 
considering in such circumstances, and these examples were considered in addition to the options 
in Section 5 of this report, with comments included below: 

i. Clustering, collaboration with other schools: Ysgol Llanaelhaearn already collaborates with 
Ysgol Chwilog through arrangement made by the Head-teacher.  

ii. Using the school as a community centre to hold and support a range of community services: 
the assessment of the probable impact on the community shows that a range of community 
facilities already exist in Llanaelhaearn. Furthermore, the building is not suitable for such use 
without modification. 

iii. Co-locate local services within the school to counter maintenance costs: there is no demand 
for a space in the area as other sites have available rental space.  

iv. Consider establishing schools on more than one site in order to retain buildings: Only Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn is under consideration in this review, due to the critical situation rendered by 
the low numbers.  

REASONABLE OPTIONS TO CONSIDER FOR THE SCHOOL 

5.13. Formally federate with a nearby school or schools. 

 5.13.1.  The Code states that to federate brings particular benefits to rural schools and notes that the 
proposer must therefore demonstrate how federation has been considered as an option. It has been 
demonstrated that federating can offer advantages to rural schools in some situations, specifically 
by strengthening leadership and opportunities for collaboration.  

5.13.2. Under a formal federal model, Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would collaborate with another school or other 
schools in the locality under one head-teacher (or more) and one governing body. The governing 
bodies of the individual schools would be dissolved and one new governing body would be 
established for the federation. The identity of the school in question (including name, ethos, and 
uniform) could be retained or changed to reflect the new federation. The federated model allows for 
the possibility of sharing staff, resources, IT, buildings and expertise.  

5.13.3. However, this option did not address the key challenges facing the school. Numbers at the school 
would remain low, and classroom sizes would also remain small. Further details are provided in 
Appendices A and Ch.  

5.13.4.  The possibility of federating with a range of nearby schools, specifically Yr Eifl, Bro Plenydd, Llangybi, 
Pentreuchaf and Chwilog was considered.   

5.13.5. Since numbers at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn had reached a critical point with eight pupils on the register, 
the assessment of federation demonstrates that there would be no clear advantages to other schools 
from federating with Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

5.13.6. There was no clear evidence that a formal federation would lead to an increase in numbers.  

5.13.7. It was therefore considered that this was not the best option for the situation. 

5.14. Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, with pupils being educated at an alternative school.   

5.14.1. This model means closing Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and moving the pupils to be educated at Ysgol Bro 
Plenydd, Y Ffôr. This proposal is discussed further in the report.  

Page 15



 

7 
 

5.14.2. It was considered that Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Y Ffôr would be named as the 'alternative school' for 
several reasons, specifically: 

i. The closest school, geographically, to the school and centre of Llanaelhaearn village is Ysgol 
yr Eifl, Trefor, which is full. This school would not be able to accept eight additional pupils. 

ii. Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Y Ffôr, is the next closest school geographically. 
iii. The road to Ysgol Bro Plenydd from Llanaelhaearn village is convenient and has public 

transport links. The journey to other nearby primary schools would not be as easy from 
Llanaelhaearn. Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Y Ffôr, is 3.6 miles from Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and is more 
than two miles from all the houses in the Llanaelhaearn catchment. 

iv. Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Y Ffôr could accept with additional pupils. It currently has 30 surplus places, 
including nursery (September 2019 census). 

5.14.3. Therefore, it is proposed that the Bro Plenydd school catchment area be extended to include the 
catchment of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn in future.    

6. THE PREFERRED OPTION 

Of the models considered, the preferred option for further consultation is the model of closing Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn and transferring the pupils to Ysgol Bro Plenydd in Y Ffôr. This option is preferred for the 
following reasons:  

6.1.     Class sizes 

6.1.1. Ysgol Llanaelhaearn only has two classes. One class has three pupils and one class has five pupils. 
The average size of classes at Ysgol Bro Plenydd is 23. Transferring to Bro Plenydd would mean that 
the children are educated in more appropriately sized classes and with peers.  

6.2.      Pupil Numbers  
 

6.2.1. The latest projections, based on the September 2019 census, shows that numbers at Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn will have fallen to five by September 2022, as the table below shows:  

 
Table 1 - Number projections for Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

 N R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total  
September 2019 0 0 3 0 2 0 2 1 8 
September 2020 Projection 0 0 0 3 0 2 0 2 7 
September 2021 Projection 0 0 0 0 3 0 2 0 5 
September 2022 Projection 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 2 5 

 
6.2.2.  Ysgol Llanaelhaearn has 39 (83%) surplus places (Reception - Year 6). There are 23 (25%) surplus 

places at Ysgol Bro Plenydd. By including the Nursery capacity and numbers for both schools, Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn has 45 (85%) surplus places and Ysgol Bro Plenydd has 30 (29%) surplus places. 

 
6.2.3. 68 pupils (Reception-Year 6) and 6 Nursery pupils attend Ysgol Bro Plenydd at present. Projections 

for Ysgol Bro Plenydd show that there will be 65 pupils (Reception-year 6) and nine Nursery age 
pupils at the school in September 2022. Numbers at Ysgol Bro Plenydd are more secure and 
sustainable for the future. 

 
6.2.4. With 23 surplus places (and seven surplus places for Nursery), Ysgol Bro Plenydd has sufficient 

capacity for the number of pupils from both schools currently and for the next three years.  
 

Page 16



 

8 
 

6.2.5. Currently, with a capacity of 492, there are 170 (35%) surplus places in the area (at Ysgolion 
Llanaelhaearn, yr Eifl, Bro Plenydd, Llangybi, Pentreuchaf and Chwilog). Implementing this proposal 
would reduce the number of surplus places in the area to 117 (27%).  

 
6.3. Leadership and staffing 

 
6.3.1. Ysgol Llanaelhaearn employs one full time primary teacher and a full time assistant. Up to four days 

a week, the primary teacher assumes the role of site manager and receives a management 
allowance.  

  
6.3.2. Over the past four years, Ysgol Llanaelhaearn has had three different head-teachers, two led other 

schools, and one was a retired head-teacher. Before this, the school had a full-time head-teacher.  
  

6.3.3. In 2017/18, Ysgol Llanaelhaearn shared its head-teacher with Ysgol Garndolbenmaen. From 
September onwards, the head-teacher has agreed to act as head-teacher for Ysgol Chwilog as well. 
Therefore, Ysgol Llanaelhaearn shares its head-teacher with two other primary schools - the only 
example of one head-teacher for three schools in Gwynedd. The head-teacher spends one day a 
week leading Ysgol Llanaelhaearn.   

 
6.3.4. In addition to a head-teacher, Ysgol Bro Plenydd has two teachers and four assistants.  

 
6.4. Financial Resources  

 
6.4.1  A total of £431,000 is allocated for both schools for the 2019/2020 financial year. The cost per pupil 

between schools ranges between: £12,671 at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and £4,118 at Ysgol Bro Plenydd. 
The average county-wide cost per pupil during this period is £3,884.  
 

School 2019/20 Allocation Cost per pupil (based on 
September 2018 numbers) 

Minimum staffing protection 
allocation policy 

Llanaelhaearn £139,000 £12,671 (11 pupils) £43,744 
Bro Plenydd £292,000 £4,118 (66 pupils) - 

 
6.4.2. Ysgol Llanaelhaearn received a contribution of £43,744 this year via the minimum staffing protection 

policy. This guarantees a head-teacher and assistant (at schools with fewer than 15 children). The 
school's current staffing structure, which consists of a teacher, an assistant and a shared head-
teacher, means that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, without making any changes, would face a financial 
shortfall based on the current numbers and future projections.  

 
6.4.3. It is anticipated that savings of £100,518 per year would be made from closing Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

and educating the existing pupils at Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Y Ffôr. It is estimated that transportation 
costs for the eight pupils would be approximately £11,400. The proposed net saving, given 
transportation costs, would be approximately £89,118. If all the children in the catchment required 
transportation in future, transportation costs would increase to approximately £25,000 and the likely 
proposed net saving would be £75,518 a year.   

 
6.4.4.  Any savings in revenue costs would be utilised to benefit Gwynedd schools.     

 
6.5. Learning Environment  
 

6.5.1. Ysgol Bro Plenydd has capacity for its existing pupils, and the building is of a higher standard than 
Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. The most recent condition assessment by the Property Department states that 
Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is within the 'B' category for school condition, whilst Ysgol Bro Plenydd is in 'A'.  

Page 17



 

9 
 

 
6.5.2.  Both schools are community schools and provide Welsh medium education. 

 
6.6. The Community:  
 

6.6.1. The Schools Organisation Code 011/2018 states that a community impact assessment must be held 
as part of any proposal for schools restructuring. A community impact assessment was completed 
on the reasonable options to address the key challenges facing the school. 

 
6.6.2. The assessment of the probable impact on the community is included in Appendix B.  

 
6.6.3. The assessment of the probable impact on the community states that there would be some negative 

impact from closing the school. It notes, however, that seven pupils who live in the Llanaelhaearn 
catchment area currently attend Ysgol Bro Plenydd. Therefore, a link between the school and the 
wider area already exists.   

 
6.6.4. The community assessment notes that the school is involved with the Llanaelhaearn community, 

even though the community does not currently use the school building. Discussions will be held 
about the potential of including the community of Llanaelhaearn in the community activities of Ysgol 
Bro Plenydd.  

 
6.7. The Welsh Language 
 

6.7.1. The Schools Organisation Code 011/2018 states that a Welsh language impact assessment must be 
held as part of any proposal for school restructuring. This assessment is seen in Appendix B.  

 
6.7.2. The Language Impact Assessment (Appendix B) does not anticipate a negative impact on the Welsh 

language from the proposal, mainly because: 
i. The alternative school provides a Welsh medium education, also provided for pupils at Ysgol 

Llanaelhaearn. 
ii. Statistics from the 2011 census for the Llanaelhaearn ward indicates that 74% of the population 

is Welsh speaking, and 80% of the population of Abererch speaks Welsh.  
iii. PLASC January 2019 statistics show that 54% of pupils at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn speak Welsh 

fluently at home compared to 83% of pupils at Ysgol Bro Plenydd do so.  
 
6.8. Geographical Factors 
 

6.8.1. By closing Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and transferring pupils to Ysgol Bro Plenydd, it is not anticipated that 
any pupil would need to travel an unreasonable distance to an educational setting, that is, more than 
30 minutes one way, in line with the 'Excellent Primary Education for the Children of Gwynedd 
Strategy'.  

 
6.8.2. It is not anticipated that travelling to school will add more than five minutes in one direction to the 

learners' current travel time.  
 

6.8.3. Transport will be provided in line with the County's School Transport Policy.  
 

 

 

Page 18



 

10 
 

7.    IMPLICATIONS OF THE PROPOSAL  

7.1. Schools admissions catchment areas  

7.1.1. In light of the preferred option, Ysgol Bro Plenydd’s catchment will include its own current catchment 
area and the current catchment area of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

Map 1: Current situation of the area's catchments 

  

Map 2: Ysgol Bro Plenydd catchment area if changes take place 

 

7.2. Transport 

 7.2.1. As noted above in 6.8, if the preferred option is implemented, pupils living in the Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 
catchment area will be provided transport in line with Gwynedd Council Transport Policy.  

Page 19



 

11 
 

7.3 Staffing considerations  

7.3.1. Should the proposal be approved, staffing implications could lead to redundancies. There will be 
specific consultation with staff and Union representatives as part of the statutory consultation 
period. Gwynedd Council has developed a detailed staffing policy, jointly with Trades Unions and 
head-teachers. Any redundancies resulting from this proposal will have to comply with that policy. 
Clear and open communication will play a fundamental part in the implication of any proposals.  

8. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

8.1. The Schools Organisation Code 011/2018 
 

8.1.1.  Any process will be conducted in accordance with Welsh Government Guidelines (The Schools 
Organisation Code 011/2018). 

8.2. Equality 

8.2.1. Policies and procedures are in place to ensure that the proposal considers and complies with equal 
rights.  

8.2.2. An equality assessment was held on the options, which focused on different elements of equality 
such as race, sex, disability, language, religion or creed, and age.  

8.2.3. The equality assessment stated the importance of positively promoting equal opportunities in light 
of the proposal, and that measures should be in place to ensure unlawful discrimination and 
harassment does not occur. Arrangements are also in place to monitor and review the situation.  

8.2.4. The Equality Assessment is provided in Appendix B. 

8.3. Recent discussions about the need for housing for local people in the Llanaelhaearn area.  

 8.3.1. It was brought to our attention that an open afternoon was will be held on 23 October 2019 at 
Canolfan y Babell which aimed to identify whether there was a need for open market housing, 
affordable housing and/or social housing for local people in the Llanaelhaearn area. It was arranged 
by the Rural Housing Facilitator.  

 8.3.2. Subject to receipt of formal planning permissions, there is a possibility that 15 houses could be 
constructed on a proposed site (details included in Appendix C). 

 8.3.3. Should 15 houses be constructed in the future, in line with the planning guidance formula (Housing 
Developments and Educational Provision), this could lead to approximately 6 (15x0.4) children of 
primary school age in the proposed estate. Therefore, it could be anticipated that approximately six 
children could attend Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, or another local school, subject to parental choice if the 
proposal were to proceed.  

 8.3.4. If an additional six pupils were to attend Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, the numbers would increase to 14 (or 
13 from September 2020) and the school would continue to be in a critical situation as a result of 
low pupil numbers.  

8.4. The Well-being of Future Generations Act  

8.4.1. A well-being assessment was carried out which gave consideration to Gwynedd Council's well-being 
aims.  

8.4.2. The Education Department has a role in promoting the well-being objectives of the Act amongst 
pupils in the county through its activities and projects. The Act sets a duty on public bodies in Wales 
to improve economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being. As part of the duty, the Council 

Page 20



 

12 
 

has published well-being objectives that outline the way it will improve well-being in the "2018-23 
Gwynedd Plan".   

8.4.3. Following consideration and an assessment in line with the requirements of the Well-being Act, it is 
concluded that the proposal meets the 7 well-being goals of the Act, together with the Council's well-
being objectives. This proposal will allow us to respond to and address the children's needs today, 
and strengthen their future well-being. The proposal will ensure that the children of the area are 
educated on a suitable site and in a naturally Welsh-speaking community, thus increasing the 
opportunities to socialise and collaborate with others, and to give them the opportunity to thrive 
among their peers.  

8.4.4. The Well-being Assessment is included in Appendix B.  

 
9.   NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE 

 
9.1. Should the Cabinet decide to proceed with this report’s recommendation, a period of statutory consultation 

must take place in line with the School Standards and Organisation Act (2013) and Schools Organisation Code 
011/2018. It is anticipated that this will be held in coming weeks. 

 
9.2. A further report will then be presented to Cabinet to report on the result of the statutory consultation period. 

The Cabinet will then be required to evaluate the consultation and, subject to the Cabinet's opinion at that 
time, decide whether or not to issue a Statutory Notice. If a Statutory Notice is published, there will be a period 
of one month for anyone to object to the proposal, known as the 'Objection Period'. Following that period a 
further report will be submitted to Cabinet for a final decision. That report will include a summary of any 
objections received and responses. 

 
10.  VIEWS OF THE STATUTORY OFFICERS 

 
Monitoring Officer: 
The contents of this report has been the subject of legal advice by the Legal Service.  

No further comments regarding propriety. 

 
Head of Finance Department: 
There are obvious reasons (including financial ones) supporting the proposal to close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. I confirm 
that the financial figures in sections 4.2 and 6.4 of the report and in part 6 of Appendix A are either true accurate costs, 
or fair estimates (where appropriate). Establishing the new arrangements (closing Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, and providing 
pupil places at Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Y Ffor) would save £100,518 less additional transport needs (currently estimated at 
around £25,000), resulting in annual net savings of approximately £75,518 (as noted in clause 6.4.3 of the report). 

 
Local Member: 
I am concerned and disappointed by the situation that exists at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, a school that provides a very high 
standard of education for children in the catchment area. 

I accept that the number of pupils on the register has fallen to a very concerning level, and therefore the cost of 
providing the education is higher than the County’s average. 

As has already been said, there are a number of factors that have led to the current situation. As stated by the Chair 
of Governors at the meetings held in the Village, and in a letter to the Education Department on the 15th September, 
one of the main things that has led to a 60% drop in the number of children over the last 3 years is comments made 
at a meeting in the School during July 2016 by Officers from the Education Department regarding the future of the 

Page 21



 

13 
 

School at that time. Following these comments a number of parents removed their children from the school. Indeed, 
it must be said that many of those on the School's governing body moved their children to other schools following the 
comments made by the officials at that meeting. This was undoubtedly the main 'catalyst' for a decline in the number 
of children over the last period. I believe the letter from the Chair is in your file. A warrant that the School be open for 
5 years was requested in an attempt to recover the numbers and raise the confidence of parents to send their children 
to the school. The application was refused. 

The governors felt that it was important that the Cabinet Members had the facts and complete background before 
deciding on the future of the school so they have asked me to include the comments in my provision for you. 

As I have already stated, Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is a small, happy school and provides the children with an extremely good 
education. Recent reports confirm this. 

It will be a very sad day if the school closes, and I think it would have a long-term impact on the attempt to regenerate 
and develop the community, attracting new families (with children) to live in the village. As you will be aware from the 
reports attached to this application, there is a plan to seek the development of 15 new social housing in the Village. It 
is likely that the closure of the school would influence the decision of some prospective families. 

I trust that the statutory consultation will be fair and thorough and I hope that there will be some way to save the 
small school of Llanaelhaearn. 

 
Appendices: 

Appendix A:  Comparison of the characteristics of the models against the strategy’s factors.   

Appendix B:  Impact Assessments: 

- An Assessment of the Probable Impact on the Quality and Standard of Education 
- Assessment of the probable impact on travel arrangements 
- Assessment of the probable impact on the community 
- Language Impact Assessment 
- Well-being Assessment 
- Equality Assessment  

Appendix C:  Letter and leaflet about an open day regarding a possible housing development  

Appendix Ch: Background pack, which includes presentations and minutes of the local meetings.  

Page 22



 

Comparing Models    

 

Key:  Blue = Advantages  Red  = Disadvantages Black  = Comments and Facts 

 

Comparing Models 

Considerations Save the 'Status Quo' Changing Staffing 

Structure 

Establish an Early Years 

Observation Unit 

Federalisation 5 year Warranty Establish on-site childcare 

provision 

Open a café to contribute 

towards running costs 

Close the School and 

move the children to an 

alternative school 

1. Class Sizes  Ysgol Llanaelhaearn pupils 

continue to be educated in 

two classes - 3 pupils in the 

foundation phase and 5 in 

KS2 in 2019-20. 

 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn pupils 

continue to be educated in 

two classes - 3 pupils in 

the foundation phase and 

5 in KS2 in 2019-20. 

 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn pupils 

continue to be educated in 

two classes - 3 pupils in the 

foundation phase and 5 in 

KS2 in 2019-20. 

 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn pupils 

continue to be educated in 

two classes - 3 pupils in the 

foundation phase and 5 in KS2 

in 2019-20. 

 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn pupils 

continue to be educated in 

two classes - 3 pupils in the 

foundation phase and 5 in 

KS2 in 2019-20. 

Three year forecasts: 

2020: 2 Classes – 3 and 4 

pupils 

2021: 1 class of 5 

2022: 1 class of 5 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn pupils 

continue to be educated in 

two classes - 3 pupils in 

the foundation phase and 

5 in KS2 in 2019-20. 

 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn pupils 

continue to be educated in 

two classes - 3 pupils in 

the foundation phase and 

5 in KS2 in 2019-20. 

 

Pupils to be educated in 

more appropriate size 

classes. 

 

Pupils to mix daily and 

be educated with other 

children of the same 

age. 

 

 

2. Pupil Numbers Low numbers continues at 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

39 of surplus places (83%). 

School projections continue 

to appear fragile in number. 

 

Opportunity to campaign to 

increase numbers. 

Low numbers continue at 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

39 of surplus places (83%). 

School projections 

continue to appear fragile 

in number. 

 

Opportunity to campaign 

to increase numbers. 

Low numbers continues at 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

39 of surplus places (83%). 

School projections continue 

to appear fragile in number. 

 

An ABC Unit does not 

usually attract children to 

the school. 

Low numbers continues at 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

39 of surplus places (83%). 

School projections continue 

to appear fragile in number. 

 

Opportunity to campaign to 

increase numbers. 

School projections continue 

to appear fragile in number. 

39 of surplus places (83%) in 

2019-20 and is likely to 

increase according to 

projections. 

Opportunity to campaign to 

increase numbers. 

Low numbers continues at 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

39 of surplus places (83%). 

School projections 

continue to appear fragile 

in number. 

This option may attract 

more to the school in the 

future. 

Low numbers continues at 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

39 of surplus places (83%). 

School projections 

continue to appear fragile 

in number. 

 

The numbers of the 

school that will provide 

education for the area 

more securely and 

sustainably for the 

future. 

 

Reduced surplus places 

in the catchment area. 

4. Leadership and 

Staffing 

The Headteacher will teach 1 

day a week at Ysgol 

Garndolbenmaen from 

September 2019, which 

means he leads three schools 

over 4 days. 

Risk that Ysgol 

Garndolbenmaen could end 

the collaboration 

arrangement. 

Attracting a candidate to 

the post of Headteacher at 

a school with 8 pupils 

could be challenging. 

If a Headteacher is not 

appointed, leaving the 

school without a 

Headteacher, it would not 

be possible to open the 

school doors. 

Risk of not appointing a 

Headteacher and losing 

staff in the meantime. 

Additional responsibilities 

for Site Manager. 

The Headteacher will teach 

1 day a week at Ysgol 

Garndolbenmaen’ from 

September 2019, which 

means he leads three 

schools over 4 days. 

Risk that Ysgol 

Garndolbenmaen could end 

the collaboration 

arrangement 

Save Headteacher time - 

federation would mean that 

the Headteacher can plan 

across the federation, rather 

than individual schools. 

Should a new Headteacher 

need to be recruited in the 

future it could make the job 

more attractive to applicants. 

A formal federation model 

would give a definite 

structure and any new would 

have to agree to head the 

'federation'. 

The Headteacher will teach 

1 day a week at Ysgol 

Garndolbenmaen from 

September 2019, which 

means he leads three 

schools in 4 days. 

Chwilog's forecasts show an 

increase in numbers over 

the next three years, and 

Garndolbenmaen 

decreasing over the three 

years, so the Headteacher's 

learning situation is unlikely 

to change. 

Additional responsibilities 

for Site Manager. 

The Headteacher will 

teach 1 day a week at 

Ysgol Garndolbenmaen 

from September 2019, 

which means he leads 

three schools over 4 days. 

Risk that Ysgol 

Garndolbenmaen could 

end the collaboration 

arrangement 

Additional responsibilities 

for Site Manager. 

The Headteacher will 

teach 1 day a week at 

Ysgol Garndolbenmaen 

from September 2019, 

which means he leads 

three schools over 4 days. 

Risk that Ysgol 

Garndolbenmaen could 

end the collaboration 

arrangement 

Alternative school 

numbers allowing the 

Headteacher to be able 

to lead and manage 

professionally at the 

school. 

 

Staff redundancy  

P
age 23

837927
Text Box
Appendix A



 

Comparing Models 

Considerations Save the 'Status Quo' Changing Staffing 

Structure 

Establish an Early Years 

Observation Unit 

Federalisation 5 year Warranty Establish on-site childcare 

provision 

Open a café to contribute 

towards running costs 

Close the School and 

move the children to an 

alternative school 

5. The Community Uncertainty remains 

regarding the sustainability 

of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn's 

education provision. 

Maintain a school presence 

in the village of 

Llanaelhaearn. 

High percentage of children 

attending schools outside the 

catchment area 

Uncertainty remains 

regarding the 

sustainability of Ysgol 

Llanaelhaearn's education 

provision. 

Maintain a school 

presence in the village of 

Llanaelhaearn. 

High percentage of 

children attending schools 

outside the catchment 

area 

Uncertainty remains 

regarding the sustainability 

of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn's 

education provision. 

Maintain a school presence 

in the village of 

Llanaelhaearn. 

High percentage of children 

attending schools outside 

the catchment area 

Uncertainty remains 

regarding the sustainability of 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn's 

education provision. 

Maintain a school presence in 

the village of Llanaelhaearn. 

High percentage of children 

attending schools outside the 

catchment area 

Maintain a school presence 

in the village of 

Llanaelhaearn. 

High percentage of children 

attending schools outside 

the catchment area 

Uncertainty remains 

regarding the 

sustainability of Ysgol 

Llanaelhaearn's education 

provision. 

Maintain a school 

presence in the village of 

Llanaelhaearn. 

High percentage of 

children attending schools 

outside the catchment 

area 

Uncertainty remains 

regarding the 

sustainability of Ysgol 

Llanaelhaearn's education 

provision. 

Maintain a school 

presence in the village of 

Llanaelhaearn. 

High percentage of 

children attending schools 

outside the catchment 

area  

Promoting community use 

of the building. 

Restrict opening hours to 

out of school hours due to 

risk of mixing public and 

pupils without DBS checks. 

Risk of how much use of a 

café would there be. 

Llanaelhaearn Village 

loses school. 

 

6. Financial 

Resources 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn remains 

financially unsustainable and 

therefore receives a sum 

towards staffing protection. 

The school has received 

£43,744 of additional funding 

in 2019/20. 

As the minimum staffing 

protection policy allows 

staffing of a Headteacher and 

assistant, it does not cover all 

school staff costs, and 

therefore the gap must be 

filled by adjusting the budget. 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn's cost 

per pupil average remains 

high (£12,671 per head) 

which is three times the 

county average. 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

remains financially 

unsustainable and 

therefore receives a sum 

towards staffing 

protection. The school has 

received £43,744 of 

additional funding in 

2019/20. 

Staffing costs for this 

model would be reduced, 

and would be addressed 

by the minimum staffing 

protection policy. 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn's cost 

per pupil average remains 

high (£12,671 per head) 

which is three times the 

county average. 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn remains 

financially unsustainable 

and therefore receives a 

sum towards staffing 

protection. The school has 

received £43,744 of 

additional funding in 

2019/20. 

As the minimum staffing 

protection policy allows 

staffing of a Headteacher 

and assistant, it does not 

cover all school staff costs, 

and therefore the gap must 

be filled by adjusting the 

budget. 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn's cost 

per pupil average remains 

high (£12,671 per head) 

which is three times the 

county average. 

The option would not 

generate income. 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn remains 

financially unsustainable and 

therefore receives a sum 

towards staffing protection. 

The school has received 

£43,744 of additional funding 

in 2019/20. 

As the minimum staffing 

protection policy allows 

staffing of a Headteacher and 

assistant, it does not cover all 

school staff costs, and 

therefore the gap must be 

filled by adjusting the budget  

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn's cost per 

pupil average remains high 

(£12,671 per head) which is 

three times the county 

average. 

Opportunity to make savings 

by sharing resources and 

employing staff across the 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn remains 

financially unsustainable 

and therefore receives a 

sum towards staffing 

protection. The school has 

received £43,744 of 

additional funding in 

2019/20. 

As the minimum staffing 

protection policy allows 

staffing of a Headteacher 

and assistant, it does not 

cover all school staff costs, 

and therefore the gap must 

be filled by adjusting the 

budget. 

3 year budget forecast 

shows that the school will 

face a budget deficit. 

Possibility of charging a 

childcare provider a fee to 

generate income. 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

remains financially 

unsustainable and 

therefore receives a sum 

towards staffing 

protection. The school has 

received £43,744 of 

additional funding in 

2019/20. 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn's cost 

per pupil average remains 

high (£12,671 per head) 

which is three times the 

county average. 

 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

remains financially 

unsustainable and 

therefore receives a sum 

towards staffing 

protection. The school has 

received £43,744 of 

additional funding in 

2019/20. 

As the minimum staffing 

protection policy allows 

staffing of a Headteacher 

and assistant, it does not 

cover all school staff costs, 

and therefore the gap 

must be filled by adjusting 

the budget  

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn's cost 

per pupil average remains 

high (£12,671 per head) 

which is three times the 

county average. 

Transport costs to the 

Authority as the 

alternative school is 

more than 2 miles from 

pupils' homes. 

The school will not 

remain in the staffing 

safety net. 

Reduce the cost per 

pupil of teaching. 

P
age 24



 

Comparing Models 

Considerations Save the 'Status Quo' Changing Staffing 

Structure 

Establish an Early Years 

Observation Unit 

Federalisation 5 year Warranty Establish on-site childcare 

provision 

Open a café to contribute 

towards running costs 

Close the School and 

move the children to an 

alternative school 

federation in future 

appointments. 

Potential for income 

generation. 

Need to invest in the 

kitchen to use it again. 

8. The Welsh 

Language 

No change to the language 
situation. 

No change to the language 
situation. 

No change to the language 
situation. 

No change to the language 
situation. 

No change to the language 
situation. 

No change to the language 
situation. 

No change to the language 
situation. 

Welsh-medium 

education offered as at 

present. 

9. Geographical 

Factors 

No change 

No pupil in the area will need 

to travel an unreasonable 

distance to school. 

No change 

No pupil in the area will 

need to travel an 

unreasonable distance to 

school. 

No change 

No pupil in the area will 

need to travel an 

unreasonable distance to 

school. 

No change 

No pupil in the area will need 

to travel an unreasonable 

distance to school. 

No change 

No pupil in the area will 

need to travel an 

unreasonable distance to 

school. 

No change 

No pupil in the area will 

need to travel an 

unreasonable distance to 

school. 

No change 

No pupil in the area will 

need to travel an 

unreasonable distance to 

school. 

Some pupils will need 

to travel further than 

they do at present. 

No pupil in the area will 

need to travel an 

unreasonable distance 

to school. 

10. Other 

considerations 

Quality of education 

Benefits and resources of the 

school. 

Small Classes. 

Offer occasional experiences 

for pupils to socialise with 

other children of the same 

age by working with Chwilog 

school.  

Current school numbers do 

not allow pupils to socialise 

and work with peers on a 

daily basis to take advantage 

of a wide range of curricular 

and extra-curricular 

experiences.  

Numbers a disadvantage 

when pupils transfer to 

secondary school. 

Quality of education 

Benefits and resources of 

the school. 

Small Classes. 

By ending the current 

arrangement of 

collaboration, the 

opportunities and 

experiences offered to 

children by visiting Ysgol 

Chwilog would come to an 

end. 

Numbers a disadvantage 

when pupils transfer to 

secondary school. 

Quality of education 

Benefits and resources of 

the school. 

Small Classes. 

Offer occasional experiences 

for pupils to socialise with 

other children of the same 

age by working with Chwilog 

school.  

Current school numbers do 

not allow pupils to socialise 

and work with peers on a 

daily basis to take 

advantage of a wide range 

of curricular and extra-

curricular experiences.  

Numbers a disadvantage 

when pupils transfer to 

secondary school.. 

Increased use of building. 

Sacrifice learning space. 

Formalize the current 

arrangement of collaboration 

and sharing of Headteacher. 

Quality of education 

Benefits and resources of the 

school. 

Small Classes. 

Offer occasional experiences 

for pupils to socialise with 

other children of the same 

age by working with Chwilog 

school. 

Current school numbers do 

not allow pupils to socialise 

and work with peers on a 

daily basis to take advantage 

of a wide range of curricular 

and extra-curricular 

experiences.  

Numbers a disadvantage 

when pupils transfer to 

secondary school. 

Lack of interest from 

neighbouring schools. 

Quality of education 

Benefits and resources of 

the school. 

Small Classes. 

Offer occasional experiences 

for pupils to socialise with 

other children of the same 

age by working with Chwilog 

school.  

Current school numbers do 

not allow pupils to socialise 

and work with peers on a 

daily basis to take 

advantage of a wide range 

of curricular and extra-

curricular experiences.  

Numbers a disadvantage 

when pupils transfer to 

secondary school. 

 

Quality of education 

Benefits and resources of 

the school. 

Small Classes. 

Offer occasional 

experiences for pupils to 

socialise with other 

children of the same age 

by working with Chwilog 

school.  

Current school numbers 

do not allow pupils to 

socialise and work with 

peers on a daily basis to 

take advantage of a wide 

range of curricular and 

extra-curricular 

experiences.  

Numbers a disadvantage 

when pupils transfer to 

secondary school. 

Registration process with 

CIW - approximately 6 

months. 

Need to secure regular 

users to employ 2 staff - 

approximately 10 children. 

Quality of education 

Benefits and resources of 

the school.  

Small Classes. 

Offer occasional 

experiences for pupils to 

socialise with other 

children of the same age 

by working with Chwilog 

school.   

Current school numbers 

do not allow pupils to 

socialise and work with 

peers on a daily basis to 

take advantage of a wide 

range of curricular and 

extra-curricular 

experiences.  

Numbers a disadvantage 

when pupils transfer to 

secondary school. 

 

Quality of education 

Benefits and resources 

of the school. 

Regular experiences for 

pupils to socialise and 

collaborate with peers. 

Key:  Blue = Advantages  Red  = Disadvantages Black  = Comments and Facts 

P
age 25



Appendix B 

 

Impact Assessments 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

 

Assessment of the Probable Impact on the Quality 
and Standards of Education 

1 

Assessment of the probable impact on travel 
arrangements 

11 

Assessment of the probable impact on the Community 19 

Language Impact Assessment 34 

Well-being Assessment 48 

Equality Assessment  57 

 

Page 26



Quality and Standards in Education 
Assessment Report - Ysgol Llanaelhaearn

- October 2019 

1
Page 27



Contents 

1. INTRODUCTION 

2. SUMMARY  

3. ASSESSMENT OF IMPACT ON QUALITY AND STANDARDS OF EDUCATION 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

2
Page 28



1. INTRODUCTION 

On 4th June 2019, Gwynedd Council's Cabinet allowed the Education Department to 'hold formal meetings 

with the governing body and other relevant stakeholders to discuss a range of possible options for the future 

of the school' as a result of the Education Department concerns regarding a significant drop in numbers 

attending school. 

In accordance with the requirements of the School Organisation Code 011/2018, which includes ‘The 

presumption against the closure of rural schools', an assessment of the likely impact on quality and standards 

of education of any reasonable option needs to be undertaken that can address the main challenges the 

school faces. 

For the purpose of the Code, Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is designated as a 'Rural School'. 

 “This second edition of the Code makes special arrangements in regard to rural schools establishing a 

procedural presumption against their closure. This requires proposers to follow a more detailed set of 

procedures and requirements in formulating a rural school closure proposal and in consulting on and reaching 

a decision as to whether to implement a rural school closure proposal. 

This does not mean that a rural school will never close but the case for closure must be strong and all viable 

alternatives to closure must have been conscientiously considered by the proposer, including federation.” 

Source: School Organisation Code 011 /2018

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is located in the centre of the village of Llanaelhaearn, which is between Pwllheli and 

Caernarfon. The School has a Nursery to Year 6 capacity of 53, with 8 pupils aged 3-11 attending the school 

(September 2019 Census). All pupils live in the Llanaelhaearn catchment area.  

The number of pupils attending the school have decreased significantly since 2013, when there were over 

40 pupils at the school. 

The 8 pupils now attending are taught in two classes with three pupils in one class and five pupils in the 

other. 

On the 24th June 2019, a meeting was held to review the school’s situation, at which a number of options 

were put forward for consideration for the future of the school. Further meetings were held in September 

to evaluate the options and identify the options that would be reasonable to try to solve the challenge of 

low pupil numbers at the school. 

3
Page 29



Ysgol Llanaelhaearn was last inspected by Estyn in 2015 where it was concluded that the school's current 

performance and prospects for improvement were adequate. It is acknowledged that the school has been 

on a journey of improvement since the inspection period and that several Headteachers have led the school 

since then. 

In 2019 the school was placed in the yellow category in terms of support and the ability of school to improve 

by the Welsh Government. 

Below is a summary of the latest reports of neighbouring schools, or schools that are subject to any of the 

reasonable options for the future of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

2.1 Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is located in the centre of the village of Llanaelhaearn, which is between Pwllheli and 

Caernarfon in Gwynedd. The school's catchment area includes the village and the surrounding area, which 

is located between the catchment areas of Ysgol Yr Eifl (Trefor), Ysgol Llangybi, Ysgol Bro Plenydd (Y Ffôr) 

and Ysgol Pentreuchaf. Ysgol Llanaelhaearn was last inspected in 2015, when there were 28 pupils on the 

register, taught in two mixed-age classes. 

It is also recognised that due to the low pupil to child ratio currently at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, the children are 

making good progress. 

School
Year of 

Inspection

How good 

are the 

outcomes?

How good is 

the provision?

How good are 

leadership and 

management?

Level of Progression 

(if appropriate)

Welsh 

Government 

Support 

Category 2019

Llanaelhaearn
April

2015 
Adequate Adequate Unsatisfactory 

October 

2016 

Good 

Progress
Yellow  

2.2 Other Schools in the Area   

School
Year of 

Inspection

How good 

are the 

outcomes?

How good is 

the provision?

How good are 

leadership and 

management?

Level of Progression 

(if appropriate)

Welsh 

Government 

Support 

Category 2019

Yr Eifl
December

2014 
Adequate Good Adequate 

June

2016 

Good 

Progress  
Yellow 

Bro Plenydd 
February 

2015 
Good Good Good - - Green 

Chwilog 
January

2013 
Adequate Adequate Unsatisfactory 

April

2014 

Significant 

Improvement
Yellow 

The table below summarises Estyn inspection report which has been inspected since September 2017, when 

Estyn introduced the five areas of review: 

4

2. SUMMARY 

Page 30



School 
Year of 

Inspection 
Standards

Well-
being and 
attitudes 

to 
learning 

Teaching 
and 

learning 
experiences

Care, 
support 

and 
guidance 

Leadership 
and 

management 

Welsh 
Government 

Support 
Category 2019 

Llangybi 
December 

2018 
Good Good Good Good Good Yellow 

Pentreuchaf
April  
2019 

Good Good Good Good Good Green 

5
Page 31



3. ASSESSMENT OF IMPACT ON QUALITY AND STANDARDS OF EDUCATION 

This assessment has been carried out on two models that would offer advantages to the school’s current 
situation, namely to federate with another school or schools, or closing the school and pupils being educated 
at an alternative school. 

These models, in addition to do nothing and continue the status quo, are detailed below.

 Do nothing – continue with the current structure of the school.

Retaining the current system would mean that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would continue in the same way, with 
the same staffing structure. There would be a Strategic Head at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, Garndolbenmaen and 
Chwilog who would spend 1 day a week leading Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

The pupils would continue to be taught by a full-time teacher and a senior assistant. 

 To federalise with another school (s)

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would form a formal, legal federal model with a neighbouring school or schools. 
Geographically, the schools that would be reasonable to consider would be one or more of the following; Yr 
Eifl, Llangybi, Bro Plenydd, Chwilog, or Pentreuchaf. 

This would mean that the schools remain separate but the Governing Bodies are abolished, and a single 
Governing Body is elected for the Federation. The schools budgets would remain as they are. 

Forming a formal federation with another school or schools would strengthen the school’s leadership and 
increase opportunities for pupils to collaborate and socialise with peers.  

 Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and pupils to be educated at an alternative school

This would mean to close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, and current pupils would transfer to Ysgol Bro Plenydd (the 

alternative school).

6
Page 32



DO NOTHING - ASSESSMENT OF IMPACT ON QUALITY AND STANDARDS OF EDUCATION  

The above assessment is based on the information of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn's Estyn report April 2015.

Positive Neutral Negative 

Impact Criteria Description The impact and status of work

Standards and general 

progress of specific groups and 

in terms of skills

No Change   
 Neutral 

Well-being and attitude to 

learning

No Change   

Neutral  

Teaching and learning 

experiences

No Change   

 Neutral 

Care guidance and support

No Change   

Neutral  

Leadership and management

No Change   

 Neutral 

Vulnerable groups, including 

children with Additional 

Learning Needs (ALN) 

No Change   

Neutral 

Provision that is at least 

commensurate with what is 

currently available to learners 

(including those with ALN) 

No Change   

Neutral  

7
Page 33



FEDERALISATION - ASSESSMENT OF IMPACT ON QUALITY AND STANDARDS OF EDUCATION 

The above assessment has been based on the information of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn's Estyn report April 2015; Ysgol Bro 
Plenydd February 2015; Ysgol Chwilog, April 2014; Ysgol Llangybi 2018 and Ysgol Pentreuchaf 2012. 

Positive Neutral Negative 

Impact Criteria Description The impact and status of work

Standards and general progress 

of specific groups and in terms of 

skills

No negative impact on these criteria is 

envisaged through federalisation with a 

neighbouring school. All of the schools 

in question are at least in the same 

category as Llanaelhaearn 

Neutral  

Well-being and attitude to 

learning

No negative impact on these criteria is 

envisaged through federalisation with a 

neighbouring school. All of the schools 

in question are at least in the same 

category as Llanaelhaearn 

Neutral  

Teaching and learning 

experiences

The current arrangement of working 

with Ysgol Chwilog provides pupils with 

transition experiences and 

opportunities. A federal model would 

likely include the same opportunities, 

with the potential to expand on this. 

Positive  

Care guidance and support

No negative impact on these criteria is 

envisaged through federalisation with a 

neighbouring school. All of the schools 

in question are at least in the same 

category as Llanaelhaearn. 

Neutral 

Leadership and management

Save the Headteacher's time by 

planning across the federation rather 

than in individual schools. 

Positive  

Vulnerable groups, including 

children with Additional Learning 

Needs (ALN) 

Provisions for vulnerable groups would 

not change under a federal model. 
Neutral 

Provision that is at least 

commensurate with what is 

currently available to learners 

(including those with ALN) 

No change as Ysgol Llanaelhaearn will 

continue. 
Neutral 

8
Page 34



TO CLOSE YSGOL LLANAELHAEARN AND PUPILS TAUGHT AT AN ALTERNATIVE SCHOOL - ASSESSMENT OF 

IMPACT ON QUALITY AND STANDARDS OF EDUCATION 

The above assessment has been based on the information of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn Estyn report April 2015, and Ysgol 

Bro Plenydd, February 2015.

Positive Neutral Negative 

Impact Criteria Description 
The impact and 

status of work

Standards and general progress 

of specific groups and in terms 

of skills

'Adequate' was the result of Estyn survey for the standards 

indicators at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, whilst Ysgol Bro Plenydd was 

'Good'. Therefore, based on the information from the last survey 

(2015) educating the children at Ysgol Bro Plenydd would have a 

positive effect.  

Positive  

Well-being and attitude to 

learning

'Adequate' was the result of the  Estyn survey for the wellbeing 

indicators at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and Ysgol Bro Plenydd during their 

most recent survey (2015), therefore based on these reports no 

impact is anticipated. 

Neutral 

Teaching and learning 

experiences

'Adequate' was the result of these indicators at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, 

whilst Ysgol Bro Plenydd was 'Good' according to Estyn in 2015. 

It is therefore anticipated that this model could have a positive 

impact on teaching and learning experiences. 

Education at Ysgol Bro Plenydd would involve teaching in larger 

groups and with peers to broaden their experiences. 

Positive  

Care guidance and support

'Adequate' was the result of these indicators at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, 

whilst Ysgol Bro Plenydd was 'Good' according to Estyn in 2015. 

It is therefore anticipated that this model could have a positive 

impact on teaching and learning experiences. 

Positive  

Leadership and management

During their last Estyn review, in February 2015, Ysgol Bro Plenydd 

was categorized as 'Good' for all aspects of 'leadership and 

management'. 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn was categorised as 'adequate' with the 

'Leadership' area being specifically 'unsatisfactory'. However, the 

school met its prospects for improvement. 

Positive  

Vulnerable groups, including 

children with Additional 

Learning Needs (ALN) 

Support for vulnerable groups including children with additional 

learning needs is provided in accordance with the Authority's policy, 

which is a standard in all Gwynedd schools. Neutral 

Provision that is at least 

commensurate with what is 

currently available to learners 

(including those with ALN) 

The alternative school has been categorized as 'A' in terms of 

condition, compared to Ysgol Llanaelhaearn which is categorised as 

'B'. 
Positive  

9
Page 35



4. CONCLUSIONS 

This assessment of the impact on the quality and standards of education demonstrated that introducing 

either option of federalisation, or closing Llanaelhaearn school and transferring the children to Ysgol Bro 

Plenydd is likely to be positive. 

It is acknowledged that the low numbers of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn now mean that there is currently a low pupil 

to child ratio, and as a result the children are making good progress. 

The information in this assessment on the most recent Estyn inspections on the schools in question indicates 

that each of the schools has been placed in a category at least equivalent to Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, and all of 

the schools placed in the yellow, or green, in terms of the level of Welsh Government support. 

10
Page 36



Assessment Report of the likely impact  
on different travelling arrangements - 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

- October 2019 

11
Page 37



Content 

1. INTRODUCTION  

1.1 Gwynedd Council Transport Policy 

1.2 Context of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

2. OPTIONS  

3. ASSESSMENT OF THE IMPACT ON TRANSPORT ARRANGEMENTS 

3.1 Alternative school location 

3.2 Free transport options 

3.3. Financial impact 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

12
Page 38



1. INTRODUCTION

In accordance with the Schools Organisation Code 011/2018, which includes 'a Presumption Against the 

Closure of Rural Schools', an assessment is required on the likely impact that any reasonable option proposed 

to resolve the main challenges facing the school would have on various transport arrangements.  

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn has been designated as a Rural School for the purpose of the Code.  

"This second edition of the Code makes special arrangements in regard to rural schools, establishing a 

procedural presumption against their closure. This requires proposers to follow a more detailed set of 

procedures and requirements in formulating a rural school closure proposal and in consulting on and reaching 

a decision as to whether to implement a rural school closure proposal."  

"This does not mean that a rural school will never close but the case for closure must be strong and all viable 

alternatives to closure must have been conscientiously considered by the proposer, including federation." 

Source: The Schools Organisation Code 011/2018 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is located in the centre of the village of Llanaelhaearn, which is between Pwllheli and 

Caernarfon. The School has a Nursery to Year 6 capacity of 53, with 8 pupils aged 3-11 attending the school 

(September 2019 Census). All pupils live in the Llanaelhaearn catchment area.  

The number of pupils attending the school have decreased significantly since 2013, when there were over 

40 pupils at the school. 

The 8 pupils now attending are taught in two classes with three pupils in one class and five pupils in the 

other. 

On the 24th June 2019, a meeting was held to review the school’s situation, at which a number of options 

were put forward for consideration for the future of the school. Further meetings were held in September 

to evaluate the options and identify the options that would be reasonable to try to solve the challenge of 

low pupil numbers at the school. 

1.1 Gwynedd Counci l  Transport Policy 

The ‘Excellent primary education for children in Gwynedd’ strategy aims to restrict travel from home to 

school to a one-way journey of no more than 30 minutes.  

Gwynedd Council provides free transport for learners who live two or more miles from the school in their 

catchment area, or the closest school (not including nursery pupils). Learners who receive a primary 

education are expected (except for learners with additional learning needs or disabilities), to walk up to two 

miles to meet any modes of transport provided by Gwynedd Council. The transport policy can be viewed in 

the Parent’s Handbook: (https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Residents/Documents-Residents/Schools-

and-learning-documents/Guide-Book.pdf).  

13
Page 39



1.2 Context of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

On the September 2018 census day, 38 primary age children lived in the catchment area of Ysgol 

Llanaelhaearn, 27 of whom attended out-of-catchment schools and 11 of whom attended Ysgol 

Llanaelhaearn. No children who live outside the Llanaelhaearn catchment area attend the school, as the 

table below shows:  

Source: September 2018 Census 

14
Page 40



2. OPTIONS

This assessment has been carried out on two models that would offer advantages over the school's current 

situation, namely federalisation with another school or schools, or to close the school and for the pupils to 

be educated at an alternative school.  

These models, in addition to doing nothing and continuing with the status quo, have been detailed below.  

 Do nothing - continue with the school's current structure.    

Keeping to the status quo would mean that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would continue in the same way, with the 
same staffing structure. There would be a Strategic Head-teacher for Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, Garndolbenmaen 
and Chwilog who would spend one day a week leading Ysgol Llanaelhaearn.   

The pupils would continue to be educated by a full-time teacher and an assistant.    

This model would have no impact on current transport arrangements, as the pupils would continue to be 
educated at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn.  

 To federate with another School / Schools 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would form a legal, formal federal model with another nearby school or schools.  
Geographically, the schools that could reasonably be considered are one or more of the following schools: 
Yr Eifl, Llangybi, Bro Plenydd, Chwilog or Pentreuchaf.    

This means that the schools would remain separate but the Governing Bodies would be dissolved, and a 
single Governing Body would be elected for the Federation. The schools' budgets would remain as they are.   

Forming a formal federation with another school or schools would strengthen the school’s leadership and 
increase opportunities for pupils to collaborate and socialise with peers  

This model would have no impact on current transport arrangements, as the pupils would continue to be 
educated at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn.  

 Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and for the pupils to be educated at an alternative school  

This means that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would close, and the existing pupils would transfer to an alternative 
school. 

This model would have an impact on transport arrangements, as the pupils would be educated at an 
alternative school. Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Y Ffôr, is the alternative school that forms part of the proposal.  

Since Ysgol Bro Plenydd is 3.6 miles from Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, Gwynedd Council would have to provide 
transport for pupils attending Ysgol Bro Plenydd who live more than two miles from the school, in line 
with the Authority's Transport Policy.  

15
Page 41



3. ASSESSMENT OF THE IMPACT ON TRANSPORT ARRANGEMENTS 

3.1.  Location of the alternative school  

Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Y Ffôr, is 3.6 miles from Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. The school is close to the A499 with access 
to the site of the school off this road. This makes it easy to travel between Llanaelhaearn and Y Ffôr in a car 
or on public transport.  

3.2.  Free transport options 

In line with Gwynedd Council's transport policy, the Authority would arrange for taxis or a mini-bus to 

transport pupils from the Llanaelhaearn catchment to the alternative school. And, as noted in this policy, 

learners receiving primary or secondary education (with the exception of learners with additional learning 

needs or disabilities) would be expected to walk up to two miles to meet any modes of transport provided 

by Gwynedd Council along the shortest route.   

The shortest route available is the route which is not deemed by the Council to be especially dangerous, 

after assessing the other routes available for the journey, and these routes would be assessed in line with 

Gwynedd Council's transport policy. 

It is noted that several school buses operate in the area. None of the primary school buses run between 

Llanaelhaearn and Y Ffôr that could be used for this purpose.  

Ysgol Glan y Môr bus travels through both villages. However, it is not customary for primary school children 

to use secondary school buses.  

It is also noted that a service bus has a service between the two villages (timetable below).  

Public transport timetable

Ysgol Glan y Môr bus timetable

16
Page 42



3.3. Financial impact

Below is a summary of the financial impact on transport arrangements: 

Alternative school (option) Distance from Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

(miles)  

Transport costs from the 

centre of Llanaelhaearn village 

to the alternative school 

Minibus / taxi for eight pupils. 3.6 £11,400 

The probable impact on travel 

arrangements for learners 

The assessment of the probable 

annual financial impact on 

travel arrangements for the 

Authority  

Do nothing No change  £0 

Federalise formally with another school or 

other schools 

No change £0 

Closing Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and moving 

the pupils to be educated at Ysgol Bro 

Plenydd, Y Ffôr - transport for eight pupils. 

Convene at an agreed place to 

catch the bus. 

£11,400  

It is noted that seven pupils who live in the Llanaelhaearn catchment area already attend Ysgol Bro Plenydd 

(2018 data).  

If the Ysgol Bro Plenydd catchment area were to be modified to include the Ysgol Llanaelhaearn catchment 

area in future, then it is anticipated that: 

 Transport costs for the current Ysgol Llanaelhaearn pupils and those pupils that already 

attend Ysgol Bro Plenydd, would be approximately £19,000 a year.  

 The transport costs for all pupils in the Ysgol Llanaelhaearn catchment area, if they all decided 

to attend Ysgol Bro Plenydd in future, would be approximately £25,000 a year.  

17
Page 43



4. CONCLUSIONS

There would no impact on current travel and transport arrangements from introducing a model of formal 

federalisation, as the pupils would continue to be educated at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

Implementing the proposal to close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and offering the pupils an education at Ysgol Bro 

Plenydd, Y Ffôr, would have some impact on the children's travel arrangements, as it would for the Authority.  

In accordance with the most recent data, from September 2018, 38 children live in the catchment area and 

27 choose to attend other schools, of whom six already attend Ysgol Bro Plenydd.  

This option would involve arranging a bus or taxi for the learners that would drop off the children at the car 

park at Ysgol Bro Plenydd.  

This option would incur additional costs for the Authority. These costs are estimated to be approximately 

£11,400 to transport the eight existing pupils to Ysgol Bro Plenydd, and up to approximately £25,000 if all 

the children in the Ysgol Llanaelhaearn catchment area chose to attend Ysgol Bro Plenydd (subject to 

modifying the catchment areas for the future).    

18
Page 44



Ysgol Llanaelhaearn Community Impact 
Assessment Report 

- October 2019 

19
Page 45



Contents 

1. PRESENTATION 

2. OPTIONS   

3. SUMMARY OF THE CATCHMENT AREA 

4. CATCHMENT AREA SCHOOL 

5. ASESIAD O’R EFFAITH DEBYGOL AR Y GYMUNED 

6. CONCLUSIONS 

20
Page 46



1. INTRODUCTION  

On 4 June 2019, Gwynedd Council Cabinet authorised the Education Department 'to hold formal 

meetings with the governing body and other relevant stakeholders to discuss a range of potential 

options for the school’s future’ as a result of the concerns of the Education Department regarding a 

substantial decline in the numbers attending the school.  

The Schools Organisation Code 011/2018 includes 'a Presumption against the Closure of Rural 

Schools'. Ysgol Llanaelhaearn has been designated as a Rural School for the purpose of the Code.  

This means, as part of the statutory process, that there is a need to assess the likely impact on the 

community, in the case of every reasonable option, in accordance with the Schools Organisation 

Code 011/2018. This assessment derives from Welsh Government national guidance for schools 

reorganisation, including considerations of the unique needs of rural areas.  

"In some areas, a school may also be the main focal point for community activity, and its closure could 

have implications beyond the issue of the provision of education. This may be a particular feature in 

rural areas if school buildings are used as a place to provide services to the local community." 

"The case prepared by those bringing forward proposals should show that the impact of closure on the 

community has been assessed through the production of a Community Impact Assessment and how 

any community facilities currently provided by the school could be maintained." 

Source: The Schools Organisation Code 011/2018 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is located in the centre of the village of Llanaelhaearn between Pwllheli and 

Caernarfon. The school's capacity from Nursery to Year 6 is 53, with 8 pupils between 3 and 11 years 

of age attending the school (September 2019). All the pupils live in the Llanaelhaearn catchment 

area.   

The number of pupils attending the school has fallen substantially since 2013, when over 40 pupils 

attended the school.   

The eight pupils who currently attend are educated in two classes, with three pupils in one class and 

five pupils in the other. 

On 24 June 2019, a meeting was held to review the school's situation, at which several options were 

proposed for consideration of the school's future. Subsequent meetings were held during September 

to evaluate the options and identify the options that would be reasonable in an attempt to resolve 

the challenge that is facing the school, namely a low number of pupils.   

21
Page 47



2. OPTIONS  

This assessment has been carried out on two models that would offer advantages compared to the 
school's current situation, namely federalisation with another school or schools, or to close the 
school and for the pupils to be educated at an alternative school.   

Those models, in addition to doing nothing and continuing with the current situation, have been 
detailed below.  

 Do nothing - continue with the school's current structure.    

Keeping the status quo would mean that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would continue in the same way, with 
the same staffing structure. There would be a Strategic Headteacher for Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, 
Garndolbenmaen and Chwilog who would spend one day a week leading Ysgol Llanaelhaearn.   

The pupils would continue to be educated by a full-time teacher and senior assistant.     

 Federalisation with another School / Schools   

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would form a legal, formal federal model with another nearby school or schools.  
Geographically, the schools that could reasonably be considered are one or more of the following 
schools: Yr Eifl, Llangybi, Bro Plenydd, Chwilog or Pentreuchaf.    

This means that the schools would remain separate but the Governing Bodies would be dissolved, 
and a single Governing Body would be elected for the Federation.  

The schools' budgets would remain as they are, but with prospects to strengthen the school’s 
leadership and increase opportunities for pupils to collaborate and socialise with peers. 

 Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and for the pupils to be educated at an alternative school  

This means that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would close, and the current pupils would transfer to Ysgol Bro 
Plenydd (the alternative school).  

22
Page 48



3. SUMMARY OF THE CATCHMENT AREA  

3.1  The Area  

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is located in the centre of the village of Llanaelhaearn between Pwllheli and 

Caernarfon in Gwynedd. The school's catchment area includes the village and nearby area, located 

between the catchment areas of Ysgol yr Eifl (Trefor), Ysgol Llangybi, Ysgol Bro Plenydd (Y Ffôr) and 

Ysgol Pentreuchaf.   

The latest data (2011 census) shows that the population of the Llanaelhaearn ward is 1,683.  

3.2  The Economy  

65.9% of people aged between 16 and 74 years old within the Llanaelhaearn ward are economically 
active, 5.8% of whom are unemployed. 31.4% of people in the same age group are economically 
inactive, and 17.6% of whom either have a long-term illness or disability.   

The type of industry in which the population is active varies in the area, with the highest rate (15.3%) 
working in the health and social work field.   

According to the 'Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (2014)', the employment rate of the 
Llanaelhaearn ward, compared to other wards in Wales, is ranked 1095 out of 1909 wards. Therefore, 
the Llanaelhaearn ward is not within the 50% most deprived in Wales.    

In 1974, Antur Aelhaearn was established - a social enterprise aiming to create work locally to keep 
families and young people in the area, and a number of projects and plans were introduced to the local 
area. The Antur remains operational to this day and is active working on projects such as the 
development of a disused chapel.   

A number of businesses operate in the village, including a bakery, garage, B&B and a pet grooming 
business.   

3.3  Deprivation  

The Llanaelhaearn Ward (which is a broader area than the geographical area of the school's catchment 
area) is in the 40% most deprived wards in Wales (ranked 622 out of 1909 wards).   

A number of fields are measured to draw up this general index, including income, employment, health, 
education, access to services, community safety, physical environment and housing.   

Note that the Llanaelhaearn ward is within the 10% most deprived wards in Wales in the 'Housing' 
field. The indicators of this field are the proportion of people who live in an overcrowded home 
(bedroom use), and the proportion of people living in homes that do not have central heating.   

In addition, the Llanaelhaearn ward is within the 10% most deprived areas in Wales in the 'access to 
services' field, i.e. deprivation, as people are unable to access the various services considered essential 
for daily living. The indicators include the average public transport and private travel times to a number 
of services such as supermarkets, surgeries, primary and secondary schools, post office, public library, 
pharmacy, leisure centre and private travel time to a petrol station.   

23
Page 49



Below is a summary of how the Llanaelhaearn area is placed in the context of other areas in Wales 
according to the Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (2014):  

Area 
Rank in Wales, out of 1909 areas.   
1 = most deprived  
1909 = least deprived  

Most deprived % in Wales  

Employment 
1095 

Income   
778 Within the 40-50% most deprived  

Health 
1075 

Education 
994 Within the 40-50% most deprived  

Housing 
88 Within the 0-10% most deprived  

Physical environment 
1651 

Access to services 
15 Within the 0-10% most deprived  

Community Safety 
1046 

3.4  The Community  

A number of activities are held in Llanaelhaearn, including;   

 Cylch Ti a Fi 

 Merched y Wawr 

 Various courses in the Community Centre  

 Playing Field Committee 
Eisteddfod Gadeiriol Aelhaearn 
Aelhaearn Memorial Committee 
Steering Committee  

 Community Council  

In addition, there are a number of facilities in the village, including St Aelhaearn Church / Cemetery,  
Surgery, Residential Home for the Elderly, Bakery, Canolfan y Babell, Playing Field, Football Pitch and 
Antur Aelhaearn. Members of Antur Aelhaearn have also been working on a project to develop the 
Chapel as a resource for the community, and this is located next to the Community Centre and the re-
roofing work has been completed. A garden project is also in the pipeline.  

24
Page 50



4. CATCHMENT AREA SCHOOLS  

4.1 Context of the schools according to Estyn inspections 

As part of Estyn reports, the authors, i.e. the inspectors, will place the schools within their context and 
will detail their community connections. This is the context given to Ysgol Llanaelhaearn by Estyn 
inspectors.  

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

"Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is located in the centre of the village of Llanaelhaearn between Pwllheli and 
Caernarfon in Gwynedd. The school serves the village and nearby area"  

 Source: Estyn Report, April 2015  

4.2 Schools' statistical information  

The table below shows the numbers at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, and other nearby schools, from nursery to 

year 6. Also shown in this table is the school's capacity and the number of surplus places. Each of these 

schools are community schools and they teach through the medium of Welsh.   

School 
Full Capacity    

(N – Yr6) 

Number on roll        

September 2019 

(N – Yr6) 

Number of Surplus 

Places 

2019 (N – Yr6) 

Legal Category  

Llanaelhaearn 53 8 45 Community school 

Bro Plenydd 104 74 30 Community school 

Llangybi 80 34 46 Community school  

Pentreuchaf 119 98 21 Community school  

Yr Eifl 62 56 6 Community school 

Chwilog 74 52 22 Community school 

Source: September 2019 Census 

4.3  Information about the location of pupils' dwellings and choice of school  

Every school has a specific catchment that it serves and this is important in relation to the Council's 
admissions and transport policy. Pupils do not have to attend their catchment area school, this is the 
parents' choice (in accordance with the admissions policy).  

In comparison with the other catchment areas in the area, the number of pupils who move out of the 

school's catchment area is high. The latest data of pupils' homes shows that 39 children lived in the 

Llanaelhaearn catchment area last year (September 2018 data), 11 of whom attended the school.  

This has now fallen to eight pupils. This means that 72% of children who live in the catchment area of 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn attend out-of-catchment area schools, according to 2018 data.  

Another school in the area where a high number of children attend out-of-catchment area schools is 

the Ysgol Llangybi catchment area; 38% of children from the Ysgol Llangybi catchment area attended 

out-of-catchment area schools in 2018, however, nine children who attend Ysgol Llangybi live outside 

25
Page 51



the school's catchment area. No pupils living outside the Ysgol Llanaelhaearn catchment area attend 

the school.   

Source: September 2018 Census  

The above table provides comprehensive information about the location of pupils' homes and their choice of 
school. The table below summarises how many pupils live in each catchment area, the number who live in the 
catchment area and attend the school, and the number of pupils who attend the school but live outside the 
catchment area.   

School Number living in the 
Catchment Area*  

Number of children in the 
Catchment Area who attend 

the school*   

Numbers who attend the 
school from outside the 

Catchment Area* 

Llanaelhaearn 39 11 0 

Yr Eifl 67 58 1 

Llangybi 47 29 9 

Bro Plenydd 49 38 38 

Chwilog 70 47 5 

Pentreuchaf 57 39 58 

Source: September 2018 Census  

26
Page 52



4.4 Summary of the various facilities in the rural communities  

The information below has been collected on the areas of the schools that would be affected by any 
of the models.  

Llanaelhaearn Trefor Chwilog Y Ffôr Pentreuchaf Llangybi 

Village Hall Community 
Centre  ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Chapel/Church  ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Public Transport ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Shop ✔ 
(Bakery)  

✔
✔ 

(Butcher)  
✔ ✔ 

Café/Pub ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Post Office ✔ 
(van)  

✔
✔ 

(Village Hall) 
✔ 

✔ 
(van)  

Surgery/Pharmacy  ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Library ✔ 
(van)  

✔ 
(van)

✔ 
(van)  

✔ ✔ 
(van)  

Children’s Playing Field ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Bank  

Residential Home for the 
Elderly  ✔ 

GC Houses 
for the 
Elderly  

Leisure Centre 

Garage ✔ ✔

Tourism Attraction  ✔ 
(Tre’r Ceiri) 

✔

Cylch Ti a Fi + Cylch 
Meithrin  ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Source: Headteachers' Questionnaires September 2019 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, and the other schools that are a part of this assessment, have 'Friends of the 
School' that hold fund-raising activities for the benefit of the school and the pupils.   

As there is no hall in Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, the school makes regular use of nearby Canolfan y Babell.  

It is acknowledged in a community impact questionnaire that members of the community visit Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn regularly to assist with the learning experiences, and that the School has a Mini Bus, 
which enriches the children's experiences by enabling them to visit other schools and sites. Indeed, 
members of the communities of each of the schools included in this assessment visit the schools to 
hold activities with the pupils, such as a gardening or reading club.   

27
Page 53



4.5  Summary of the school's use outside the school's core hours  

Currently, the Ysgol Llanaelhaearn school building is not used by the community. A summary of the 

community or extra-curricular use of the buildings of local schools is seen below:   

Llanaelhaearn Trefor Chwilog Y Ffôr Pentreuchaf Llangybi 

Play Groups (School 
holidays) ✔ 

Aelwyd yr Urdd ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ 
Plays  

Voluntary Groups  

Coffee Morning/Evening ✔ 
Community Auction  

Community Library  

Choir Practice  

Welsh for Adults 

Town/Community 
Council Meeting  

Cylch/Nursery School ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Sports Club/Activity ✔ ✔ 

After School Club  ✔

Local Interest Club  

Source: Headteachers' Questionnaires September 2019 

4.6  Summary of activities or groups that the school are regularly involved with: 

Llanaelhaearn Trefor Chwilog Y Ffôr Pentreuchaf Llangybi 

Ti a Fi Group / Cylch 
Meithrin  ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Eisteddfodau  
(Local/County/National)  ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Urdd Adrannau  ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ 
Visits to Glan Llyn / 
Llangrannog / Cardiff  ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Other activities (sports, 
clubs)  ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Source: Headteachers' Questionnaires September 2019 

4.7  If buildings, rooms, facilities or services are provided by the school for the community, where 

will they be provided if the school is closed?  

School Where will facilities be provided if the school is closed?  

Llanaelhaearn  

Currently, the community makes no use of the Ysgol Llanaelhaearn school 
building, therefore, there would be no changes if the school were to close.   

If use of a community building were required, Canolfan y Babell, a community 
hall, is located within 50m of the school.   

28
Page 54



4.8  Information about the distance and travel time to other schools in the catchment area  

The table below notes the distance and travel time between schools in the area. We can see that 
Ysgol yr Eifl is closest to Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, with Ysgol Bro Plenydd second closest. The following 
travel times considers the nature of the roads and the impact that this could have on travel times in a 
rural area.    

School Chwilog 
Bro 

Plenydd 
Llanaelhaearn Llangybi Pentreuchaf Yr Eifl 

Chwilog 
Miles

Minutes

Bro Plenydd 
Miles 2.5

Minutes 6

Llanaelhaearn
Miles 6.1 3.6

Minutes 12 6

Llangybi 
Miles 2.9 2.0 3.9

Minutes 7 5 9

Pentreuchaf 
Miles 5.5 3.3 4.6 5.3

Minutes 11 6 10 11

Eifl 
Miles 7.9 5.3 1.9 5.7 6.3

Minutes 16 10 6 12 14

29
Page 55



5. ASSESSMENT OF THE PROBABLE IMPACT ON THE COMMUNITY 

In order to assess the community impact of the potential models, it was decided to create criteria in 
accordance with the recommendations of the community impact considerations of The Schools 
Organisation Code 011/2018 

MODEL 1 – CONTINUE WITH THE STATUS QUO 

Impact Criteria Description 
Status of the impact and 

the work 

Impact on Health and Well-being  

No change Neutral  

Implications of the change on 
public transport provisions  

No change Neutral 

Impact on facilities / other services 
provided at the school  

No change Neutral 

The impact on broader community 
safety  

No change Neutral 

Would the option encourage 
families and school-age children to 

leave the community, or would 
young families be less likely to 

move to the community

No change Neutral 

Impact on other services provided 
locally  

No change Neutral 

Detrimental effect on the 
community's broader economy 

No change Neutral 

The general impact on the local 
community  

No change Neutral 

Positive Neutral  Negative  

30
Page 56



MODEL 2 - FEDERALISE WITH ANOTHER SCHOOL OR OTHER SCHOOLS 

Impact Criteria  Description  
Status of the impact and 

the work 

Impact on Health and Well-being  

No change from the current situation Neutral 

Implications of the change on 
public transport provisions  

No change from the current situation Neutral 

Impact on facilities / other services 
provided at the school  

No change from the current situation Neutral 

The impact on broader community 
safety  

No change from the current situation Neutral 

Would the option encourage 
families and school-age children to 

leave the community, or would 
young families be less likely to 

move to the community  

No change from the current situation Neutral 

Impact on other services provided 
locally  

No change from the current situation Neutral 

Detrimental effect on the 
community's broader economy 

No change from the current situation Neutral 

The general impact on the local 
community  

No change from the current situation, however 
opportunities are identified for the community of 
Llanaelhaearn and the other school that would be part 
of the federal model to come together. 

Neutral 

Positive Neutral  Negative  

31
Page 57



MODEL 3 - CLOSE YSGOL LLANAELHAEARN, AND SEND THE PUPILS TO BE EDUCATED AT YSGOL BRO 
PLENYDD  

Impact Criteria Description 
Status of the impact and 

the work 

Impact on Health and 
Well-being  

As the alternative school is more than two miles from Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn and the pupils' homes, it is unlikely that they would 
walk to school.   

Nevertheless, the school is located close to the main road between 
Pwllheli and Caernarfon. It is possible to drop the children off in the 
car park, be that in a car or taxi / mini bus, and a bus stop (public 
service bus) is located outside the school's boundary. Therefore, if 
pupils are less able to walk or cycle, it is not anticipated that there 
will be any difficulties reaching the school.   

Negative 

Implications of the 
change on public 

transport provisions  

Public bus (no. 12) runs between the village of Llanaelhaearn and 
the alternative school. Some families could be dependent on public 
transport to reach the alternative school; nevertheless, a substantial 
impact is not anticipated on the public transport provision as only 
eight pupils attend this school at present.    

Neutral 

Impact on facilities / 
other services 

provided at the 
school  

The school is used for educational purposes only.  Neutral 

The impact on 
broader community 

safety  

No impact is anticipated on broader community safety  Neutral 

Would the option 
encourage families 

and school-age 
children to leave the 
community, or would 
young families be less 
likely to move to the 

community

It is not anticipated that families with young children would leave 
the community, on the grounds that most children in the catchment 
area's children already attend other schools.   

Neutral 

Impact on other 
services provided 

locally  

As a high number of the catchment area's children already attend 
other schools, it cannot be concluded that the closure of the school 
would affect other services.   

Neutral 

Detrimental effect on 
the community's 
broader economy 

Again, as the majority of the catchment area's children attend other 
schools, it is not anticipated that losing the school would affect the 
community's broader economy.   

Neutral 

The general impact 
on the local 
community  

The local school would be further away from homes within the 
existing catchment area of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, and in terms of 
deprivation, it means that one of the indicators i.e. 'access to 
services' will be further away from the village's residents.  

As a high number of the catchment area's children already attend 
other schools, it cannot be concluded that the closure of the school 
would have a negative or positive impact on the local community.   

Negative 

Positive Neutral  Negative  

32
Page 58



6. CONCLUSIONS 

The contents of this report shows that the option to continue with the status quo, or to federalise with 

another school, would not have an impact on the community, as both options mean continuing with a 

school in Llanaelhaearn, with amendments made to the governance and collaboration with another 

school under a federal model. This would mean that a school would remain in the Llanaelhaearn 

community, and would carry out the same activities and use the same facilities as it currently does.   

If the option to close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and for the pupils to be educated at Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Y Ffôr 

was to be implemented, some elements of community events would be affected.    

Although the school building is not used by the community, this assessment shows that the school is 

involved with its community and uses the community's facilities, such as Canolfan y Babell, on a regular 

basis. Canolfan y Ffôr is linked to the hall building and Ysgol Bro Plenydd uses this facility. If this option 

were realised, then Ysgol Bro Plenydd could also be encouraged to make occasional use of the facilities 

in the village of Llanaelhaearn.   

It is not anticipated that closing the school would encourage school-age families to leave the 

community, as a substantial proportion of the children who live in the school's catchment area already 

attend other schools. Similarly, it is not anticipated that young families would be less likely to move to 

the community.   

As part of the process, it will be essential to encourage discussions between the alternative school and 

the parents of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn pupils, so that parents and pupils can use their facilities and 

participate in after school activities, and to encourage the alternative school to also use the facilities in 

the community of Llanaelhaearn.   

This assessment shows that there will be some negative impact on the community from closing the 

school. To mitigate the impact on the community, opportunities to ensure that the community of 

Llanaelhaearn is aware of the activities of the alternative school are noted, and community 

collaboration will be encouraged between Ysgol Bro Plenydd and the community of Llanaelhaearn, 

where appropriate.  

33
Page 59



Language Impact Assessment Report 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

- October 2019 

34
Page 60



Content 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Situation in Gwynedd

1.2 Language Policy 

1.3 Educational Background  

2. LINGUISTIC PROFILE OF THE LLANAELHAEARN CATCHMENT AREA

2.1 The Background of Gwynedd's Language Profile

2.2         Wards

2.3 Ysgol Llanaelhaearn

2.4 Nearby Schools

2.5 Attainment Levels

2.6 After-school Activities

2.7 Community Activities

2.8 Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2017-2020

2.9 Additional Evidence

3. IMPACT ON THE WELSH LANGUAGE

3.1 Options

3.2 Welsh Language Impact Assessment

4. CONCLUSION

35
Page 61



1. INTRODUCTION  

Supporting and developing the ability of children in Gwynedd to learn and use their language skills is 

essentially important to the education strategies of the County.  

1.1 The Situat ion in Gwynedd  

Figures in the 2011 Census note that 65,900 (56%) people aged three years and over can speak, read and 

write in Welsh. The 2011 Census also notes that 65% speak Welsh which is a reduction since the previous 

census, when the figure was 69%. 

In Gwynedd, as many other Local Authorities in Wales, there is a considerable difference in the percentage 

of Welsh speakers within different wards. At one extreme, in wards such as Aberdyfi, Tywyn and the Menai 

ward in Bangor, between 18% and 38% of the population speaks Welsh, while as much as 78% speaks Welsh 

in the most Welsh-speaking areas e.g. Llanrug. 

1.2 Language Policy   

Primary  

The aim of the Language Policy is the same across all the county’s primary schools, which is to develop the 

ability of all pupils to be confident in both languages by the end of KS2. Welsh is the official assessment 

language in the school at the end of the Foundation Phase. In KS2, the aim is to continue to develop the 

pupils' grasp of Welsh, giving attention to the development of their skills in both languages.  

Secondary 

In secondary schools, every pupil who has attained the necessary level, namely level 3+ at the end of KS2 is 

expected to pursue a Welsh Language Study Programme (First Language) in KS3 in order to ensure 

appropriate progression and continuation. It is hoped that these pupils can study Welsh and English as 

subjects until the end of year 11. 

Secondary schools build upon the foundations set in primary by ensuring that each pupil continues to develop 

skills in Welsh and Englis. Gwynedd does not define secondary schools according to language categories as it 

is the same expectation in relation to the Language Policy, namely to provide all students in the county with 

an opportunity to be bilingually proficient. 

1.3 Educat ional Background 

The 'Excellent Primary Education for the Children of Gwynedd' strategy was adopted by the Council in April 

2009. A further higher strategy, ‘Strategic Programme – Towards 2025’, was developed and supported by 

the Council in October 2010. This document was prepared as a strategic foundation for steering 

developments in the field of education and training in Gwynedd for the next 15 years. The programme was 

presented in the context of policies and plans which were in the pipeline both locally and nationally, to 

transform the services provided for children, young people and their families. The 'Welsh in Education 

Strategic Plan for 2017-2020' was published in December 2017 which sets a vision, commitment and 

direction for ensuring that children and young people attain the highest standards in order to maintain the 

language, culture and economy locally.  

36
Page 62



2. LINGUISTIC PROFILE OF THE LLANAELHAEARN CATCHMENT AREA   

2.1 The Background of Gwynedd's Language Prof i le  

Nearly three quarters of the County's population were born in Wales (66.8%). 65.4% of the population aged 

three years and over are Welsh speakers - which is significantly higher than the national average of 19%. On 

the whole, there is an increase in the number of Welsh speakers and those born in Wales towards the west 

and moving inland from the most populated areas along the coast. In Gwynedd, the ability to speak Welsh is 

highest in the Llanrug ward (87.8% speak Welsh) and at its lowest in the Menai area of Bangor (18.6%).  

2.2 Wards 

2.2.1 Llanaelhaearn,  Abererch,  L lanystumdwy and Efai lnewydd Wards  

The existing catchment area of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, Ysgol yr Eifl and part of the Ysgol Llangybi catchment 

area is within the Llanaelhaearn ward (Office for National Statistics). The catchment area of Ysgol Bro Plenydd 

and part of the ysgol Pentreuchaf catchment area is within the Abererch ward, the catchment area of Ysgol 

Chwilog and part of the Llangybi catchment area within the Llanystumdwy ward, and the rest of the Ysgol 

Pentreuchaf catchment area within the Efailnewydd/Buan ward. The linguistic profile of the wards of these 

schools has been summarised in the following table: 

Llanaelhaearn Abererch Llanystumdwy Efailnewydd/Buan Gwynedd Wales  

Welsh identity only 1,157 (68.7%) 928 (68.5%) 1,392 (66.9%) 832 (65.3%) 71,931 (59.0%) 
1,761,673 

(57.5%) 

No Welsh identity 460 (27.3%) 337 (24.9%) 580 (27.9%) 371 (29.1%) 42,566 (34.9%) 
1,045,775 

(34.1%) 

Households where at 

least one person has 

an alternative first 

language to Welsh or 

English 

8 (0.5%) 11 (0.8%) 6 (0.3%) 6 (0.5%) 1,463 (1.2%) 42,581 (1.4%) 

3+ years old 

population 
1,621 (96.3%) 1,315 (97.1%) 2,017 (97%) 1,231 (96.5%) 117,789 (96.6%) 

2,995,841 

(96.5%) 

Able to speak Welsh 1,197 (73.8%) 1,050 (79.8%) 1,553 (77%) 915 (74.3%) 77,000 (65.4%) 
562,016 

(19.0%) 

No Welsh language 

skills 
315 (19.4%) 185 (14.1%) 347 (17.2%) 260 (21.1%) 31,177 (26.5%) 

2,167,987 

(73.3%) 

Can understand 

Welsh verbally only 
90 (5.6%) 70 (5.3%) 100 (5%) 50 (4.1%) 8,125 (6.9%) 

157,792 

(5.3%) 

Able to speak but 

unable to read or 

write in Welsh  

98 (6.0%) 80 (6.1%) 76 (3.8%) 58 (4.7%) 6,838 (5.8%) 80,429 (2.7%) 

Able to speak and 

understand Welsh 

but unable to write in 

Welsh  

45 (2.8%) 42 (3.2%) 64 (3.2%) 41 (3.3%) 3,947 (3.4%) 45,524 (1.5%) 

Able to speak, read 

and write in Welsh  
1,049 (64.7%) 926 (70.4%) 1,406 (69.7%) 814 (66.1%) 65,921 (56.0%) 

430,717 

(14.6%) 

Another combination 

of Welsh language 

skills  

24 (1.5%) 12 (0.9%) 24 (1.2%) 8 (0.6%) 1,781 (1.5%) 73,392 (2.5%) 

Source: 2011 Census, Office for National Statistics 

37
Page 63



2.3 Ysgol L lanaelhaearn 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is a Welsh Medium School. 

The table below shows that the number of pupils who speak Welsh fluently at home is 6, which is 55% of 

pupils (PLASC 2019).   

Linguistic Information for Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

School 

Speaks 

Welsh 

fluently at 

home 

Does not 

speak Welsh 

at home but 

are fluent in 

Welsh 

Speaks 

Welsh at 

home but 

not fluently 

Does not speak 

Welsh at home 

and are not 

fluent in Welsh 

Cannot speak 

Welsh at all 
Total  

Llanaelhaearn 6 (55%) 1 (9%) 1 (9%) 3 (27%) 0 (0%) 11 

Source: Data from Headteachers PLASC January 2019 

2.4 Nearby schools  

As the rest of Gwynedd schools, Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Ysgol yr Eifl, Ysgol Llangybi, Ysgol Pentreuchaf and Ysgol 

Chwilog are Welsh medium schools. The linguistic data of these schools can be viewed in the table below: 

School 

Speaks 

Welsh 

fluently at 

home 

Does not 

speak Welsh 

at home but 

are fluent in 

Welsh 

Speaks 

Welsh at 

home but 

not fluently 

Does not speak 

Welsh at home 

and are not 

fluent in Welsh 

Cannot speak 

Welsh at all 
Total  

Bro Plenydd 62 (83%) 5 (6%) 2 (3%) 2 (3%) 4 (5%) 75

Yr Eifl 48 (83%) 2 (3%) 3 (5%) 1 (2%) 4 (7%) 58

Llangybi 21 (57%) 0 (0%) 7 (19%) 2 (5%) 7 (19%) 37

Pentreuchaf 83 (84%) 9 (9%) 3 (3%) 3 (3%) 1 (1%) 99

Chwilog 41 (84%) 3 (6%) 0 (0%) 2 (4%) 3 (6%) 49

Source: Data from Headteachers PLASC January 2019 

2.5 Attainment Level  

Schools 

% of pupils who have reached the expected level - Welsh (first language) 

Foundation Phase

(Reached level 5+) 

KS2

(reached at least level 4)   

2017 2018 2019 2017 2018 2019

Llanaelhaearn 100% -* 0% -* 100% 100%

Bro Plenydd 100% 92.3% 100% 100% 90.9% 100%

Yr Eifl 80% 75% 66.7% 62.5% 100% 83.3%

Llangybi 75% 71.4% 66.7% 100% 100% 75%

Pentreuchaf 92.9% 84.2% 83.3% 100% 100% 100%

Chwilog 100% 66.7% 87.5% 100% 100% 100%

*There were no pupils in the relevant academic year this year.   

Source: GwE (September 2019) 

38
Page 64



We can see a wide range of success when it comes to the academic attainment of schools in the area. Over 

75% of KS2 pupils managed to reach the expected level (Welsh - Language) in every school last year, including 

100% of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and Ysgol Bro Plenydd. A wide range of results in the Foundation Phase vary in 

the Foundation Phase between Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and Ysgol Bro Plenydd. 

As part of the work to implement the Welsh Language Charter, all primary school KS2 pupils in Gwynedd 

complete a language web questionnaire on their use of the Welsh language at school twice a year. The 

following tables demonstrate the October 2018 statistics on the use of the Welsh language made by pupils 

with their teachers: 

Percentage of  chi ldren  who speak Welsh wi th  thei r  teach ers (with  th e except ion o f  En gl i sh  

lessons)  

Always Often Sometimes Very little Never  

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Bro Plenydd 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Yr Eifl 96% 0% 4% 0% 0%

Ysgol Pentreuchaf 98% 2% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Chwilog 95% 0% 2.5% 0% 2.5%

Percentage of  chi ldren  who speak Welsh wi th  thei r  ass istants (wi th  th e  except ion o f  E ng l i sh  

lessons)  

Always Often Sometimes Very little Never  

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Bro Plenydd 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Yr Eifl 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Pentreuchaf 95% 3% 0% 0% 2%

Ysgol Chwilog 95% 0% 5% 0% 0%

Percentage of  ch i ldren  who speak Welsh wi th  the rest  o f  th e schoo l  sta f f  

Always Often Sometimes Very little Never  

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Bro Plenydd 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Yr Eifl 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Pentreuchaf 98% 2% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Chwilog 95% 0% 5% 0% 0%

Percentage of  ch i ldren  who speak Welsh wi th  ch i ld ren  in  c lass  

Always Often Sometimes Very little Never  

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 40% 60% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Bro Plenydd 95% 5% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Yr Eifl 88.5% 11.5% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Pentreuchaf 83% 17% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Chwilog 91% 0% 4.5% 0% 4.5%

39
Page 65



Percentage of  ch i ldren  who speak Welsh wi th  ch i ld ren  in  th e corr idor  and in  the  can teen  

Always Often Sometimes Very little Never  

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 60% 40% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Bro Plenydd 92% 8% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Yr Eifl 81% 4% 15% 0% 0%

Ysgol Pentreuchaf 75% 25% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Chwilog 91% 0% 4.5% 0% 4.5%

Percentage of  ch i ldren  who speak Welsh on  th e  schoo l  p layground  

Always Often Sometimes Very little Never  

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 0% 100% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Bro Plenydd 86% 14% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Yr Eifl 46% 31% 11.5% 11..5% 0%

Ysgol Pentreuchaf 50% 40% 10% 0% 0%

Ysgol Chwilog 77% 18% 0% 0% 5%

Percentage of  chi ldren  who speak Welsh con fid ent ly  

Very 

confidently  

Confidently Fairly 

confidently 

Not confident Not at all confident  

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Bro Plenydd 92% 5% 3% 0% 0%

Ysgol Yr Eifl 88% 8% 4% 0% 0%

Ysgol Pentreuchaf 82% 13% 5% 0% 0%

Ysgol Chwilog 95% 5% 0% 0% 0%

Percentage of  ch i ldren  who th in k i t  i s  importan t  to  sp eak  Welsh  

Very 

important 

Important Fairly 

important 

Not important Not at all important  

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Bro Plenydd 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Yr Eifl 96% 4% 0% 0% 0%

Ysgol Pentreuchaf 78% 18% 4% 0% 0%

Ysgol Chwilog 91% 9% 0% 0% 0%

The above information demonstrates that there is a high use of the Welsh Language in schools in 
the area. On the whole, most pupils in all schools use Welsh when speaking to teachers and staff. 
We see that there is slightly less informal use of the language - on the playground and with other 
pupils. That said, the data shows that Welsh is the main social language of schools in the area.  

All the children in Llanaelhaearn use Welsh to talk to the teachers, assistants and staff, as do the 
pupils of Ysgol Bro Plenydd. A higher percentage of children at Ysgol Bro Plenydd make informal use 
of Welsh - together in the classroom, and on the yard, and it is anticipated that transferring to Ysgol 
Bro Plenydd is likely to have a positive impact on the language and increases opportunities for the 
children of Llanaelhaearn to use Welsh when socialising. 

40
Page 66



Number of responses: 
Ysgol Llanaelhaearn: 5 
Ysgol Chwilog: 22 
Ysgol Pentreuchaf: 60 
Ysgol yr Eifl: 26 
Ysgol Bro Plenydd: 37 
Ysgol Llangybi: sampl too small  

2.6 After-school Activ i t ies  

Currently, no after-school activities are held at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn.  

Here is a summary of what other nearby schools offer after school: 

Llanaelhaearn Yr Eifl Chwilog Bro Plenydd Pentreuchaf Llangybi 

Play Groups 

(School holidays) 
✔ 

Aelwyd yr Urdd ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔

Coffee 

Morning/Evening 
✔ 

Cylch/Nursery 

School 
✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ 

Sports 

Club/Activity 
✔ ✔ ✔ 

It can be seen in the table above that many schools in the area, including Ysgol Bro Plenydd, hold Urdd clubs 

after school where pupils can take advantage of them as an additional opportunity to use the Welsh 

language. 

2.7 Community Activ it ies  

Currently, no community activities are held at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. The community hall of Y Ffôr is located 

on the Ysgol Bro Plenydd site and the School is also allowed to use this space. A number of activities are held 

at Y Ganolfan in Y Ffôr, which includes a hall, a computer room and snooker room. 

2.8 Welsh in Educat ion Strategic Plan 2017-2020 

Both schools, Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and Ysgol Bro Plenydd, implement the aims of Gwynedd Council's Welsh 

in Education Strategic Plan 2017-2020. This includes: 

 Setting a strong foundation for the Welsh language at the Early Years stage, ensuring that pupils 
from a non-Welsh speaking background are given the opportunity to learn Welsh as soon as 
possible. 

 During the Foundation Phase, building on the foundation established at the nursery and reception 
stages by continuing to develop pupils' grasp of Welsh, and begin the process of developing their 
English language skills. On a practical level, this means that most schools would start introducing 
English as a subject during the final term at the end of the Foundation Phase, concentrating on 
developing reading, speaking and writing skills in that language. Welsh will be the school's official 
assessment language at the end of the Foundation Phase.  

 In KS2, continue to develop the pupils' mastery of Welsh, paying attention to the development of 
their skills in both languages. Pupils' progress in Welsh and English are assessed at the end of the 
key stage. 

41
Page 67



Implementing the proposal would conform with the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan in Education 2017-20 

objectives.  

2.9 Addit ional Evidence 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

The Estyn report in 2015 states: 

"60% of pupils come from homes where Welsh is spoken" and that a "pattern of progress can be seen over 

the last three years in the percentage of pupils who attained the expected outcome in language at the end of 

both key stages". 

(https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Ysgol%20Gynradd%20Gymune

dol%20Llanaelhaearn%20eng.pdf) 

Ysgol Bro Plenydd 

The school website states: 

"Ysgol Bro Plenydd will aim at getting every child to speak Welsh fluently. We will also aim at fostering a 

feeling of being Welsh and respect towards Welsh in every child." 

The Estyn report in 2015 states: 

"A little over half of the pupils come from Welsh-speaking homes" and "Nearly all pupils use the Welsh 

language naturally and correctly across the school." 

(https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Ysgol%20Gynradd%20Gymune

dol%20Llanaelhaearn%20eng.pdf) 

Ysgol yr Eifl 

The Estyn report in 2014 states: 

"Most pupils come from homes in which Welsh is spoken as a first language. No pupils are from an ethnic 

minority background." 

(https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Inspection%20report%20Ysgol

%20Yr%20Eifl%202014%20.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf) 

Ysgol Llangybi 

The Estyn report in 2018 states: 

"Welsh is the main medium of the school’s life and work, and English is introduced to pupils in key stage 2." 

(https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Ysgol%20Llangybi%20en.pdf) 

Ysgol Pentreuchaf 

The Estyn report in 2019 states: 

"The school has a very strong Welsh ethos. Provision encourages pupils to make full use of the Welsh language 

in all aspects of school life. Pupils show pride towards the language and a clear appreciation of the culture 

and history of the local area. During their time at the school, most pupils develop as competent and confident 

bilingual learners, and make good progress." 

(https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Ysgol%20Pentreuchaf%20en.pd

f ) 

42
Page 68



Ysgol Chwilog 

The Estyn report in 2013 states: 

"Welsh is the school’s main language medium and the aim is to ensure that pupils are completely bilingual by 

the time they transfer to the secondary sector. 89% of pupils speak Welsh at home. There are no pupils from 

ethnic minority backgrounds at the school at present." 

(https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/www.estyn.gov.wales/files/documents/Inspection%20report%20Ysgol

%20Gynradd%20Chwilog%202013_0.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf.pdf)  

43
Page 69



3.  IMPACT ON THE WELSH LANGUAGE 

3.1 Options  

This assessment has been carried out on two models that would offer advantages compared to the school's 

current situation, namely federalisation with another school or schools, or to close the school and the 

pupils to be educated in an alternative school.  

Those models, in addition to doing nothing and continuing with the current situation, have been detailed 

below: 

 Do nothing - continue with the school's current situation.    
Keeping the current situation would mean that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would continue in the same way, with 

the same staffing structure. There would be a Strategic Headteacher for Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, 

Garndolbenmaen and Chwilog who would spend one day a week leading Ysgol Llanaelhaearn.   

The pupils would continue to be educated by a full-time teacher and senior assistant.     

 To federalise with another School / Schools   

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would form a formal, legal Federation with another nearby school or schools. This 

means that the schools continue separately but the Governing Bodies would be abolished, and a single 

Governing Body would be elected for the Federation. Geographically, the schools that would be reasonable 

to consider would be one or more of the following schools: Yr Eifl, Llangybi, Bro Plenydd, Chwilog and 

Pentreuchaf.   

The schools' budgets would remain separate.  

It is not envisaged that federalisation would have an impact on the Welsh language as Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

would continue, with opportunities to strengthen the leadership position, and collaboration opportunities 

for a school. 

 Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and send the pupils to be educated at an alternative school 

This means that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn will close, and the current pupils would transfer to Ysgol Bro Plenydd 

(the alternative school).    

The table on the following page includes an impact assessment of closing Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and 

educating pupils at Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Y Ffôr, on the Welsh language compared to the current situation.  

The table also outlines additional opportunities to strengthen the Welsh language and methods to mitigate 

any possible negative effect that could arise from the model.  

44
Page 70



WELSH LANGUAGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

Impact Criteria  Description 

Status of the 

impact and the 

work 

Have any measures been identified to mitigate any 

negative impact or to create more positive opportunities?  

Final impact 

(following 

mitigation 

methods) 

The language of the 

school 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is a Welsh medium school. The proposal to 

transfer pupils to Ysgol Bro Plenydd would not impact the language 

of the children's education as the alternative school is also a Welsh 

medium school. 

The proposal could strengthen opportunities for pupils to socialise 

through the medium of Welsh with their peers.  

Neutral 

No impact on 

the language of 

the school   

N/A N/A 

Access to Welsh 

medium education   

The alternative school already provides Welsh medium education, 

therefore, no additional benefit to this can be anticipated.  

Neutral 

No impact on 

the situation of 

the language   

N/A N/A  

Non-statutory 

provision   

Pupils would have access to a wider range of suitable resources, a 

higher supply in terms of staffing, and they would be part of a larger 

peer group of the same age. 
Positive  

The Local Authority and the Ysgol Bro Plenydd Governing 

Body could discuss methods to ensure that pupils can 

participate in extra-curricular activities.    

Positive 

Before/after school 

activities   

Pupils would have access to a wider range of suitable facilities 

outside the classroom, there would be more teachers and they 

would be part of larger peer group of the same age. 

A larger school offers a wider range of activities. It is possible that 

some parents will have to travel further (to Ysgol Bro Plenydd) to 

enable pupils to attend before and after school activities.  

Positive  

More 

opportunity to 

use the Welsh 

language  

The Local Authority and the Ysgol Bro Plenydd Governing 

Body could discuss methods to ensure that after-school 

activities are available and are as convenient as possible 

for all pupils. Positive 

Positive Neutral Negative 

45

P
age 71



Using Welsh in the 

community 

According to the 2011 Census, 74% of the population of the 

Llanaelhaearn ward were Welsh speakers. The alternative school is 

also within a ward that has a high percentage of Welsh speakers 

(80% in the Abererch ward). 

Welsh education would continue to be provided to the current 

pupils of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn at Ysgol Bro Plenydd. Increasing 

opportunities for pupils to socialise in Welsh and access to more 

activities could increase the use of the Welsh language outside the 

school and in the community.   

Positive  

More 

opportunity to 

use the Welsh 

language   

The Local Authority and the Governing Body of the 

alternative school could discuss methods to promote use 

of the Welsh language as a social medium to arrange 

activities outside the school.   

Positive 

46

P
age 72



4. CONCLUSION 

Having considered a range of potential options for the future, the Council is considering undertaking a 

statutory consultation on the proposal to close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn on 31 August 2020, and to teach the 

pupils at Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Y Ffôr, from 1 September 2020. As part of the statutory consultation process, 

local authorities are required to prepare a language impact assessment on a school reorganisation proposal 

- this is the purpose of this document.  

Our expectations are that all of the county’s pupils have ability-relevant and well-balanced bilingual skills to 
enable them to be full members of the bilingual society of which they are part. Proposals to change local 
arrangements would have to take full consideration of all linguistic impacts. Supporting and improving the 
use of the Welsh language as an educational and social language among children will be a key consideration 
when drawing up proposals within the area. 

No change to the linguistic situation of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is anticipated by continuing with the current 
situation or by federalising with another school or schools, as these options do not offer any change in terms 
of education provision in the village of Llanaelhaearn.  

The option of closing the school and sending the pupils to be educated at Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Y Ffôr, would 
mean that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn pupils are educated in a Welsh medium school, as they currently are, and at 
a school where the Welsh language is used socially by pupils. It is noted that the linguistic situation of Ysgol 
Bro Plenydd is very strong, with 83% of pupils coming from Welsh speaking homes. In comparison, 54% of 
Ysgol Llanaelhaearn pupils come from Welsh speaking homes.   

Having considered the information in this assessment, it was concluded that the proposal to close Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn and educating the pupils at Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Y Ffôr, would not have a negative impact on 
the language. As already noted, there is a higher percentage of children coming from Welsh-speaking homes 
at Ysgol Bro Plenydd. As a result, there will be more opportunities for Llanaelhaearn children to use the Welsh 
language with peers in class, and socially as well. It is recognised that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn has worked hard 
to develop the bilingual skills of the children and to promote a Welsh culture. Therefore, should this proposal 
be approved, it is noted that it is important to recognise the need to support and continue with this work.  

47
Page 73



1 

Well-being Assessment Report 
Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

- October 2019 

48
Page 74



Contents 

1.  INTRODUCTION 

2. HOW DOES THE PROPOSAL MEET GWYNEDD COUNCIL'S WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES? 

3. DOES THE PROPOSAL MEET THE GOALS OF THE WELL-BEING ACT? 

4. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES 

5. CONCLUSION 

49
Page 75



1. INTRODUCTION  

As a Council we are committed to the principles within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (2015) in order 
to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Gwynedd's communities. 
The Council's vision is: 

Our vision as a Council is to support all the people of Gwynedd to thrive and live full lives in their community, in 
a county which is one of the best counties to live in. 

The Council has adopted well-being objectives that complement the national well-being goals and ensure that 
Gwynedd residents: 

 Enjoy a happy, healthy and safe life 

 Have access to quality homes within their communities 

 Earn enough wages to support themselves and their families 

 Receive a first class education that will allow them to do what they want to do 

 To live with dignity and independence for as long as possible 

 Being able to live in a naturally Welsh speaking Society 

 Enjoy the beauty of the County's natural environment. 

The table below outlines the link between our well-being objectives and the national well-being goals. 

The Education Department has a role to promote the Act's well-being goals to the county's pupils through its 
activities and projects. The Act places a duty on public bodies in Wales to improve economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being. As part of the duty the Council has published well-being objectives that 
outline how it will improve well-being in the “Gwynedd Council Plan 2018-2023”. 

50
Page 76



1.1 Ysgol Llanaelhaearn Context  

On 4th June 2019, Gwynedd Council's Cabinet allowed the Education Department to hold formal meetings with 

the Governing Body of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, and other relevant stakeholders, to discuss a range of possible 

options for the future of the school. 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is located in the centre of the village of Llanaelhaearn which is between Pwllheli and 

Caernarfon. The school has a capacity of 53 from Nursery to Year 6, with 8 pupils aged 3-11 attending the school 

(September 2019). All pupils live in the Llanaelhaearn catchment area. 

The 8 pupils now attending the school are taught in two classes with 3 in the foundation phase and 5 in key 

stage 2. 

Between June and September 2019, a series of meetings were held to review the school's situation, at which a 

number of options were proposed and assessed for the future. 

Having considered and evaluated the 8 options, the Education Department considered in more detail two 

options, which would offer advantages over the current situation, which are to federalise with another school 

or schools, or closing the school and pupils to be educated at an alternative school. 

Those models, in addition to doing nothing and continuing the status quo, are detailed below. 

 Do nothing - continue with existing school structure. 

Maintaining the current system would mean that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would continue in the same way, with 

the same staffing structure. There would be a Strategic Head at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, Garndolbenmaen and 

Chwilog who would spend 1 day a week leading Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

The pupils would continue to be taught by a full-time teacher and a senior assistant. 

 To federalise with other school (s)

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would form a formal, legal federal model with a neighbouring school or other schools. 

Geographically, the schools that would be reasonable to consider would be one or more of the following; Yr 

Eifl, Llangybi, Bro Plenydd, Chwilog, or Pentreuchaf. 

This means that the schools remain separate but the Governing Bodies are abolished, and a single Governing 

Body is elected for the Federation. Schools budgets would remain as they are. 

Forming a formal federation with another school or schools would strengthen the school’s leadership and 

increase opportunities for pupils to collaborate and socialise with peers.

 Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and pupils to be educated at an alternative school

This means that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is closing, and current pupils transfer to Ysgol Bro Plenydd (the alternative 

school). 

Following detailed consideration of those options, a recommendation will be presented to Gwynedd Council's 

Cabinet on the 5th of November to close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and transfer the pupils to Ysgol Bro Plenydd, Y 

Ffôr. 

51
Page 77



2.HOW DOES THE PROPOSAL MEET GWYNEDD COUNCIL'S WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES?

Gwynedd Council's well-being objectives were considered when evaluating the options. 

Do nothing -  continue with the status quo. 

Objectives Details:

Enjoy a happy, healthy and safe life No effect 

Live in quality homes within their 
communities

No effect 

Earn a sufficient wage to support 
themselves and their families

No effect 

Receive education of the highest 
quality that will allow them to do 
what they want to do

No effect 

To live with dignity and 
independently for as long as 
possible

No effect 

Live in a naturally Welsh society No effect 

Take advantage beauty of the 
County's natural environment

No effect 

Federation with other School (s)
Objectives Details:

Enjoy a happy, healthy and safe life No effect 

Live in quality homes within their 
communities

No effect 

Earn a sufficient wage to support 
themselves and their families

No effect 

Receive education of the highest 
quality that will allow them to do 
what they want to do

No effect. Federalisation would be a process of formalising the current 
arrangement of collaboration, and although there will be minor changes such as 
a single Governing Body, and reducing the administrative burden on the 
Headteacher, it is presumed that the school would continue with the 
arrangement of collaborating with Ysgol Chwilog and Garndolbenmaen, or 
another school if they formed a federation with them. 

To live with dignity and 
independently for as long as 
possible

No effect 

Live in a naturally Welsh society No effect 

Take advantage beauty of the 
County's natural environment

No effect 

Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and pupils to be educated at an alternative school
Objectives Details:

Enjoy a happy, healthy and safe life No effect 

Live in quality homes within their 
communities

No effect 

Earn a sufficient wage to support 
themselves and their families

Introducing this option could result in staff redundancy.  
A detailed staffing policy has been developed by Gwynedd Council in 
conjunction with Trade Unions and head teachers. The policy will form the basis 
of any redundancies arising from any proposal. 
Clear and open communication will be essential to the successful 
implementation of any proposals. 

Receive education of the highest 
quality that will allow them to do 
what they want to do

Ensuring that the pupils receive a first class education will be at the heart of the 
proposal, ensuring that they receive at least the same quality and standard in 
the alternative school. 

52
Page 78



To live with dignity and 
independently for as long as 
possible

No effect 

Live in a naturally Welsh society A language impact assessment has been undertaken. Pupils at Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn live in a Welsh community and are educated through the medium 
of Welsh, as Ysgol Bro Plenydd. The linguistic impact assessment notes that the 
position of the alternative school is very strong, with 83% of pupils coming from 
Welsh-speaking homes. By comparison, 54% of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn's pupils 
come from Welsh-speaking homes. 

Take advantage beauty of the 
County's natural environment

No effect 

53
Page 79



3. DOES THE PROPOSAL MEET THE GOALS OF THE WELL-BEING ACT? 

Aim Does the proposal contribute to this aim? Measures to mitigate negative impacts on this aim:

A prosperous Wales 
An innovative society using resources efficiently and 
proportionately, educated people, creating wealth and 
work. 

Implementing the proposal to close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and 
educate the children at Ysgol Bro Plenydd means that the pupils 
develop experiences through socialising with other children and 
will receive a quality education using resources efficiently. 

This proposal could result in staff losing their jobs. 

Staff and Union representatives will be consulted 
specifically as part of the statutory consultation period. 
Gwynedd Council has developed a detailed staffing 
policy, in conjunction with Trade Unions and head 
teachers. Any redundancies as a result of this proposal 
will have to be in line with that policy. Clear and open 
communication will play a central role in implementing 
any proposals. 

A resilient Wales 
A nation that maintains and enhances biodiversity and 
healthy ecosystems that support resilience and the 
ability to adapt to change (for example climate change). 

The proposal is unlikely to have an impact on this aim. No effect 

A healthier Wales 
A society where people's physical and mental well-being 
is as good as possible and people understand what 
affects their health. 

The proposal is unlikely to have an impact on this aim. No effect 

A more equal Wales 
A society that enables people to fulfil their potential 
irrespective of background or circumstances (including 
their socio-economic background and circumstances). 

The education and experiences of the catchment area pupils 
are at the forefront of the proposal. Our aim is to ensure that 
pupils achieve their potential regardless of their background. 

An equality assessment has been undertaken and it is 
concluded that implementation of the proposal would 
not impact on equality, and that all pupils and families 
have equal opportunity irrespective of their background 
or socio-economic circumstances. The alternative school 
operates a robust equality and anti-bullying policy. 

A Wales of cohesive communities 
Attractive, viable and safe communities with good 
connections 

The community of Llanaelhaearn is strong and active and it is 
recognised that closing the school would have some negative 
impact on the community.  

An assessment of the likely impact on the community has 
been undertaken where it is noted that although there is 
some negative impact on the community, but 7 pupils 
living in the Llanaelhaearn catchment area already attend 
Ysgol Bro Plenydd, and therefore there is already contact 
between the school and the wider area. The assessment 
also notes that discussions would be held to discuss the 
possibility that Ysgol Bro Plenydd's community activities 
includes the community of Llanaelhaearn. 
.  

54

P
age 80



A vibrant Wales and culture where the Welsh language 
thrives 
A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage 
and the Welsh language and encourages people to 
participate in the arts, sports and leisure activities.  

Implementing this proposal will mean that pupils at Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn will continue to be educated in a Welsh medium 
school. 

The language impact assessment notes that there would 
be no change to this aim by realising the proposal as a 
result of the Welshness of the Llanaelhaearn area and 
other nearby areas. 

Wales is globally responsible. 
A nation that, in doing anything to improve the 
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being 
of Wales, is considering whether doing such a thing 
could contribute positively to global well-being. 

The proposal is unlikely to have an impact on this aim. No effect  

4. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES 

Sustainable Development Principles Does the proposal consider the principle?

Long term 
The importance of balancing short-term needs with the 
need to safeguard the ability to meet long-term needs is 
also important. 

There has been a pattern of declining numbers since 2012, with projections showing that numbers will reduce further, and 
so it shows that the current challenging situation facing the school will be long-term and need to be reviewed as soon as 
possible. 

Suspension 
How action to prevent problems from occurring or 
escalating can help public bodies achieve their 
objectives. 

Pupils' needs will be prioritised at all stages of the process. 

Integration 
Consider how the public body's well-being objectives 
may affect each of the well-being goals, all of its other 
objectives, or the objectives of other public bodies. 

A critical situation of low numbers at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn has led to a review of the school's position for the future. 

Collaboration 
Collaboration with any other person (or different 
departments within the organisation itself) could help 
the organization meet its well-being goals. 

A number of other departments have had input during the process and whilst evaluating the possible options. In addition, 
relevant stakeholders of the school have been involved in the process.   

Contents 
The importance of involving people with an interest in 
achieving the well-being goals, and ensuring that those 
people reflect the diversity of the area they serve. 

The proposal will be subject to public consultation, and consultation for children. 
The process to date has included local review meetings to engage with the relevant stakeholders of the school. These 
meetings have involved the Governing Body, staff, and parents of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

55

P
age 81



5. CONCLUSION 

Following consideration and assessment in accordance with the requirements of the well-being act, the 7 well-
being goals of the Act, together with the Council's well-being objectives were considered and it was concluded 
that the proposal meets the requirements. This proposal will allow us to respond to and meet the needs of the 
children today, and also strengthen their future well-being.  

It is acknowledged that this proposal leads to the loss of a school in the Llanaelhaearn community, however a 
large number of the children living within the school catchment area already attend other schools, including the 
alternative school and therefore some engagement between both communities already exists. Every effort will 
be made to mitigate the effects on the community by encouraging engagement between the communities. 
Should the proposal be approved, discussions will be facilitated to discuss the possibility for Ysgol Bro Plenydd’s 
community activities extend to the community of Llanaelhaearn, where appropriate.  

The proposal will ensure that the children of the area are educated on a suitable site and in a naturally Welsh 
society, increasing opportunities for socialising and working with others and giving them a fair chance to flourish 
among their peers. 

56
Page 82



Equality Assessment Report 
Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

- October 2019 

57
Page 83



Contents 

1. INTRODUCTION 

2. OPTIONS 

3. IMPACT OF ANY CHANGE 

4. ANALYSIS OF RESULTS 

5. CONCLUSION 

58
Page 84



1. INTRODUCTION  

1.1 Ysgol Llanaelhaearn Context  

On 4th June 2019, Gwynedd Council's Cabinet allowed the Education Department to hold formal 

meetings with the Governing Body of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, and other relevant stakeholders, to discuss 

a range of possible options for the future of the school. 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is located in the centre of the village of Llanaelhaearn which is between Pwllheli 

and Caernarfon. The school has a capacity from Nursery to Year 6 of 53, with 8 pupils aged 3-11 

attending the school (September 2019). All pupils live in the Llanaelhaearn catchment area. 

The 8 pupils attending the school are taught in two classes with 3 in the foundation phase and 5 in key 

stage 2. 

Between June and September 2019, meetings were held with the Governing Body and other relevant 

stakeholders to review the school's position, where a number of options were put forward to consider 

the future of the school. 

59
Page 85



2. OPTIONS

During the local meetings, a range of options were presented and evaluated for the future of the 
school.  

Following a detailed assessment of 8 options, it was concluded that two options offered advantages 
compared to the school’s current situation.  

Those models in addition to doing nothing and continuing the status quo, are detailed below:

 Do nothing - continue with the current structure of the school.

Retaining the current system would mean that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would continue in the same way, 
with the same staffing structure. There would be a Strategic Head at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, 
Garndolbenmaen and Chwilog who would spend one day a week leading Ysgol Llanaelhaearn.  

The pupils would continue to be taught by a full-time teacher and a senior assistant.  

• To federalise with other School(s) 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn would form a formal, legal Federation with one or more neighbouring Schools. 
This means that the schools remain separate but the Governing Bodies are abolished, and a single 
Governing Body is elected for the Federation. Geographically, the schools that would be reasonable to 
consider would be one or more of Yr Eifl, Llangybi, Bro Plenydd, Chwilog and Pentreuchaf schools. The 
schools budgets would remain separate. Forming a formal federation with another school or schools 
would strengthen the school’s leadership and increase opportunities for pupils to collaborate and 
socialise with peers.  

By introducing a federal model with another school to Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, it is not envisaged that the 
change would have an impact on equality characteristics, mainly as the school would remain in 
Llanaelhaearn, implementing the same equality and anti-bullying policies. 

• Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and pupils to be educated at an alternative school 

This means that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is closing, and current pupils transfer to Ysgol Bro Plenydd (the 
alternative school). 

Following a more detailed assessment of these options, it is concluded that the proposal to close 
Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and transfer the pupils to Ysgol Bro Plenydd responded to the main challenges 
facing the school, namely low numbers of pupils and small classes. 

60
Page 86



3. IMPACT OF ANY CHANGE

The Council must have due regard to the impact any changes will have on people with equality 
characteristics below. What impact will the new policy / service or proposed changes have on these 
features?  

Features What kind 
of impact? *

In what way? What is the evidence? 

Race (including 
nationality)

None  It is anticipated that implementing the proposal would not affect 
people on racial grounds. Implementing the option will mean 
that everyone of any race is treated according to their need. 
Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, and its neighbouring schools operate an 
equalities policy which states that they: 

“…opposes to all types of prejudice and discrimination and 
acknowledges that pupils have different needs, requirements 
and objectives.” 

The Welsh 
language

None The children of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn are educated through the 
medium of Welsh, and this would not change by implementing 
the proposed option.  

A Welsh Language impact assessment has been conducted on 
the proposal.  

Disability None Change is not anticipated for disabled people.  

Should the proposal to close Llanaelhaearn school and educate 
the pupils at Ysgol Bro Plenydd be approved, the number of 
disabled pupils attending the schools will need to be monitored. 
Depending on the disability the schools will have to adapt their 
plans for giving access to pupils with specific disabilities. As a 
result, the authority will also need to ensure that relevant 
departments are aware of changes and obtain the necessary 
input. An assessment of the accessibility of the proposed site 
would be undertaken in accordance with specific situations. 

Gender None It is anticipated that implementing the proposal would not affect 
people on the grounds of gender. Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and its 
neighbouring schools operate an equalities policy which states 
that the school: 

“…opposes to all types of prejudice and discrimination and 
acknowledges that pupils have different needs, requirements 
and objectives.”

Age Any effect 
would be 
minimal 
(positive or 
negative) 

It is anticipated that implementing the proposal would not affect 
people on the basis of age. Implementing the option would 
mean that everyone of any age is treated the same. Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn and its neighbouring schools operate an equalities 
policy which states that the school: 

61
Page 87



“…opposes to all types of prejudice and discrimination and 
acknowledges that pupils have different needs, requirements 
and objectives.”

Sexual 
orientation 

None It is anticipated that implementing the proposal would not affect 
people on the grounds of sexual orientation. Implementing the 
option would mean that everyone of any sexual orientation is 
treated according to their need. Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and its 
neighbouring schools operate an equalities policy which states 
that the school: 

“…opposes to all types of prejudice and discrimination and 
acknowledges that pupils have different needs, requirements 
and objectives.”

Religion or 
belief (or lack of 
belief) 

None It is anticipated that implementing the proposal would not affect 
people on the grounds of religion or belief. Implementing the 
option would mean that everyone of any religion or belief is 
treated according to their need. Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and its 
neighbouring schools operate an equalities policy which states 
that the school: 

“…opposes to all types of prejudice and discrimination and 
acknowledges that pupils have different needs, requirements 
and objectives.” 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and all surrounding schools (Yr Eifl, Llangybi, 
Pentreuchaf, Bro Plenydd, Chwilog) are community schools, and 
there is no intention to change this. 

Gender 
Reassignment 

None It is anticipated that implementing the proposal would not affect 
people on the grounds of gender reassignment Implementing 
the option would mean that everyone is treated failry. Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn and its neighbouring schools operate an equalities 
policy which states that the school: 

“…opposes to all types of prejudice and discrimination and 
acknowledges that pupils have different needs, requirements 
and objectives.” 

Pregnancy and 
maternity 

None Implementing the proposal would not affect any pregnant 
person, whether staff or parent, as both schools implement the 
same policy. 

Marriage and 
civil partnership 

None The implementation of the proposal would not affect anyone 
married or in a civil partnership, as both schools implement the 
same policy.  

62
Page 88



The Council has a duty under the Equality Act 2010 to make a positive contribution to a fairer society 

by promoting equality and good relations in its activities in the areas of age, gender, sexual 

orientation, religion, race, transgender, disability and pregnancy and maternity. 

General Duties 
of the Equality 
Act 

Does it make 
an impact? * 

In what way? What is the evidence? 

Remove illegal 
discrimination, 
harassment and 
victimisation 

No Implement the alternative school's equality and anti-bullying 
policies to eliminate unlawful discrimination and 
harassment. 
The Education Department’s standard policies are 
implemented by both schools.  

Promote equal 
opportunities

No The aim is to promote equal opportunities and promote the 
alternative school to continue to follow equality policies and 
procedures. 

Encouraging 
good 
relationships 

Yes The aim is to promote equal opportunities and promote the 
alternative school to continue to follow equality policies and 
procedures. 

As some children living in the Llanaelhaearn catchment area 
already attend Ysgol Bro Plenydd, a link between the school 
and the Llanaelhaearn community already exists. However, 
opportunities are promoted for the school to build on links 
with the Llanaelhaearn community. 

63
Page 89



4. ANALYSING THE RESULTS

4.1 Is the proposal therefore likely to have a significant, positive impact on any of the equality 
characteristics or the General Duty? What is the reason for this? 

The proposal is unlikely to have a significant impact on any of the equality characteristics or the 
General Duty. The alternative school has equalities and anti-bullying policies, as Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn currently has. 

4.2 Is the proposal therefore likely to have a significant, negative impact on any of the equality 
characteristics or the General Duty? What is the reason for this? 

The proposal is unlikely to have a significant impact on any of the equality characteristics or the 
General Duty. The alternative school has equalities and anti-bullying policies, as Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn currently has. 

4.3 What should be done? 

Choose one of the following: 

Continue with policy / service as it is sound ✓
Adjust the policy to remove any barriers 

Prevent and remove the policy as the adverse effects are too great 

Continue with policy as any adverse impact can be justified 

4.4 If continuing with the plan, what steps will you take to reduce or mitigate any negative impacts? 

Although the loss of a local school could have a negative impact on community cohesion, this 
will need to be mitigated by encouraging links between the alternative school and the local 
community of Llanaelhaearn. 

4.5  Monitoring - what action will you take to monitor the impact and effectiveness of the policy or 
service (action plan)? 

The school (and their Governing Body) is responsible for implementing its equality policy and 
the Authority, through its usual support and monitoring procedures, will ensure compliance. 

64
Page 90



5. CONCLUSION

It is concluded that implementing the proposal to close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and transfer the pupils to 
Ysgol Bro Plenydd would not affect equality, whether as a characteristic or a general duty. Robust 
equality and anti-bullying policies are implemented by the alternative school which would extend to 
Llanaelhaearn pupils and parents. Should some be identified following the consultation (subject to 
Cabinet decision), then the Council will consider the necessary actions. 

65
Page 91



 

                                                         
 

Arolwg o Anghenion Tai Lleol 

Cyngor Cymuned Llanaelhaearn  a Hwylusydd Tai Gwledig 
 

Annwyl Breswylydd,                                                            11 Hydref 2019     

A oes angen am dai ar gyfer pobl leol yn ardal Llanaelhaearn? 
 

Fel Hwylusydd Tai Gwledig rwyf wedi cael cais gan y Cyngor Sir i ganfod beth yw’r angen am dai 

ar gyfer pobl leol yn ardal Cyngor Cymuned Llanaelhaearn.      
     

Fel hwylusydd tai gwledig annibynnol hoffwn eich gwahodd i Ddiwrnod Agored er mwyn 

cadarnhau os ydych chi neu rywun arall yr ydych yn ei adnabod-   
 

a) angen symud i dŷ mwy addas ar gyfer eich / eu hanghenion yn y 5 mlynedd nesaf, 

b) eisiau rhoi’ch barn ar y math o ddatblygiad posib ar safle ger Lon yr Eifl Llanaelhaearn 

c) eisiau cefnogi datblygiad tai wrth gynnal y gymuned a'r ysgol leol. 

 

Gellir cael mwy o wybodaeth am y gwahanol fathau o ddaliadaeth tai a chofrestru ar y 
wefan yma www.taiteg.org.uk  

Mae cyfle hefyd i drafod eiddo gwag, adnewyddu tai a hunan-adeiladu. Os hoffech sgwrs i drafod 

yr uchod cysylltwch â mi ar 01286 889292 neu e-bost 

 HTG@grwpcynefin.org  

Diolch i chi, ac edrychaf ymlaen at eich gweld yn y Diwrnod Agored. 

Yn gywir,      

Arfon Hughes Uwch Hwylusydd Tai Gwledig. 

Mae Diwrnod Agored i ddatgan eich angen ac i chi roi eich barn yn digwydd ar  

Ddydd Mercher 23ain o Hydref 2019 rhwng 3:00yp-6:00yh yn  

Neuadd Babell Llanaelhaearn 

Mae croeso cynnes i chi ddod draw i’n gweld rhwng yr amseroedd yma. 

Cyngor Cymuned 

Llanaelhaearn 

Community Council 

Page 92

http://www.taiteg.org.uk/
mailto:HTG@grwpcynefin.org
837927_1
Text Box
Atodiad C



 

                                                      
    

Local Housing Needs Survey 

Llanaelhaearn Community Council and Rural Housing Enabler  
Dear Resident,                                                               11 October 2019     

Is there a need for housing for local people in the Llanaelhaearn area? 
 

As a Rural Housing Enabler, I have been asked by the County Council to find out what the 

local need for housing is in the Llanaelhaearn Community Council area. 

As an independent rural housing enabler I would like to invite you to an Open Day in order to 

confirm if you or someone else you know – 

a) needs to move to more suitable accommodation for your / their needs in the next 5 years 

b) would like to comment on a possible development on a site near Lón yr Eifl Llanaelhaearn. 

c) want to support a housing development while sustaining the community and local school.  

 

More information on the type of different tenure, and to register need, can be found on 

this website www.taiteg.org.uk  

There is also an opportunity to discuss empty properties, renovation or self-build. If you 

would like a chat to discuss the above, please contact me on 01286 889292 or email 

HTG@grwpcynefin.org 

Thank you, and I look forward to seeing you at the Open Day. 

Yours sincerely  

Arfon Hughes Senior Rural Housing Enabler. 

The Open Day to express your need and to gather your views is being held on  

Wednesday 23rd October 2019 between 3:00pm-6:00pm at  

Neuadd Babell Llanaelhaearn 

There is a warm welcome for you to pop in to see us between these times 

Cyngor Cymuned  

Llanaelhaearn    

Community Council 

 

Page 93

http://www.taiteg.org.uk/
mailto:HTG@grwpcynefin.org


A oes angen am dai ar 
gyfer pobl leol yn ardal  

Llanaelhaearn? 

Dewch i ddweud wrthym am eich 

angen am dŷ neu i roi eich barn ar 

safle arfaethedig a dyfodol y gym-

uned a’r ysgol.   

    Dydd Mercher — 23. 10. 2019 — Wednesday  

        3:00 — 6:00 yh / pm  
   Canolfan Y Babell / Community Centre — Llanaelhaearn 

Come and tell us about your 

housing needs or to give your views 

on a proposed site and the future 

of the community and school.  

Cyngor Cymuned  

Llanaelhaearn 

Community Council 

Is there a housing need 
for local people in the 
Llanaelhaearn  area? 

A warm 

welcome 

to All 

Croeso 

cynnes i 

Bawb  

Page 94



Atodiad Ch 

 

Pecyn Cefndirol 

Background Pack 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

Cyfarfod Lleol 1 – 26 Mehefin 2019   Local Meeting 1 – 26 June 2019 

Agenda 1 Agenda 

Cyflwyniad 2 Presentation 

Cofnodion y Cyfarfod - Cymraeg 5 Meeting Minutes - Welsh 

Cofnodion y Cyfarfod – Saesneg 8 Meeting Minutes - English 

Cyfarfod Lleol 2 – 9 Medi 2019   Local Meeting 2 – 9 September 2019 

Agenda 11 Agenda 

Cyflwyniad Cymraeg 12 Welsh Presentation 

Cyflwyniad Saesneg 16 English Presentation 

Cofnodion y Cyfarfod - Cymraeg 20 Meeting Minutes - Welsh 

Cofnodion y Cyfarfod – Saesneg 24 Meeting Minutes - English 

Cyfarfod Lleol 3 – 30 Medi 2019  Local Meeting 3 – 30 September 2019 

Agenda 29 Agenda 

Cyflwyniad Cymraeg 30 Welsh Presentation 

Cyflwyniad Saesneg 32 English Presentation 

Cofnodion y Cyfarfod - Cymraeg 36 Meeting Minutes - Welsh 

Cofnodion y Cyfarfod – Saesneg 38 Meeting Minutes - English 

Mewnbwn yn dilyn Cyfarfodydd Lleol 40 / 41 Input following Local Meetings 

 
Page 95



 

 

 
 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 
 

19:30 – 21:00, Dydd Llun/Monday, 24 Mehefin/June 2019 
Canolfan Y Babell, Llanaelhaearn 

 

   

1. 

 

CROESO (Garem Jackson, Pennaeth Addysg) 

Welcome (Garem Jackson, Head of Education) 

   

2. 
 

GEIRIAU AGORIADOL YR AELOD CABINET DROS ADDYSG (Cyng. Cemlyn Williams) 

OPENING WORDS FROM CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION (Cllr. Cemlyn Williams) 

   

3. 
 

CYFLWYNIAD AR Y SEFYLLFA BRESENNOL (Gwern ap Rhisiart, Swyddog Addysg Ardal Dwyfor a 
Meirionnydd)  

  PRESENTATION ON THE CURRENT SITUATION (Gwern ap Rhisiart, Dwyfor and Meirionnydd Area 
Education Officer) 

 

4.  TRAFODAETH 

DISCUSSION 

 

5. 

 
 

 

6. 

 CAMAU NESAF  

NEXT STEPS 

 

CLOI 

CLOSE 
 

Cyfarfod Adolygu Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 
Ysgol Llanaelhaearn Review Meeting 

 

1
Page 96



Adolygu Sefyllfa Ysgol Llanaelhaearn

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

Agenda

• Geiriau agoriadol yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg 
Cabinet Member for Education’s opening words

• Y sefyllfa bresennol  
The current situation

• Trafodaeth  
Discussion

• Camau nesaf  
Next steps

Cyng. Cemlyn Rees Williams

• Ein bwriad heddiw yw i adolygu sefyllfa bresennol Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, 
oherwydd pryder yn y nifer o ddisgyblion ar y gofrestr.

Our aim today is to review Ysgol Llanaelhaearn’s current situation, due to concerns over 
the number of pupils on the register.

• Amcan y cyfarfod yw i lunio a thrafod gwahanol opsiynau posibl ar gyfer dyfodol 
yr ysgol.

The purpose of this meeting is to draw up and discuss possible options for the school’s 
future.

• Mae’n bwysig i ni ein bod yn derbyn eich mewnbwn chi yn y broses.

It is important that we receive your input in the process.

• Byddwn yn cynnal un neu ddau gyfarfod pellach er mwyn cytuno ar opsiwn 
ffafredig i mi ei gyflwyno i Gabinet Cyngor Gwynedd yn yr Hydref.

We will hold one or two further meetings to agree on a preferred option to present       
to Gwynedd Council’s Cabinet in the Autumn. 

Y Sefyllfa Bresennol / The Current Situation

Gwern ap Rhisiart 
Swyddog Addysg Ardal

Niferoedd / Numbers

Nifer ar y gofrestr
Medi 2018 (M – Bl6)

Number on roll        
September 2018 (N – Yr6)

Capasiti Llawn
(M – Bl6)

Full Capacity   
(N – Yr6)

Nifer o Lefydd Gwag
2018 (M – Bl6)

Number of Surplus Places
2018 (N – Yr6)

% o Lefydd Gwag
2018 (M – Bl6)

% of Surplus Places
2018 (N – Yr6)

11 53 42 79%

Ffynhonnell : Cyfrifiad Medi 2018 
Source: Census September 2018

Niferoedd / Numbers 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Niferoedd Disgyblion Ysgol Llanaelhaearn
Pupil Numbers at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn

Niferoedd Capasiti

Ffynhonnell: Gwefan Cyngor Gwynedd

Source: Gwynedd Council Website

2
Page 97



Niferoedd / Numbers

Dalgylch Cartref /
Home Catchment Area

(Medi / September 2018)

Llanaelhaearn
Arall
Other

Cyfanswm 
Ysgol 
M-Bl6

School Total
N-Yr6

M
yn

yc
h

u
 Y

s
g

o
l/

 
S
c
h
o
o
lA

tt
e
n
d
in
g

(M
e

d
i /

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

2
0

1
8

)

Llanaelhaearn 11 - 11

Arall
Other

28

Cyfanswm Dalgylch
Catchment Area Total

39 Ffynhonnell: Cyfrifiad Medi 2018
Source: Census September 2018

Maint dosbarthiadau 2018/19 Class sizes

Ysgol
School

Meithrin
Nursery

Derbyn
Reception

Bl 1
Yr 1

Bl2
Yr 2

Bl 3
Yr 3

Bl 4
Yr 4

Bl 5
Yr 5

Bl 6
Yr 6

Cyfanswm
Total

Llanaelhaearn 0 3 1 2 0 2 1 2 11

Ffynhonnell: Cyfrifiad Medi 2018

Source: Census September 2018

Nifer y dosbar-

thiadau

No. of Classes

Dosbarth mwyaf

Largest Class

Dosbarth lleiaf

Smallest Class

Maint dosbarth ar

gyfartaledd

Average Class Size

2 6 5 6

Rhagamcanion / Projections

• Dengys y rhagamcanion y bydd 8 disgybl yn mynychu’r ysgol yn 2021  
Projections indicate that numbers at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn will decrease 
to 8 pupils by September 2021

• Gwyddom bellach mai 8 fydd yn mynychu’r ysgol ym mis Medi 2019  
It is now apparent that 8 pupils will be attending the school in 
September 2019.

M 0 1 2 3 4 5 6
Cyfanswm 

Total
Medi 2018
September 2018

0 3 1 2 0 2 1 2 11

Amcangyfrif Medi 2019
September 2019 Projection

2 0 3 1 2 0 2 1 11

Amcangyfrif Medi 2020
September 2020 Projection

0 2 0 3 1 2 0 2 10

Amcangyfrif Medi 2021
September 2021 Projection

0 0 2 0 3 1 2 0 8

Ffynhonnell: Cyfrifiad Medi 2018

Source: Census September 2018

Ysgol

School

CYLLIDEB 2019-20 / 2019-20 BUDGET

Dyraniad /

Allocation

Gwarchodaeth lleiafswm staffio* /

Minimum staffing protection*

Cyfanswm cyllideb /

Total budget

Cyfartaledd y Disgybl /

Average per pupil

Llanaelhaearn £95,635 £43,744 £139,379 £12,671

Cyfartaledd Ysgolion

Cynradd y Sir /

County Average Primary

£404,000 £3,884

* Mae'r polisi gwarchodaeth yn sicrhau o leiaf pennaeth ac athro/athrawes ym mhob Ysgol sydd gyda mwy na 15 disgybl, a 
pennaeth a cymhorthydd dosbarth mewn ysgolion sydd gyda llai na 15 disgybl.

*The minimum staffing protection policy ensures a minimum of headteacher and teacher at every school which has more than 15 
pupils, and a headteacher and a classroom assistant in a school with fewer than 15 pupils.

Ffynhonnell: Dyraniad Cyllidol Ysgolion Cynradd 2019-20
Source: Primary Schools Budget Allocation 2019-20

Cyllideb Ysgol 2019-20 / 
School budget 2019-20

• Diffyg o £14,482 yng nghyllideb eleni / £14,482 deficit in this year’s budget

• Defnyddio balansau i fantoli’r gyllideb eleni / Balances used to offset the deficit this
year

• Wedi hyn, ni fydd y gyllideb yn ddigonol i gynnal y strwythur staffio presennol/ From
2020/21, the budget will not sustain the current staffing structure

Sefyllfa staffio / Staffing situation 

Rôl / Role

Pennaeth /
Headteacher

1 diwrnod yr wythnos 
1 day a week

Athrawes / 
Teacher

Llawn amser - 80% arweinyddiaeth / 20% athrawes 
Full time - 80% leadership / 20% teacher

Uwch-gymhorthydd / 
Senior Classroom Assistant

34 awr yr wythnos
34 hours a week

Cymhorthydd ADY / 
SEN Assistant

(grant ychwanegol)
(additional grant)

Llanw / 
Supply

1 diwrnod yr wythnos
1 day a week

Cyflwr yr adeilad / Building condition

• Cafodd yr archwiliad cyflwr adeilad diwethaf ei gynnal ym mis Ebrill 2018  

The Building was last inspected in April 2018

• Adnabuwyd gwerth £100mil o waith bryd hynny

£100k worth of work was identified at that time

• Cyflwr wedi gwaethygu ers yr archwiliad diwethaf ac felly costau yn 
debygol o fod yn uwch 

Condition has deteriorated since the last inspection and costs are likely 
to be higher 

• Gwaith cynnal a chadw rhaglenedig ac adweithiol wedi parhau fel yr 
arfer 

Reactive and planned maintenance has continued as usual

3
Page 98



Crynodeb / Summary :

Prif heriau Ysgol Llanaelhaearn
Key challenges

1 Nifer isel o ddisgyblion
Low pupil numbers

2 Cost y disgybl dair gwaith yn uwch na chyfartaledd y Sir
Cost per pupil three times the County average

3 Cyllideb ddim yn ddigonol wedi diwedd y flwyddyn ariannol bresennol i 
gynnal y strwythur staffio
Next year, the budget won’t be sufficient to maintain the current staffing 
structure

Trafodaeth / Discussion

• Bydd y Cyngor yn ymgeisio i ystyried pob opsiwn posib i adfer y 
sefyllfa argyfyngus bresennol /  
The Authority aspires to consider every possible option to resolve the 
current critical situation

• I’r perwyl hwn, rydym yn awyddus ein bod yn derbyn mewnbwn a 
gwybodaeth lleol ynglŷn a datrysiadau posib / 
To this end, we are eager to receive local knowledge and input 
regarding possible solutions 

Trafodaeth / Discussion

Dyma rai o’r opsiynau y byddwn yn eu asesu/ 
We will be assessing the viability of the following options:

1 Parhau gyda’r sefyllfa bresennol 
Continue with the current arrangements

2 Ffedereiddio gydag ysgol arall 
To create a Federation with a nearby school

3 Cau Ysgol Llanaelhaearn a symud y disgyblion i ysgol amgen 
Discontinue Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and relocate pupils to an alternative
school

Camau nesaf / Next steps

• Gorffennaf 2019 - Cyflwyno unrhyw gwestiynau neu sylwadau 
ychwanegol erbyn 1 Gorffennaf:

ModerneiddioAddysg@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

• Medi 2019 - Cyfarfod i drafod canlyniadau asesu’r opsiynau, a 
chyfarfod pellach i gytuno a phenderfynu ar opsiwn ffafredig.

• Hydref 2019 - Aelod Cabinet i gyflwyno opsiwn ffafredig i 
Gabinet Cyngor Gwynedd ei ystyried.

Camau nesaf / Next steps

• July 2019 – Present additional questions or comments by 1 st July:

ModernisingEducation@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

• September 2019 – Meeting discuss the options assessment. 
Further meeting to agree and decide a preferred option.

• October 2019 – Cabinet Member for Education to present the 
preferred option to Gwynedd Council’s Cabinet for 
consideration. 

4
Page 99



  

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

Cyfarfod o: Adolygu Ysgol Llanaelhaearn  Dyddiad:  24/06/2019       7:30yh 
Lleoliad: Canolfan y Babell, Llanaelhaearn 

 

Presennol: Swyddogion: 
Gwern ap Rhisiart (GapRh); Garem Jackson (GJ); Cyng. Cemlyn Williams (CW); Ffion Jones (FfJ); 
Betsan Williams (BW); 
 
Ar ran Llywodraethwyr Ysgol Llanaelhaearn:  
9 Aelod 
 
Rhieni/Teulu 
7 Aelod 
 

Ymddiheuriadau: 2 Aelod 

 

Rhif 
Eitem 

Eitem / Pwnc Gweithrediad 

1.  CROESO 

 Croesawyd pawb i’r cyfarfod gan Garem Jackson, Pennaeth Addysg Gwynedd a 
diolchwyd am bresenoldeb pawb.  

 Cafwyd cyflwyniad byr ar bwrpas y cyfarfod yma. Cadarnhawyd fod Y Cabinet wedi 
cymeradwyo i adolygu sefyllfa a dyfodol yr ysgol 4 Mehefin 2019. 

 Eglurwyd y bydd Swyddogion Addysg yn ceisio ateb unrhyw gwestiynau a bydd cyfle 
ar y diwedd i glywed barn pawb. 

2.  

GEIRIAU 
AGORIADOL YR 

AELOD 
CABINET DROS 

ADDYSG 

 Cafwyd cyflwyniad pellach gan y Cynghorydd Cemlyn Williams. Eglurwyd bydd y 
Cynghorydd yn cyflwyno'r opsiwn ffafredig i Gabinet yn Hydref yn dilyn cyfarfodydd 
pellach ym mis Medi. 

3.  

CYFLWYNIAD 
AR Y SEFYLLFA 

BRESENNOL 

 Aethpwyd drwy’r cyflwyniad â oedd yn dangos sefyllfa bresennol yr ysgol 
(gwybodaeth Medi 2018). 

 Eglurwyd bydd cyfnod ar ôl y cyfarfod i roi barn a gofyn cwestiynau gyda sylwadau i’w 
derbyn erbyn 1af Gorffennaf. Bydd swyddogion yn mynd nôl i’r cyfarfod ym Medi 
gydag atebion a chanfyddiadau. 

 Aethpwyd drwy heriau presennol yr ysgol ac yna drwy opsiynau sydd wedi codi ar hyn 
o bryd fydd yn cael eu hasesu. Mae cyfle i gael trafodaeth a dod fyny gyda mwy o 
opsiynau posib ar ddiwedd y cyfarfod. 

4.  TRAFODAETH 

 Eglurwyd bod yn rhaid i’r Cyngor fynd drwy bob un opsiwn posib a'i asesu. 

 Codwyd mater ar ran y Llywodraethwyr y dylai’r camau hyn fod wedi eu cymryd peth 
amser yn ôl. Cred y Llywodraethwyr fod yr Awdurdod yn rhannol gyfrifol am adael i’r 
niferoedd gwympo yn dilyn cyfarfodydd lleol rai blynyddoedd yn ôl, a bod si yn lleol 
fod yr ysgol am gau yn ei gwneud yn anoddach i ddenu teuluoedd i ddewis gyrru eu 
plant i’r ysgol.  

 Nodwyd y pwyntiau a godwyd gan y Llywodraethwyr ond ategwyd mai prif bwrpas y 
cyfarfod oedd trafod y sefyllfa bresennol datrysiadau posibl i’r heriau sydd yn 
wynebu’r ysgol.  

 Dyma’r opsiynau â gyflwynwyd yn ystod y cyfarfod. 

 Uned cyfeirio  

 Cynigiwyd i drio codi niferoedd plant Ysgol Llanaelhaearn i fyny er mwyn 
balansio’r niferoedd. 

 Gofynnwyd i’r Cyngor drio yn galed i wneud newid i’r ysgol. Mae angen 

Cyfarfod Adolygu Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

 

5
Page 100



 

teuluoedd ifanc yn y Pentref i godi niferoedd. Gofynnwyd a oes posib i Gyngor 
Gwynedd ddylanwadu ar bwy sydd yn symud i fyw i’r pentref, e.e. drwy 
flaenoriaethu teuluoedd ifanc lleol mewn proses dyrannu tai cymdeithasol. 
Mynegwyd fod pobl wedi dod yma i fyw ac wedi clywed fod yr ysgol yn cau ac 
felly maent yn mynychu ysgol gyfagos gyda niferoedd cynaliadwy. 

 Safonau cyn uched â phob ysgol arall yn y dalgylch. Mae’n amhosib trio 
gwerthu’r ysgol/y lle i deuluoedd. 

 Gofynnwyd os oes modd paratoi gwybodaeth i rieni a fyddai’n cadarnhau nad 
yw’r ysgol yn cau ddiwedd tymor Haf 2019.  

 Gofynnwyd am warant o 5 mlynedd er mwyn benthyg amser i godi niferoedd yr 
ysgol. 

 Eglurwyd ystyr ffederaleiddio. ‘Ffedereiddio’ anffurfiol yw’r trefniant sydd 
mewn lle ar hyn o bryd o rannu Pennaeth gydag ysgolion eraill. Mae creu 
Ffederasiwn ffurfiol yn broses cyfreithiol ble mae dwy neu fwy o ysgolion yn 
dod at ei gilydd i greu Ffederasiwn. Byddai’r ysgolion yn parhau i fod yn 
ysgolion ar wahân ond gydag un Corff Llywodraethu. 

 Nodwyd nad oes toriadau wedi bod i gyllidebau ysgolion gan y Cyngor ac mai 
grant gwella addysg Cymru sydd wedi lleihau yn sylweddol dros y blynyddoedd 
diwethaf. 

 Codwyd yr opsiwn i ffederaleiddio gyda 3 ysgol lle mae’r Pennaeth yn arwain ar 
hyn o bryd sef gydag Ysgol Chwilog ac Ysgol Garndolbenmaen ond eglurwyd fod 
angen rhyddhau'r Pennaeth i sicrhau ei fod yn cael 80% o amser digyswllt. 
Byddai rhaid sicrhau fod budd i’r ysgolion eraill o ffedereiddio gydag Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn. 

 Gofynnwyd a oes posib i Gyngor Gwynedd yrru llythyr allan i rieni sydd â 
disgyblion yn mynychu ysgolion all-dalgylch. Nid yw’r Cyngor yn gallu gwneud 
hyn gan y bydd yn torri gyfraith mynediad ysgolion drwy geisio dylanwadu ar 
ddewis rhieni. Mae gan rieni yr hawl i ddewis pa ysgol mae eu plant yn cael 
mynychu - nid oes gan y Cyngor reolaeth dros hyn. Cynigwyd y byddai 
Swyddogion Addysg yn fodlon gwirio unrhyw lythyr y byddai’r Corff yn ei 
ysgrifennu at rieni er mwyn rhoi cymorth gyda geiriad a strwythur llythyr o’r 
fath. 

 Aethpwyd drwy opsiynau i weld sut mae posib cynyddu niferoedd plant – clwb 
brecwast, clwb ar ôl ysgol, gofal plant a.y.b. ond bydd angen gwneud hyn erbyn 
Medi. Bydd modd holi’r tîm Blynyddoedd Cynnar am ddata parthed y galw am y 
gwasanaethau hyn yn yr ardal.  

 Cynigiwyd agor caffi yn yr ysgol er mwyn i bobl y pentref ddefnyddio'r ysgol, ac i 
godi arian i gyfrannu tuag at gostau cynnal yr adeilad. 

 Mynegwyd bod angen gwneud mwy o eitemau ar y radio, teledu a papur newydd i 
gael neges am yr ysgol yn gryfach drosodd i’r cyhoedd.  

 Gofynnwyd beth mae ysgolion eraill yn ei wneud i godi ymwybyddiaeth. Maent yn 
cynnal cyngherddau, noson goffi ac ati i godi proffil yr ysgol. 

5.  CAMAU NESAF 

 Pwysleisiwyd fod opsiynau wedi eu trafod a bydd angen mynd ati i’w asesu a gwneud 
gwaith ymchwil arnynt. 

 Byddwn yn cynnal cyfarfodydd pellach ym mis Medi er mwyn cytuno ar opsiwn 
ffafredig a bydd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg yn cyflwyno unrhyw gynnig i Gabinet 
Cyngor Gwynedd fis Hydref. Pe byddai’r opsiwn hwn yn gofyn am ddilyn trefn 
statudol, eglurwyd byddwn yn dilyn y broses statudol rhwng Hydref 2019 i Mai 2020.  

 Pwysleisiwyd fod pob adroddiad cabinet yn gyhoeddus ac felly mae posib gweld y 
rhain ar y we. 

 Erbyn y cyfarfod nesaf bydd syniadau pawb wedi cael eu rhoi at eu gilydd ac bydd 

6
Page 101



 

gwaith ymchwil ac asesiadau wedi eu cynnal ar gyfer yr opsiynau. Yn ystod y cyfarfod 
ym Medi, byddwn yn trafod y canfyddiadau gan gytuno ar opsiwn ffafredig a fyddai’n 
ateb yr heriau y mae’r ysgol yn ei wynebu. 

6.  CLOI 
 Diolchwyd i bawb am fynychu y cyfarfod ac bydd y cyfarfod nesaf yn cael ei gynnal ym 

mis Medi. 
 

7
Page 102



  

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

Meeting: Ysgol Llanaelhaearn Review Date:  24/06/2019       7:30pm 
Location: Canolfan y Babell, Llanaelhaearn 

 

Present: Officers: 
Gwern ap Rhisiart (GapRh); Garem Jackson (GJ); Cyng. Cemlyn Williams (CW); Ffion Jones (FfJ); 
Betsan Williams (BW); 
 
On behalf of the Governors of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn:  
9 Members 
 
Parents/Family 
7 Members 
 

Apologies: 2 Members 

 

Item 
Number 

Item / Subject Action 

1.  WELCOME 

 Garem Jackson, Gwynedd’s Head of Education welcomed everyone to the meeting 
and thanked everyone for their attendance. 

 A brief presentation was given on the purpose of this meeting. It was confirmed that 
the Cabinet had approved to review the position and future of the school on 4 June 
2019. 

 It was explained that the Education Officers will try and answer any questions and 
there will be an opportunity at the end to hear everyone's views. 

2.  

CABINET 
MEMBER FOR 
EDUCATION’S 

OPENING 
WORDS 

 A further presentation was given from Councillor Cemlyn Williams. It was explained 
that the Councillor will present the preferred option to Cabinet in October following 
further meetings in September. 

3.  

PRESENTATION 
ON THE 

CURRENT 
POSITION 

 The Area Education Officer went through the presentation which showed the current 
position of the school (September 2018 data). 

 It was explained that there will be an opportunity after the meeting to discuss and 
ask questions with comments to be received by 1st July. Officers will return to the 
September meeting with answers and findings. 

 The school's current challenges were explained and then options that have arisen at 
present that will be assessed. There is an opportunity for discussion and to come up 
with more possible options at the end of the meeting. 

4.  DISCUSSION 

 It was explained that the Council must go through every possible option and assess 
them. 

 An issue was raised on behalf of the Governors that these steps should have been 
taken some time ago. The Governors believe that the Authority is partially 
responsible for allowing the numbers to fall following local meetings some years ago, 
and that local rumors that the school is closing has made it more difficult to attract 
families to choose to send their children to the school. 

•     The matters raised by the Governors were noted but it was added that the main 
purpose of the meeting was to discuss the current situation of possible solutions to 
the challenges facing the school.  

 The options presented during the meeting were: 

 Referral unit 

 It was proposed to try to increase the numbers of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn’s children in 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn Review Meeting 

 

8
Page 103



 

order to balance the numbers. 

 The Council was asked to try hard to make a change to the school. Young families 
in the village are needed to increase numbers. It was asked if it is possible for 
Gwynedd Council to influence who moves to the village, e.g. by prioritising local 
young families in a social housing allocation process. It was stated that people had 
come here to live and had heard that the school was closing and therefore they 
were attending a nearby school with sustainable numbers instead. 

 Standards are as high as all other schools in the catchment area. It is impossible to 
try and sell the school/place to families. 

 It was asked if information could be prepared for parents which would confirm 
that the school is not closing at the end of the Summer term 2019. 

 A 5 year warranty was requested to borrow time to increase school numbers. 

 The meaning of federalisation was explained. Informal federation is the current 
arrangement for sharing a Headteacher with other schools. Creating a formal 
Federation is a legal process where two or more schools come together to form a 
Federation. The schools would remain separate schools but with one Governing 
Body. 

 It was noted that there have been no cuts to school budgets by the Council and 
that the Welsh education improvement grant has reduced significantly in recent 
years. 

 The option to federate was raised with 3 schools where the Headteacher currently 
leads namely Ysgol Chwilog and Ysgol Garndolbenmaen but it was explained that 
the Headteacher needed to be released to ensure that he had 80% non-contact 
time. It would be necessary to ensure that the other schools would benefit from 
federating with Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

 It was asked if it is possible for Gwynedd Council to send out a letter to parents 
whose pupils attend out of area schools. The Council is unable to do this as it will 
be in breach of school admissions law by trying to influence parental choice. 
Parents have the right to choose which school their children can attend - the 
Council has no control over this. It was proposed that Education Officers would be 
willing to check any letter that the Body wrote to parents to assist with the 
wording and structure of such a letter. 

 Options were explored to see how to increase child numbers - breakfast club, after 
school club, childcare etc. but this will need to be done by September. It will be 
possible to ask the Early Years team for data on the demand for these services in 
the area. 

 It was proposed to open a café at the school for the people of the village to use 
the school, and to raise money to contribute towards the running costs of the 
building. 

 It was stated that more items need to be made on radio, television and newspaper to 
get the message about the school stronger over to the public. 

 Asked what other schools are doing to raise awareness. They hold concerts, coffee 
evenings etc to raise the profile of the school. 

5.  NEXT STEPS 

 It was emphasised that options have been discussed and will need to be assessed and 
researched. 

 We will hold further meetings in September to agree a preferred option and the 
Cabinet Member for Education will present any proposal to Gwynedd Council's 
Cabinet in October. If this option required a statutory procedure, it was explained 
that we would follow the statutory process from October 2019 to May 2020. 

 It was emphasised that all cabinet reports are public and therefore these can be 
viewed on the internet. 

9
Page 104



 

 By the next meeting everyone's ideas will have been collated and options research 
and assessments will have been undertaken. 

 During the September meeting we will discuss the findings and agree a preferred 
option that will answer the challenges that the school faces. 

6.  TO CLOSE 
 Everyone was thanked for attending the meeting and the next meeting will be held in 

September. 
 

10
Page 105



 

 

 
 

Adolygu Ysgol Llanaelhaearn  
 

19:30 – 21:00, Dydd Llun, 9 Medi 2019 
 

Canolfan Y Babell, Llanaelhaearn 
 

   

1. 

 

CROESO (Garem Jackson, Pennaeth Addysg) 

   

2. 
 

GEIRIAU AGORIADOL YR AELOD CABINET DROS ADDYSG (Cyng. Cemlyn Williams) 

   

3. 
 

CYFLWYNIAD – OPSIYNAU POSIBL (Gwern ap Rhisiart, Swyddog Addysg Ardal  Dwyfor a 
Meirionnydd)  

 

5. 

 

6. 

  

CAMAU NESAF  

 

CLOI 

 

Cyfarfod Adolygu Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 
 

11
Page 106



Adolygu Sefyllfa Ysgol Llanaelhaearn

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

Agenda

• Ymateb i gynigion y cyfarfod diwethaf

• Adolygu rhestr hir o opsiynau 

• Camau nesaf

Asesiad opsiynau posibl

Gwern ap Rhisiart 
Swyddog Addysg Ardal

Ymateb i gynigion

Sylwadau Ystyriaethau

1 Oes posib i’r Adran Addysg 
geisio ymgyrchu i godi 
niferoedd yr ysgol? 

Yn unol a’r Cod derbyn i ysgolion (005/2013):

Rhaid i Awdurdodau Lleol beidio ag awgrymu y dylai rhieni 
ddweud mai ysgol eu dalgylch lle y maent yn byw sydd orau 
ganddynt, na bod lle wedi’i neilltuo iddynt yn yr yn yr ysgol 
honno cyn iddynt fynegi eu dewis. 

Nid oes hawl gan yr awdurdod i geisio dylanwadu ar ddewis 
rhieni.

2 Oes posib i Gyngor Gwynedd 
ddylanwadu ar bwy sydd yn
symud i fyw i’r pentref

Mae Polisi Gosod Tai Cyffredin wedi ei gosod ar y cyd rhwng 
Cyngor Gwynedd, Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd, Grŵp 
Cynefin a Thai Gogledd Cymru. 

Mae meini prawf dyraniad tai wedi ei fanylu yn y polisi hwn. 
Mae tenantiaid yn cael cynnig tai sydd o faint addas i’w 
amgylchiadau nhw (e.e. fel arfer tai tair llofft i deuluoedd gyda 
dau neu dri o blant). Mae pwy sydd yn cael cynnig tai ym 
mhentref Llanaelhaearn felly yn ddibynnol ar y polisi ac 
hefyd ar stoc tai yr ardal a beth sydd yn dod yn wag i’w osod.

Ymateb i gynigion

Sylwadau Ymateb Cyngor Gwynedd

3 Oes modd paratoi gwybodaeth i rieni a 
fyddai’n cadarnhau nad yw’r ysgol yn 
cau ddiwedd tymor Haf 2019.

Ni fyddai’n briodol i’r Adran Addysg wneud hyn, gellir 
ymddangos fel tacteg i geisio dylanwadu ar ddewis 
rhieni. Er hyn, gall yr ysgol / Corff Llywodraethu 
lythyru rhieni

4 Oes posib i Gyngor Gwynedd yrru llythyr
allan i rieni sydd â disgyblion yn
mynychu ysgolion all-dalgylch. 

Nid yw’r Cyngor yn gallu gwneud hyn gan y bydd yn 
torri cyfraith mynediad ysgolion. 

Opsiynau posibl

12
Page 107



Rhestr hir o opsiynau

OPSIYNAU

1. Parhau gyda’r sefyllfa bresennol (Y ‘Status Quo’)

2. Newid Strwythur Staffio

3. Uned Arsylwi Blynyddoedd Cynnar

4. Ffederaleiddio

5. Gwarant y bydd yr ysgol ar agor am o leiaf 5 mlynedd

6. Clwb gofal plant

7. Caffi Cymunedol

8. Cau Ysgol Llanaelhaearn a’r disgyblion i’w haddysgu mewn ysgol amgen

Opsiynau 

• Rydym wedi ymchwilio’r 8 opsiwn yma.

• Mae pob opsiwn wedi ei ddadansoddi ar ffurf ‘ SWOT 
analysis ’

• Rydym yn awyddus i dderbyn eich mewnbwn i 
ddatblygu yr asesiadau hyn ymhellach

1. Parhau gyda’r sefyllfa bresennol

1. Cryfderau / Strengths 1. Gwendidau / Weaknesses

• Cadw ysgol yn Llanaelhaearn • Dosbarthiadau bychain

• Addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg i ddysgwyr • Niferoedd isel

• Ysgol o fewn pellter rhesymol i gartref dysgwyr y 
dalgylch

• Cost y disgybl uchel

• Ansawdd yr addysg a buddiannau'r ysgol

• Dosbarthiadau bychain

1. Cyfleon / Opportunities 1. Bygythiadau / Threats

• Rhagamcanion niferoedd

• Diffyg yn y gyllideb

• Llefydd gweigion

• Costau cynnal yr adeilad – £100k ddim i weld fel 
bygythiad mawr

• Dim ond 4 diwrnod di-gyswllt i’r Pennaeth (tair ysgol)

• Canran uchel o blant yn mynychu ysgolion all-
dalgylch

2. Newid strwythur staffio
2. Cryfderau / Strengths 2. Gwendidau / Weaknesses

• Cadw ysgol yn Llanaelhaearn • Dosbarthiadau bychain

• Addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg i ddysgwyr • Niferoedd isel

• Ysgol o fewn pellter rhesymol i gartref 
dysgwyr y dalgylch

• Cost y disgybl uchel

• Ansawdd yr addysg a buddiannau'r
ysgol

• Dosbarthiadau bychain

2. Cyfleon / Opportunities 2. Bygythiadau / Threats

• Lleihau costau staff • Rhagamcanion niferoedd

• Risg o beidio penodi Pennaeth a cholli staff yn y 
cyfamser.

• Rhaid cael Pennaeth ar ysgol iddo agor.

• Llefydd gweigion

• Costau cynnal a chadw yr adeilad

• Yr ysgol yn ddibynnol ar gyllid y ‘rhwyd diogelu’ 

• Canran uchel o blant yn mynychu ysgolion all-
dalgylch

3. Uned Arsylwi Blynyddoedd Cynnar (ABC) 3. Uned ABC

3. Cryfderau / Strengths 3. Gwendidau / Weaknesses

• Cadw ysgol yn Llanaelhaearn • Uned ABC yn arferol ddim yn denu disgyblion i’r ysgol. 

• Addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg i ddysgwyr • Ni fyddai’n creu incwm

• Ysgol o fewn pellter rhesymol i gartref 
dysgwyr y dalgylch

• Dosbarthiadau bychain 

• Ansawdd yr addysg a buddiannau'r
ysgol

• Niferoedd isel

• Dosbarthiadau bychain • Cost y disgybl uchel

3. Cyfleon / Opportunities 3. Bygythiadau / Threats

• Mwy o ddefnydd o’r adeilad • Aberthu gofod dysgu

• Diffyg yn y gyllideb

• Rhagamcanion niferoedd

• Llefydd gweigion

• Costau cynnal a chadw yr adeilad

• Dim ond 4 diwrnod di-gyswllt i’r Pennaeth (tair ysgol)

• Canran uchel o blant yn mynychu ysgolion all-dalgylch

13
Page 108



4. Ffederaleiddio ffurfiol
4. Cryfderau / Strengths 4. Gwendidau / Weaknesses

• Ffurfioli y trefniant o gydweithio • Pellter daearyddol

• Cadw ysgol yn Llanaelhaearn • Niferoedd ddim yn ddigon i ganiatáu amser digyswllt i’r 
Pennaeth

• Addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg i ddysgwyr • Dosbarthiadau bychain

• Ysgol o fewn pellter rhesymol i gartref 
dysgwyr y dalgylch

• Cost y disgybl uchel

• Model ffurfiol yn rhoi strwythur pendant 
ac buasai rhaid i unrhyw Bennaeth newydd
gytuno â hyn.

• Niferoedd isel

• Ansawdd yr addysg a buddiannau'r ysgol

• Dosbarthiadau bychain

4. Cyfleon / Opportunities 4. Bygythiadau / Threats

• Arbed amser y Pennaeth • Posibilrwydd o ddiffyg yn y gyllideb

• Un Corff Llywodraethol ar y tair ysgol • Costau cynnal a chadw yr adeilad

• Rhannu adnoddau • Llefydd gweigion

• Rhagamcanion niferoedd

• Canran uchel o blant yn mynychu ysgolion all-dalgylch

• Diffyg diddordeb gan yr ysgolion cyfagos.

5. Gwarant o 5 mlynedd
5. Cryfderau / Strengths 5. Gwendidau / Weaknesses

• Cadw ysgol yn Llanaelhaearn am o leiaf 5 
mlynedd 

• Dosbarthiadau bychain

• Addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg i ddysgwyr • Niferoedd isel

• Ysgol o fewn pellter rhesymol i gartref 
dysgwyr y dalgylch

• Cost y disgybl yn uchel

• Effaith ar y gymuned

• Ansawdd yr addysg a buddiannau'r ysgol

• Dosbarthiadau bychain

5. Cyfleon / Opportunities 5. Bygythiadau / Threats

• Cyfle i’r ysgol ymgyrchu i godi niferoedd • Rhagamcanion niferoedd

• Diffyg yn y gyllideb

• Llefydd gweigion

• Costau cynnal a chadw yr adeilad

• Dim ond 4 diwrnod di-gyswllt i’r Pennaeth (tair ysgol)

• Canran uchel o blant yn mynychu ysgolion all-dalgylch

• Dim sicrwydd y bydd niferoedd yn codi yn y cyfnod yma

• Anhebygol i blant symud yn ôl i’r ysgol o’r ysgolion
dalgylchol

6. Sefydlu clwb gofal plant 6. Sefydlu clwb gofal plant
6. Cryfderau / Strengths 6. Gwendidau / Weaknesses

• Cadw ysgol yn Llanaelhaearn • Angen cofrestru gyda AGC 

• Addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg i ddysgwyr • Dosbarthiadau bychain

• Ysgol o fewn pellter rhesymol i 
gartref dysgwyr y dalgylch

• Cost y disgybl yn uchel

• Ansawdd yr addysg a buddiannau'r
ysgol

• Niferoedd isel

• Dosbarthiadau bychain

6. Cyfleon / Opportunities 6. Bygythiadau / Threats

• Gall ddenu plant i’r ysgol • Peidio gallu dod o hyd i ddarparwr cymwys a 
chofrestredig

• Angen isafswm o 10 o blant yn rheolaidd

• Angen codi ffi o £8.50-£13 am glwb ar ôl ysgol

• Rhagamcanion niferoedd

• Diffyg yn y gyllideb

• Llefydd gweigion

• Costau cynnal a chadw yr adeilad

• Dim ond 4 diwrnod di-gyswllt i’r Pennaeth (tair ysgol)

• Canran uchel o blant yn mynychu ysgolion all-dalgylch

7. Caffi cymunedol 7. Caffi cymunedol
7. Cryfderau / Strengths 7. Gwendidau / Weaknesses

• Cadw ysgol yn Llanaelhaearn • Byddai angen cyfyngu amseroedd tu allan i oriau ysgol

• Hybu defnydd cymunedol o’r adeilad • Dosbarthiadau bychain

• Addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg i ddysgwyr • Cost y disgybl uchel

• Ysgol o fewn pellter rhesymol i gartref 
dysgwyr y dalgylch

• Niferoedd isel

• Ansawdd yr addysg a buddiannau'r ysgol

• Dosbarthiadau bychain

7. Cyfleon / Opportunities 7. Bygythiadau / Threats

• Codi proffil yr ysgol drwy fod yn hwb 
cymunedol 

• Angen buddsoddi yn y gegin (£45,000)

• Potensial i gael incwm ychwanegol • Rhagamcanion niferoedd

• Diffyg yn y gyllideb

• Llefydd gweigion

• Costau cynnal a chadw yr adeilad

• Dim ond 4 diwrnod di-gyswllt i’r Pennaeth (tair ysgol)

• Canran uchel o blant yn mynychu ysgolion all-dalgylch

• Risg gwirioneddol ynglŷn a faint fysa’n defnyddio’r caffi

• Risgiau DBS / iechyd a diogelwch wrth gymysgu plant â’r
cyhoedd

14
Page 109



8. Cau Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, addysgu’r disgyblion mewn ysgol 
amgen

8. Cryfderau / Strengths 8. Gwendidau / Weaknesses

• Disgyblion i gael eu haddysgu mewn 
dosbarthiadau o faint mwy addas

• Pentref Llanaelhaearn yn colli Ysgol 

• Addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg i ddysgwyr • Pellter teithio pellach o gartref dysgwyr

• Ysgol o fewn pellter rhesymol i gartref 
dysgwyr y dalgylch

• Lleihau cost y disgybl o addysgu 

8. Cyfleon / Opportunities 8. Bygythiadau / Threats

• Cyfle i ddisgyblion gymysgu yn ddyddiol gydag 
eraill o’r un oedran

• Diswyddo staff

• Lleihad sylweddol yn y cyfradd o lefydd 
gweigion

Rhestr hir o opsiynau

OPSIYNAU

1. Parhau gyda’r sefyllfa bresennol (Y ‘Status Quo’)

2. Newid Strwythur Staffio

3. Uned Arsylwi Blynyddoedd Cynnar

4. Ffederaleiddio

5. Gwarant y bydd yr ysgol ar agor am o leiaf 5 mlynedd

6. Clwb gofal plant

7. Caffi Cymunedol

8. Cau Ysgol Llanaelhaearn a’r disgyblion i’w haddysgu mewn ysgol amgen

Camau nesaf / Next steps

• Medi 2019 - Cyfarfod i drafod canlyniadau asesu’r opsiynau

• Medi 2019 - Cyfarfod pellach i gytuno ar rhestr fer o opsiynau

• Tachwedd 2019 – Wedi ystyried y rhestr fer o opsiynau, Aelod 
Cabinet i gyflwyno argymhelliad i Gabinet Cyngor Gwynedd.

ModerneiddioAddysg@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

15
Page 110



Ysgol Llanaelhaearn

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

Agenda

• Respond to ideas presented at the last meeting

• Review the long list of options

• Next steps

Assessment of Possible Options 

Gwern ap Rhisiart 
Area Education Officer

Responding to Proposals

Comments Considerations / Gwynedd Council response

1 Can the Education Department 
try to campaign to increase 
school numbers?

In accordance with the School Admissions Code (005/2013):

LAs must not suggest that parents should express a preference 
for the school in whose catchment area they live, or that they 
have been allocated a place at that school before they have 
expressed a preference .

The authority has no right to seek to influence parental choice

2 Is it possible for Gwynedd 
Council to influence who 
moves to the village?

A Common Housing Allocation Policy has been set up jointly 
by Gwynedd Council, Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd, Grŵp
Cynefin and North Wales Housing.

A housing allocation criteria can be seen in the policy. 
Tenants will be offered houses of a size suitable for their 
circumstances (eg typically three-bedroom houses for families 
with two or three children). A person who is offered a house 
in the village of Llanaelhaearn is therefore dependent on the 
policy and also on the housing stock in the area and what 
becomes vacant to let.

Responding to Proposals

Comments Consideration / Gwynedd Council response

3 Can parents be provided with 
information that would confirm that the 
school is not closing at the end of the 
Summer term 2019.

It would not be appropriate for the Education 
Department to do this, it may seem like a tactic to try 
to influence parental choice. However, parents may 
be contacted by the school / Governing Body.

4 Could Gwynedd Council send out a 
letter to parents who have pupils 
attending schools outside the 
catchment area.

The Council is unable to do this as it will be in breach 
of school admissions law.

Possible Options

16
Page 111



Long List of Options

OPTIONS

1. Continue with the ‘status quo’

2. Change Staff Structure

3. Early Years Assessment Centres (ABC)

4. Federisation

5. Guarantee that the school will be open for at least 5 years

6. Childcare Club

7. Community Café

8. Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and pupils to be educated at an alternative school

Options

• We have researched these 8 options.

• Each option has been analysed by means of a ‘SWOT 
analysis’

• We are eager to receive your input to further develop 
these assessments

1. Continue with the ‘status quo’

1. Strengths 1. Weaknesses

• Keep a school presence in Llanaelhaearn • Small classes

• Welsh-medium education for learners • Low numbers

• School within a reasonable distance of the
catchment area learners’ homes

• High cost per pupil

• The quality of education and benefits of the school

• Small classes

1. Opportunities 1. Threats

• Projections of numbers

• Budget deficit

• Surplus places

• Maintenance costs - £ 100k not a big threat

• Only 4 non-contact days for the Headteacher (three 
schools)

• High percentage of children attending schools 
outside the catchment area

2. Change Staff Structure
2. Strengths 2. Weaknesses

• Keep a school presence in Llanaelhaearn • Small classes

• Welsh-medium education for learners • Low numbers

• School within a reasonable distance of the
catchment area learners’ homes

• High cost per pupil

• The quality of education and benefits of 
the school

• Small classes

2. Opportunities 2. Threats

• Reduce staff costs • Projections of numbers

• Risk of not appointing a Headteacher and losing staff in 
the meantime.

• Must have a Headteacher for a school to open

• Surplus places

• Maintenance costs

• School relies on ‘Minimum Staffing Protection' funding

• High percentage of children attending schools outside 
the catchment area

3. Early Years Assessment Centre (ABC) 3. Early Years Assessment Centre (ABC)

3. Strengths 3. Weaknesses

• Keep a school presence in Llanaelhaearn • Early Years Assessment Centre does not usually attract 
pupils to school.

• Welsh-medium education for learners • It would not generate an income

• School within a reasonable distance of the
catchment area learners’ homes

• Small classes

• The quality of education and benefits of 
the school

• Low numbers

• Small classes • High cost per pupil

3. Opportunities 3. Threats

• Increased use of building • Sacrifice learning space

• Budget deficit

• Projections of numbers

• Surplus places

• Maintenance costs

• Only 4 non-contact days for the Headteacher (three 
schools)

• High percentage of children attending schools outside 
the catchment area

17
Page 112



4. Federisation
4. Strengths 4. Weaknesses

• Formalise the current collaboration
arrangement

• Geographical distance between schools

• Keep a school presence in Llanaelhaearn • Numbers not enough to allow non-contact time for 
Headteacher

• Welsh-medium education for learners • Small classes

• School within a reasonable distance of the
catchment area learners’ homes

• High cost per pupil

• A formal model with a definite structure and 
any new Headteacher would have to agree to 
this.

• Low numbers

• The quality of education and benefits of the 
school

• Small classes

4. Opportunities 4. Threats

• Release Headteacher's time • Possibility of budget deficit

• One Governing Body for the three schools • Maintenance costs

• To share resources • Surplus places

• Projections of numbers

• High percentage of children attending schools outside 
the catchment area

• Lack of interest from neighboring schools.

5. 5 Years Guarantee
5. Strengths 5. Weaknesses

• Keep a school in Llanaelhaearn for at least 5 
years

• Small classes

• Welsh-medium education for learners • Low numbers

• School within a reasonable distance of the
catchment area learners’ homes

• High cost per pupil

• Impact on the community

• The quality of education and benefits of the 
school

• Small classes

5. Opportunities 5. Threats

• Opportunity for the school to campaign to 
increase numbers

• Projections of numbers

• Budget deficit

• Surplus places

• Maintenance costs

• Only 4 non-contact days for the Headteacher (three schools)

• High percentage of children attending schools outside the 
catchment area

• No guarantee that numbers will rise in this period

• Unlikely that children will move back to the school from 
catchment area schools

6. Establish a Childcare Club 6. Establish a Childcare Club
6. Strengths 6. Weaknesses

• Keep a school presence in Llanaelhaearn • Need to register with Care Inspectorate Wales 

• Welsh-medium education for learners • Small classes

• School within a reasonable distance of the
catchment area learners’ homes

• High cost per pupil

• The quality of education and benefits of 
the school

• Low numbers

• Small classes

6. Opportunities 6. Threats

• It can attract children to the school • Not being able to find a qualified and registered provider

• Minimum of 10 children required on a regular basis

• Need to charge a fee of £ 8.50- £ 13 for an after school club

• Projections of numbers

• Budget deficit

• Surplus places

• Maintenance costs

• Only 4 non-contact days for the Headteacher (three schools)

• High percentage of children attending schools outside the 
catchment area

7. Community Cafe 7. Community Cafe 
7. Strengths 7. Weaknesses

• Keep a school presence in Llanaelhaearn • Restricted to operate outside of school hours

• Promote community use of the building • Small classes

• Welsh-medium education for learners • High cost per pupil

• School within a reasonable distance of the
catchment area learners’ homes

• Low numbers

• The quality of education and benefits of the 
school

• Small classes

7. Opportunities 7. Threats

• Raise the profile of the school by being a 
community hub

• Need to invest in the kitchen (£45,000).

• Potential for additional income • Projections of numbers

• Budget deficit

• Surplus places

• Building maintenance costs

• Only 4 non-contact days for the Headteacher (three schools)

• High percentage of children attending schools outside the 
catchment area

• Risk regarding the use of the café (lack of interest)

• DBS / health and safety risks if the children would be working 
with the public

18
Page 113



8. Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and pupils to be educated at an 
alternative school

8. Strengths 8. Weaknesses

• Learners to be educated in classes of more 
appropriate sizes

• Loss of a school in the village of Llanaelhaearn

• Welsh-medium education for learners • Further distance to travel from learners' home

• School within a reasonable distance of the
catchment area learners’ homes

• Reduce the cost per pupil of teaching

8. Opportunities 8. Threats

• An opportunity for pupils to mix daily with others of 
the same age

• Staff redundancy

• Significant reduction in surplus places

Long List of Options

OPTIONS

1. Continue with the ‘status quo’

2. Change Staffing Structure

3. Early Years Assessment Centre (ABC)

4. Federalisation

5. Guarantee that the school will be open for at least 5 years

6. Childcare Club

7. Community Café

8. Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and pupils to be educated at an alternative school

Next Steps

• September 2019 - Meeting to discuss the results of the options 
assessment 

• September 2019 - Further meeting to agree on a short list of 
options

• November 2019 – Having considered the short list of options, 
Cabinet Member to present his recommendation to Gwynedd 
Council's Cabinet.

ModernisingEducation@gwynedd.gov.uk

19
Page 114



  

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

Cyfarfod o: Adolygu Ysgol Llanaelhaearn  Dyddiad:  09/09/2019       7:30yh 
Lleoliad: Canolfan y Babell, Llanaelhaearn 

 

Presennol: Swyddogion: 
Gwern ap Rhisiart (GapRh); Garem Jackson (GJ); Cyng. Cemlyn Williams (CW); Ffion Jones (FfJ); 
Rhian Hughes (RH); 
 
Ar ran Llywodraethwyr Ysgol Llanaelhaearn:  
10 Aelod 
 
Rhieni/Teulu 
4 Aelod 
 

 

Rhif 
Eitem 

Eitem / Pwnc Gweithrediad 

1.  CROESO 

 Croesawyd pawb i’r ail gyfarfod gan Garem Jackson, Pennaeth Addysg Gwynedd. 

 Diolchwyd am y diddordeb sydd wedi cael ei ddangos gan yr ysgol a’r gymuned yn 
ystod y broses. 

 Eglurwyd mai pwrpas y cyfarfod oedd mynd drwy’r opsiynau sydd wedi cael eu 
cynnig. 
 

2.  

GEIRIAU 
AGORIADOL YR 

AELOD 
CABINET DROS 

ADDYSG 

 Ategu geiriau'r Pennaeth Addysg gan egluro mai bwriad y cyfarfod yw manylu ar yr 
opsiynau gan edrych ar y cryfderau, gwendidau, cyfleon a bygythiadau ar gyfer yr 8 
opsiwn. 

 Nododd yr Aelod Cabinet ei bod hi’n hanfodol ein bod yn derbyn mewnbwn budd-
ddeiliaid Ysgol Llanaelhaearn fel rhan o’r broses.  
 

3.  
CYFLWYNIAD -

OPSIYNAU 
POSIBL 

 Pwysleisiwyd pwysigrwydd cyfraniad budd-ddeiliad Ysgol Llanaelhaearn wrth drafod 
yr opsiynau. 

 Nodwyd bod modd ymhelaethu ar yr opsiynau. Roedd derbyn barn a mewnbwn y 
budd-ddeiliaid yn hanfodol. 

 Aethpwyd drwy’r cyflwyniad oedd yn crynhoi’r ‘SWOT Analysis’ ar gyfer pob un o’r 8 
opsiwn. 

 Rhannwyd templedi ‘SWOT Analysis’ fel bod cyfle i’r unigolion gyfrannu un ai ar bapur 
neu ar lafar yn ystod y cyfarfod. Nodwyd hefyd bod cyfle iddynt fynegi eu barn / 
sylwadau trwy e-bost (erbyn Dydd Iau, Medi 12). 

 
 
Opsiwn 1 – Parhau gyda’r sefyllfa bresennol:  

 Eglurwyd bod addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg yn cael ei gynnwys yn y ‘SWOT Analysis’ gan 
fod yr Iaith Gymraeg yn ystyriaeth wrth asesu’r opsiynau.   

 Eglurwyd yn ogystal bod Rhwyd Gwarchodaeth yn cyfrannu swm sylweddol at gyllideb 
yr ysgol bob blwyddyn. 

 Aethpwyd ymlaen i esbonio os y bydd diffyg yn y gyllideb drwy barhau gyda’r model 
presennol ac y byddai angen i’r ysgol ail-osod y gyllideb i gwrdd a’r diffyg. 

 Nodwyd bod angen buddsoddi £55,000 yn yr adeilad a £45,000 yn y gegin, pe byddai 
bwriad i ddefnyddio y gegin eto. Eglurwyd bod cyllid Cynnal a Chadw ar wahân i gyllid 
Addysg ac nid oes modd tynnu £100,000 o gyllideb yr ysgol. 

 Nodwyd bod angen ychwanegu at y cryfderau gan gynnwys ansawdd yr addysg a 

Cyfarfod Adolygu Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

 

20
Page 115



 

buddiannau'r ysgol. 

 Mynegwyd bod modd dadlau y gall dosbarthiadau bychain fod yn gryfder yn ogystal â 
gwendid. 

 Gofynnwyd a oes angen i’r gwaith Cynnal a Chadw cael ei gomisiynu gan y Cyngor, ac 
a fyddai modd i’r ysgol drefnu i gontractwyr lleol wneud y gwaith. Eglurwyd fod angen 
i unrhyw gontractwr fod yn gofrestredig gyda CHAS er mwyn rheoli risgiau iechyd a 
diogelwch. 

 Nodwyd nad yw £100,000 yn swm aruthrol ac felly dim yn fygythiad mawr i’r opsiwn. 
 
Opsiwn 2 – Newid Strwythur Staffio: 

 Mae’r Rhwyd Gwarchodaeth yn gyfraniad ychwanegol sydd yn caniatáu i ysgol gyflogi 
1.5 athro. 

 Nodwyd bod model presennol Ysgol Llanaelhaearn yn gostus o safbwynt cyflogi 
athro, Cymhorthydd ac 1 diwrnod o amser Pennaeth Ysgol Garndolbenmaen.  

 Nodwyd bod yr ysgol wedi cael anhawster i benodi Pennaeth yn y gorffennol, sydd yn 
wendid i’r model. 

 
Opsiwn 3 – Uned Arsylwi Blynyddoedd Cynnar (ABC): 

 Cadarnhawyd bod lleoliad bosibl wedi cael ei adnabod ar gyfer yr Uned ABC. 

 Nodwyd nad yw’r math yma o uned yn dueddol o ddenu mwy o blant i’r ysgolion. 

 Aethpwyd ymlaen i drafod nad oes galw am unedau ymddygiad yn yr ardal gan fod 
Uned Ymddygiad wedi agor ym Mhenygroes ers mis Medi diwethaf. 

 2 eithriad am leoliadau ar dir ysgol am incwm sef Ysgol y Moelwyn (tŷ ar yr iard) 
Ysgol Dyffryn Nantlle (Clwb Ieuenctid). 

 
Opsiwn 4 – Ffederaleiddio Ffurfiol  

 Eglurwyd mai trefniant ffederaleiddio anffurfiol (‘meddal’) sydd rhwng Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn ac Ysgol Garndolbenmaen. 

 Nid yw’n broses ffederaleiddio ‘naturiol’ o ran y ffordd mae’r dalgylch yn gorwedd 
gan fod Ysgol Llangybi yn y canol rhwng yr ysgolion. 

 Eglurwyd byddai ffederaleiddio ffurfiol (‘caled’)  yn golygu fod cyllidebau yr ysgolion 
yn parhau ar wahân, a byddai’r cyrff llywodraethu yn cael eu diddymu gan benodi un 
corff llywodraethu ar gyfer y ffederasiwn. 

 Ni fyddai ffurfioli’r model presennol rhwng yr ysgolion yn caniatáu digon o amser i 
ryddhau amser digyswllt i’r Pennaeth. 

 Aethpwyd ymlaen i egluro bod model ffederal tebyg wedi ei sefydlu rhwng Ysgol  
Corris ac Ysgol Pennal (un corff llywodraethol ffurfiol). Yn ogystal mae ymgynghoriad 
wedi bod yn ddiweddar ynglŷn â threfniant ffederaleiddio ffurfiol rhwng Ysgol 
Talysarn ac Ysgol Brynaerau.  

 Nodwyd mai bygythiad amlwg sydd heb ei gynnwys yn y tabl yw diffyg diddordeb gan 
yr ysgolion cyfagos i ffederaleiddio yn ffurfiol.   

 Eglurwyd bod angen edrych ar yr opsiwn yn fwy manwl gan ystyried yr holl ysgolion 
cyfagos ac nid Ysgol Chwilog ac Ysgol Garndolbenmaen yn unig.  

 Nodwyd bydd y Swyddog Addysg Ardal yn cysylltu gyda’r ysgolion. Pwysleisiwyd nad 
oes angen i fudd-ddeiliad Ysgol Llanaelhaearn gysylltu gydag ysgolion cyfagos i drafod 
y mater.  

 Nodwyd byddai proses ffederaleiddio yn cymryd tua 9 mis (proses statudol ac 
ymgynghori). 

 Gofynnwyd beth oedd yr amserlen i gael adborth gan yr ysgolion cyfagos ynglŷn â’u 
diddordeb i ffederaleiddio. Eglurwyd mai y bwriad yw drafftio modelau 
ffederaleiddio posib yn ystod yr wythnosau nesaf.   

21
Page 116



 

 Pwysleisiwyd pwysigrwydd sicrhau cydbwysedd cywir i’r Pennaeth. Eglurwyd bod tair 
ysgol yn gallu bod yn sialens o ran yr hyn sydd yn ymarferol.  

 Nodwyd os byddai newid o ran Pennaeth yn ystod y tymor byr ni fyddai rhaid i’r 
Pennaeth newydd gytuno i barhau a’r trefniant anffurfiol sydd rhwng Ysgol 
Garndolbenmaen ac Ysgol Llanaelhaearn.    

 Eglurwyd byddai model ffurfiol yn rhoi strwythur pendant a buasai rhaid i unrhyw 
Bennaeth newydd gytuno â hyn. 

 Nodwyd yn ddaearyddol, nad yw Ysgol Garndolbenmaen yr opsiwn gorau.  

 Dywedodd sawl unigolyn mai opsiwn 4 byddai’r datrysiad gorau. 
 

Opsiwn 5 – Gwarant o 5 mlynedd: 

 Nodwyd nad yw’r Adran Addysg wedi rhoi gwarant o’r fath i ysgolion yn y gorffennol.  

 Nodwyd mai ond blwyddyn o warant ar y tro gall y Cyngor gynnig o ganlyniad i'r 
modd mae’r awdurdod yn derbyn eu dyraniad gan y Llywodraeth. 

 Mynegwyd mwy na thebyg byddai’n anodd iawn denu plant sydd eisoes wedi gadael 
dalgylch Llanaelhaearn i fynd i ysgol arall, i fynychu Ysgol Llanaelhaearn gyda’r 
warant o 5 mlynedd. Byddai gwarant mwy na thebyg yn denu plant newydd sydd yn y 
dalgylch i’r ysgol yn unig.    

 
Opsiwn 6 – Sefydlu Clwb Gofal Plant: 

 Clwb Gofal Plant yn boblogaidd mewn sawl ardal, ond gall darganfod darparwyr 
cymwys fod yn heriol. 

 Amcan-ffi am ofal plant ychydig yn ddrud o’i gymharu ag ardaloedd eraill, ond mae 
hyn yn ddibynnol o bosibl ar nifer o blant fydd yn mynychu (rhatach os oes mwy o 
blant). 

 Codwyd y cwestiwn os oes modd uno opsiwn 5 a 6.  
 

Opsiwn 7 – Caffi Cymunedol: 

 Byddai angen o leiaf £45,000 i adnewyddu’r gegin a mwy na thebyg ni fyddai 
Gwasanaeth Cynnal a Chadw yn blaenoriaethu hyn. Bygythiad amlwg. 

 Hafod Lon yw’r unig enghraifft gan Gyngor Gwynedd o gaffi cymunedol ar safle ysgol. 

 Nodwyd risgiau DBS / iechyd a diogelwch gyda chymysgu disgyblion â’r cyhoedd. 

 Byddai hefyd risg ynglŷn â faint a fyddai’n defnyddio caffi yn Llanaelhaearn. 
 
Opsiwn 8 – Cau Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, addysgu’r disgyblion mewn ysgol amgen: 

 Gofynnwyd beth oedd bwriad y Cyngor gyda’r safle os byddai Ysgol Llanaelhaearn yn 
cau.   

 Eglurwyd bod rhaid dilyn Cynllun Gwaredu. Byddai’r gymuned yn cael y cynnig cyntaf 
yn unol â pholisi ôl-ddefnydd yr Awdurdod. 

 Gofynnwyd pa ysgol byddai’r disgyblion yn mynychu ac eglurwyd nad yw hynny wedi 
ei drafod hyd yma, ond mai Ysgol Bro Plenydd yw’r ysgol agosaf a fyddai’n gallu 
ymdopi gyda niferoedd ychwanegol.   

 Gofynnwyd a oes modd i ysgol wrthod y plant. Eglurwyd nad oes modd i ysgol 
wrthod disgyblion os yn ysgol dalgylchol i Lanaelhaearn. 

 Codwyd y cwestiwn, pam felly bod modd i’r ysgol wrthod y broses i  ffederaleiddio yn 
ffurfiol. Nodwyd bod yn broses fwy cymhleth ac yn fater i’r cyrff llywodraethol. 

 Nodwyd byddai system cludiant ar gael i’r disgyblion er mwyn cyrraedd yr ysgol 
amgen yn unol â pholisi cludiant yr Awdurdod. 

 Nodwyd bod rhaid ystyried y ffaith y gall rhieni ddewis gyrru eu plant i unrhyw ysgol. 
 

22
Page 117



 

4.  CAMAU NESAF 

 Nodwyd mai bwriad y cyfarfod nesaf fydd i gyflwyno’r rhestr fer (3 neu 4 opsiwn fydd 
yn cael eu hymchwilio a’u hasesu ymhellach) 

 Codwyd y cwestiwn os oes bwriad i drafod y broses gyda’r disgyblion. Nododd y 
Swyddog Ardal ei fod yn hapus mynd draw i’r ysgol ond nad yw’n gynamserol i drafod 
ar hyn o bryd. Byddai’n fwy addas i’r Pennaeth drafod yn uniongyrchol efo’r 
disgyblion unwaith bydd penderfyniad ffurfiol wedi ei wneud.  

 Bydd Swyddog Addysg Ardal yn trafod argymhelliad yr Aelod Cabinet gyda’r Corff 
Llywodraethol ym mis Tachwedd.  

 Pryderodd rhai oedd yn bresennol bod y penderfyniad wedi ei wneud yn barod gan 
fod mwy o wybodaeth wedi cael ei gynnwys gyda ‘Opsiwn 8’. 

 Pwysleisiwyd bod canllawiau pendant yn cael eu dilyn wrth ystyried ‘SWOT Analysis’ a 
nodwyd nad oedd penderfyniad wedi cael ei wneud yn fewnol ar y broses. 

 Mynegodd un aelod bod angen ychwanegu’r rheswm y credai fod y niferoedd wedi 
lleihau yn ‘Opsiwn 5’. Eglurwyd bod modd i’r unigolyn wneud cwyn swyddogol ar y 
mater dan sylw gan nodi nad yw ceisio cyfiawnhau rhesymau dros y sefyllfa bresennol 
yn ran o’r ymarferiad ‘SWOT Analysis’ ar gyfer yr opsiynau. 

 Eglurwyd bod y rhestr fer yn cael ei phenderfynu drwy adolygu’r holl opsiynau a 
sylwadau rydym wedi eu derbyn gan ddilyn meini prawf yn unol ac amcanion yr Adran 
Addysg. 

 Gweithred: Budd-ddeiliaid Ysgol Llanaelhaearn i rannu sylwadau pellach dros e-bost 
erbyn Dydd Iau*. Bydd copi electronig o’r cyflwyniad yn cael ei rannu.  
 

5.  CLOI 
 Diolchwyd i bawb am fynychu’r cyfarfod a bydd y cyfarfod nesaf yn cael ei gynnal  

mewn pythefnos (23 Medi)*. 
 

 

*Ers y cyfarfod, gwnaethpwyd y penderfyniad i ganiatáu mwy o amser i gyflwyno 
ymatebion a sylwadau pellach, sef erbyn dydd Llun 16eg Medi 2019, ac fe fydd y 
cyfarfod nesaf yn cael ei gynnal nos Lun y 30ain Medi 2019 am 7.30yh yng 
Nghanolfan y Babell, Llanaelhaearn.  

23
Page 118



  

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

Meeting: Ysgol Llanaelhaearn Review 
Meeting  

Date:  09/09/2019       7:30pm 
Location: Canolfan y Babell, Llanaelhaearn 

 

Present: Officers: 
Gwern ap Rhisiart (GapRh); Garem Jackson (GJ); Cllr. Cemlyn Williams (CW); Ffion Jones (FfJ); 
Rhian Hughes (RH); 
 
On behalf of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn Governors:  
10 Member 
 
Guardian / Family 
4 Member 
 

 

Item 
No. 

Item / Subject Actions  

1.  WELCOME  

 Garem Jackson, Head of Education Gwynedd Council welcomed everyone to the 
second meeting. 

 The interest shown by the school and the community during the process was 
praised. 

 It was explained that the purpose of the meeting was to go through the options 
that had been proposed. 

2.  

CABINET 
MEMBER FOR 
EDUCATION 

OPENING 
WORDS  

 The words of the Head of Education were reiterated and explained that the 
purpose of the meeting was to look at the options in more detail and assess the 
strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats for the 8 options. 

 The Cabinet Member noted that it was essential that we received the input of Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn's stakeholders as part of the process. 

3.  
INTRODUCTION 

- POSSIBLE 
OPTIONS 

 The importance of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn's stakeholder contribution was emphasised 
when discussing the options. 

 It was noted that it is possible to elaborate on the options. Accepting the views and 
input of stakeholders was essential. 

 The Area Education Officer went through the presentation that summarised the 
SWOT Analysis that was undertaken for each of the 8 options. 

 'SWOT Analysis' templates were shared so that individuals had the opportunity to 
contribute either in writing or orally during the meeting. It was also noted that they 
had an opportunity to express their views / comments by email (by Thursday, 
September 12). 

 
Option 1 – Status Quo:  

 It was explained that Welsh-medium education is included in the 'SWOT Analysis' as 
the Welsh language must be considered when assessing the options. 

 

 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn Review Meeting 

 

24
Page 119



 

 It was also explained that the Minimum Staffing Protection funding contributes a 
substantial amount to the school budget each year. 

 Budget deficit by continuing with the current model and that the school would 
need to reset the budget to meet the deficit. 

 It was noted that £55,000 needed to be invested in the building and £45,000 in the 
kitchen, should the kitchen be used again. It was explained that Maintenance 
Department funding is separate from Education funding and £100,000 cannot be 
deducted from the school budget. 

 Quality of education and the interests of the school needs to be added to the 
‘Strengths’.   

 It was stated that it could be argued that small classes can be a strength as well as a 
weakness. 

 Attendees asked whether the Maintenance work needs to be commissioned by the 
Council, and whether the school could arrange for local contractors to carry out the 
work. It was explained that any contractor needed to be registered with CHAS in 
order to manage health and safety risks. 

 It was noted that £100,000 is not a huge amount and therefore not a major threat 
to the option 

 
Option 2 – Change Staff Structure: 

 ‘Minimum Staffing Protection' funding is an additional contribution that allows the 
school to employ 1.5 teachers. 

 It was noted that the current model of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn was costly in terms of 
employing a teacher, an Assistant and 1 day of the Headteacher of Ysgol 
Garndolbenmaen time. 

 It was noted that the school has had difficulty in appointing a Headteacher in the 
past, which is a weakness of the model. 

 
Option 3 – Early Years Observation Unit: 

 It was confirmed that a possible location had been identified for the ABC Unit. 

 It was noted that this type of unit does not tend to attract more children to the 
schools. 

 It was discussed that there is no demand for behavioural units in the area as a 
Behaviour Unit had been opened in Penygroes last September. 

 2 exceptions for establishment /placements on school grounds for income; Ysgol y 
Moelwyn (house on the yard) Ysgol Dyffryn Nantlle (Youth Club). 

 
Option 4 – Formal Federalisation 

 It was explained that there is an informal ('soft') federalisation arrangement 
between Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and Ysgol Garndolbenmaen. 

 This federalisation is not 'natural' in terms of how the catchment area lies as Ysgol 
Llangybi is in the middle of the schools. 

25
Page 120



 

 It was explained that formal ('hard') federation would mean that schools' budgets 
remained separate, and the governing bodies would be abolished with the 
appointment of a single governing body for the federation. 

 Formalising the current model between the schools would not allow sufficient time 
for non-contact time for the Headteacher. 

 A similar federal model had been established between Ysgol Corris and Ysgol 
Pennal (one formal governing body). There has also been a recent consultation on a 
formal federation arrangement between Ysgol Talysarn and Ysgol Brynaerau. 

 It was noted that a clear threat that was not included in the table was the lack of 
interest from neighbouring schools to federate. 

 It was explained that the option needed to be looked at in more detail and to 
consider all the neighbouring schools and not just Ysgol Chwilog and Ysgol 
Garndolbenmaen. 

 It was noted that the Area Education Officer would contact the schools. It was 
emphasised that Ysgol Llanaelhaearn's stakeholders do not need to contact 
neighbouring schools to discuss the matter. 

 It was noted that a federation process would take approximately 9 months 
(statutory process and consultation). 

 It was asked what the anticipated timescale was for feedback from neighbouring 
schools regarding their interest to federate with Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. It was 
explained that the intention is to draft possible federalisation models in the coming 
weeks. 

 The importance of achieving the right balance for the Headteacher was 
emphasised. It was explained that three schools can be challenging in terms of 
what is practical. 

 It was noted that if there was a change of Headteacher in the short term, the new 
Headteacher would have the right to reject the informal arrangement between 
Ysgol Garndolbenmaen and Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 

 It was explained that a formal model would give a definite structure and if a new 
Headteacher would be appointed the responsibility would be part of the job 
description.    

 It was noted that geographically, Ysgol Garndolbenmaen is not the best option. 

 Over all opinion - option 4 would be the best solution. 
 
Option 5 – 5 Year Warranty: 

 It was noted that the Education Department has not provided such a guarantee to a 
schools in the past. 

 It was noted that the Council can only offer one year guarantee at a time due to the 
way the authority receives their budget allocation from the Government. 

 It was expressed that it would be very difficult to attract children who have already 
left the Llanaelhaearn catchment area to go to another school, to attend Ysgol 
Llanaelhaearn. A guarantee would probably only attract new children in the 
catchment area to the school.  

 

26
Page 121



 

 
Option 6 – Establish a Childcare Club: 

 Childcare Club very popular in many areas, but finding qualified providers can be 
challenging. 

 Estimated fee for childcare at Ysgol Llanaelhaearn is more expensive compared to 
other areas, but this may be due to the number of children attending (cheaper if 
there are more children). 

 The question was raised if options 5 and 6 can be merged 

 
Option 7 – Community Cafe: 

 At least £45,000 would be needed to refurbish the kitchen and the Maintenance 
Department would probably not prioritise this. An obvious threat. 

 Hafod Lon is Gwynedd Council's only example of a community café on a school site. 

 DBS / health and safety risks were identified when mixing pupils with the public. 

 There would also be a risk regarding how many people would use the café in 
Llanaelhaearn. 

 

Option 8 – Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn, and educate the pupils at an alternative school:  

 Attendees asked what would happen to the site if Ysgol Llanaelhaearn will close. 

 It was explained that a Disposal Plan must be followed. The community would 
receive the first offer in accordance with the Authority's after-use policy. 

 It was asked which school the pupils would attend and it was explained that this 
has not yet been discussed, but Ysgol Bro Plenydd is the nearest school with 
enough capacity to be able to cope with additional numbers. 

 It was asked if a school could refuse the children. It was explained that a school 
cannot refuse pupils if it is a catchment area school for Llanaelhaearn. 

 The question was raised, why is it possible for the school to reject pupils with a 
formal federalisation process. It was noted that it was a more complex process and 
the matter should be discussed with the governing body of that particular school. 

 It was noted that a transport system would be available for the pupils to reach the 
alternative school in accordance with the Authority’s Transport Policy. 

 It was noted that consideration must be given to the fact that parents can choose 
to send their children to any school. 

4.  NEXT STEPS 

 It was noted that the intention of the next meeting would be to shortlist (3 or 4 
options which will be assessed further) 

 The question was raised if the process will be discussed with the pupils. The Area 
Officer noted that he was happy to go to the school but it was not necessary at this 
time.  It would be more appropriate for the Headteacher to discuss directly with 
the pupils once a formal decision has been made. 

 The Area Education Officer will discuss the Cabinet Member's recommendation 
with the Governing Body in November. 

27
Page 122



 

 Attendees were concerned that the decision had already been made as more 
information was included with 'Option 8'. 

 It was emphasised that clear guidelines were being followed when considering 
'SWOT Analysis' and it was noted that no decision had been made internally on the 
process. 

 One member expressed the need to add the reason he believed the numbers had 
reduced in 'Option 5'. It was explained that it was possible for the individual to 
make an official complaint on the matter and it was noted that that trying to justify 
reasons for the current situation was not part of the SWOT Analysis exercise for the 
options. 

 It was explained that the shortlist was decided by reviewing all the options and 
comments we have received by following a criteria in accordance with the 
Education Department's objectives. 

 Action: Ysgol Llanaelhaearn Stakeholders to share further comments by email by 
Thursday *. An electronic copy of the presentation will be shared. 

5.  CLOSE 
 Everyone was thanked for attending the meeting and the next meeting will be held 

in two weeks (23 September)*. 
 

*Since the meeting, it was decided to allow more time to submit further responses 
and comments, by Monday 16th September 2019, and the next meeting will be 
held on Monday 30th September 2019 at 7.30pm at Canolfan y Babell, 
Llanaelhaearn. 

28
Page 123



 
 
 

 

Adolygu Ysgol Llanaelhaearn  
 

19:30 – 21:00, Dydd Llun, 30 Medi 2019 
 

Canolfan Y Babell, Llanaelhaearn 
 

   

1. 

 

CROESO (Garem Jackson, Pennaeth Addysg) 

   

2. 
 GEIRIAU AGORIADOL YR AELOD CABINET DROS ADDYSG (Cyng. Cemlyn Williams) 

   

3. 
 CYFLWYNIAD – ASESIAD OPSIYNAU (Gwern ap Rhisiart, Swyddog Addysg Ardal Dwyfor a 

Meirionnydd)  

 

5. 

 

6. 

  

CAMAU NESAF  

 
CLOI 
 

Cyfarfod Adolygu Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 
 

29
Page 124



Ysgol Llanaelhaearn

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

Asesiad opsiynau

Gwern ap Rhisiart 
Swyddog Addysg Ardal

Agenda

• Asesiad o’r rhestr o opsiynau

• Opsiynau

• Camau nesaf

Rhestr hir o opsiynau

OPSIYNAU

1. Gwneud dim - parhau gyda’r sefyllfa bresennol (Y ‘Status Quo’)

2. Newid Strwythur Staffio

3. Uned Arsylwi Blynyddoedd Cynnar

4. Ffederaleiddio

5. Gwarant y bydd yr ysgol ar agor am o leiaf 5 mlynedd

6. Clwb gofal plant

7. Caffi Cymunedol

8. Cau Ysgol Llanaelhaearn a’r disgyblion i’w haddysgu mewn ysgol amgen

Opsiynau 

• Rydym wedi ymchwilio’r 8 opsiwn yma.

• Yn dilyn eich mewnbwn, mae canfyddiadau'r ‘ SWOT 
analysis ’ ar gyfer pob opsiwn wedi eu hystyried a’u 
mesur yn erbyn y meini prawf 

Addysg Gynradd o’r Ansawdd Gorau i Blant

“Cynnig addysg o’r ansawdd uchaf posibl fydd yn rhoi'r 
profiadau, y sgiliau a’r hyder i blant y Sir a’u galluogi i 

ddatblygu i fod yn  dinasyddion dwyieithog, llwyddiannus a 
chyflawn.”

30
Page 125



Addysg Gynradd o’r Ansawdd Gorau i Blant

Ffactorau:

1. Maint dosbarthiadau ac amrediad oedran

2. Niferoedd Disgyblion

3. Amgylchedd Dysgu

4. Arweinyddiaeth a Staffio

5. Y Gymuned

6. Adnoddau Ariannol

7. Sefyllfa eithriadol

8. Iaith

9. Ffactorau Daearyddol

Meini prawf 
Opsiynau

1.
 S

ta
tu

s
Q

uo

2.
 N

ew
id

 s
tr

w
yt

hu
r 

st
af

fio
  

3.
 U

ne
d 

AB
C 

 

4.
 F

fe
de

ra
le

id
di

o 
 

5.
 G

w
ar

an
t o

 5
 

m
ly

ne
dd

  

6.
 G

of
al

 P
la

nt
  

7.
 A

go
r c

af
fi 

 

8.
 C

au
 Y

sg
ol

 
Ll

an
ae

lh
ae

ar
n 

M
ei

ni
 P

ra
w

f 

1. Maint dosbarthiadau ac 
amrediad oedran

2. Niferoedd Disgyblion

4. Arweinyddiaeth

5. Y Gymuned

6. Adnoddau Ariannol

8. Iaith

9. Ffactorau Daearyddol

Opsiynau 

OPSIYNAU

4. Ffederaleiddio

8. Cau Ysgol Llanaelhaearn a’r disgyblion i’w haddysgu mewn ysgol amgen

4. Ffederaleiddio ffurfiol

4. Cryfderau / Strengths 4. Gwendidau / Weaknesses

• Ffurfioli y trefniant o gydweithio 10 • Niferoedd ddim yn ddigon i ganiatáu amser digyswllt i’r 
Pennaeth 4

• Cadw ysgol yn Llanaelhaearn 5 • Dosbarthiadau bychain 1

• Addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg i ddysgwyr 8 • Cost y disgybl uchel 6

• Ysgol o fewn pellter rhesymol i gartref dysgwyr y 
dalgylch 9

• Niferoedd isel 2

• Model ffurfiol yn rhoi strwythur pendant ac buasai
rhaid i unrhyw Bennaeth newydd gytuno â hyn 4

• Ansicrwydd yn parhau ynglŷn a chynaladwyedd 
darpariaeth addysg yn Llanaelhaearn 5

• Ansawdd yr addysg a buddiannau'r ysgol 10

4. Cyfleon / Opportunities 4. Bygythiadau / Threats

• Arbed amser y Pennaeth 4 • Posibilrwydd o ddiffyg yn y gyllideb 6

• Un Corff Llywodraethol ar y tair ysgol 4 • Costau cynnal a chadw yr adeilad 3

• Rhannu adnoddau 6 • Llefydd gweigion 2

• Cyfle i sefydlu clwb gofal plant i geisio cynyddu 
niferoedd a chreu incwm 2

• Rhagamcanion niferoedd 2

• Cyfle i gyflogi staff ar draws y ffederasiwn yn y 
dyfodol 6

• Canran uchel o blant yn mynychu ysgolion all-dalgylch 5

• Diffyg diddordeb gan yr ysgolion cyfagos 10

4. Ffederaleiddio ffurfiol

• Proses statudol
• Rhwng 2 a 6 o ysgolion

• Un corff llywodraethu

• 1-2 riant-lywodraethwr o bob ysgol
• Ysgolion yn cadw eu hunaniaeth (gwisg ysgol, enw, ethos) os yn 

dymuno
• Cyllidebau yn parhau ar wahân 

• Cyfleon i rannu adnoddau, pontio disgyblion a mwy

• Yn y dyfodol, opsiwn i gyflogi staff ar draws y ffederasiwn

4. Ffederaleiddio ffurfiol
Ysgol yr Eifl

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn

Ysgol Pentreuchaf

Ysgol Bro Plenydd

Ysgol Llangybi

Ysgol Chwilog

31
Page 126



Opsiynau 

OPSIYNAU

4. Ffederaleiddio

8. Cau Ysgol Llanaelhaearn a’r disgyblion i’w haddysgu mewn ysgol amgen

Camau nesaf / Next steps

• Cynnal asesiadau effaith yr opsiynau:
– Ieithyddol

– Cymunedol

– Cydraddoldeb

– Trefniadau Teithio

– Llesiant

– Ansawdd a Safonau Addysg

• Aelod Cabinet i gyflwyno adroddiad i Gabinet Cyngor Gwynedd.

32
Page 127



Ysgol Llanaelhaearn

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

Options Assessment

Gwern ap Rhisiart 
Area Education Officer

Agenda

• Assessing the list of options

• Options

• Next steps

List of Options

OPTIONS

1. Continue with the ‘status quo’

2. Changing Staffing Structure

3. Early Years Observation Unit

4. Federalisation

5. Guarantee that the school will be open for at least 5 years

6. Childcare club

7. Community Café

8. Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and pupils to be educated in an alternative school

Options 

• We have researched these 8 options.
• Following your input, the SWOT analysis findings for 

each option have been considered and measured 
against the criteria

Excellent Primary Education for Children

“Provide education of the best possible quality that will 
provide the county’s children with the experiences, skills 

and confidence to develop into bilingual, successful 
and well-rounded citizens.”

33
Page 128



Excellent Primary Education for Children

Factors:

1. Class sizes

2. Pupil Population and Numbers

3. The Child’s Learning Environment

4. Leadership

5. The Community

6. Financial Resources

7. Specific request for consideration or an 
exceptional situation
8. The Welsh Language

9. Geographical Factors

Meini prawf 
Options

1.
 S

ta
tu

s 
Q

uo
 

2.
 C

ha
ng

e 
st

af
fin

g 
   

  
st

ru
ct

ur
e

3.
 A

BC
 U

ni
t

4.
 F

ed
er

al
is

at
io

n 

5.
 5

 y
ea

r w
ar

ra
nt

y

6.
 C

hi
ld

 c
ar

e

7.
 O

pe
n 

a 
ca

fé

8.
 C

lo
se

Ys
go

l 
Ll

an
ae

lh
ae

ar
n

Cr
ite

ria

1. Class sizes

2. Pupil Population and Numbers

4. Leadership

5. The Community

6. Financial Resources

8. The Welsh Language

9. Geographical Factors

Options

OPTIONS

4. Federalisation

8. Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and pupils to be educated in an alternative school

4. Formal Federalisation

4. Cryfderau / Strengths 4. Gwendidau / Weaknesses

• Formalise the collaboration arrangement 10 • Numbers not enough to allow non-contact time for 
Headteacher 4

• Keep a school presence in Llanaelhaearn 5 • Small classes 1

• Welsh-medium education for learners 8 • High cost per pupil 6

• School within a reasonable distance of the catchment 
area learners' home 9

• Low Numbers 2

• A formal model with a definite structure and any new 
Headteacher would have to agree to the arrangement 4

• Uncertainty remains regarding the sustainability of education 
provision in Llanaelhaearn 5

• The quality of education and the interests of the 
school 10

4. Cyfleon / Opportunities 4. Bygythiadau / Threats

• Release Headteacher’s time 4 • Possibility of budget deficit 6

• One Governing Body for the two or more schools 4 • Building maintenance costs 3

• To share resources 6 • Surplus places 2

• Opportunity to set up a childcare club to try to 
increase numbers and generate income 2

• Projections of numbers 2

• Opportunity to employ staff across the federation in the 
future 6

• High percentage of children attending schools outside the 
catchment area 5

• Lack of interest from neighbouring schools 10

4. Formal Federalisation

• Statutory process
• Between 2 and 6 schools

• One governing body

• 1-2 parent governors from each school
• Schools retain their identity (school uniform, name, ethos) if 

desired
• Budgets remain separate

• Opportunities to share resources, transition pupils and more

• In the future, an option to employ staff across the federation

4. Ffederaleiddio ffurfiol

Ysgol yr Eifl

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn

Ysgol Pentreuchaf

Ysgol Bro Plenydd

Ysgol Llangybi

Ysgol Chwilog

34
Page 129



Options

OPTIONS

4. Federalisation

8. Close Ysgol Llanaelhaearn and pupils to be educated in an alternative school

Next steps

• Impact assessments for options:
– Language

– Community

– Equality

– Travel Arrangements

– Well-being

– Quality and Standards in Education

• Cabinet Member to present a report to Gwynedd Council's 
Cabinet.

35
Page 130



  

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

Cyfarfod o: Adolygu Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 3  Dyddiad:  30/09/2019       7:30yh 
Lleoliad: Canolfan y Babell, Llanaelhaearn 

 

Presennol: Swyddogion: 
Gwern ap Rhisiart (GapRh); Garem Jackson (GJ); Cyng. Cemlyn Williams (CW); Ffion Jones (FfJ); 
Betsan Williams (BW); 
 
Ar ran Llywodraethwyr Ysgol Llanaelhaearn:  
7 Aelod 
 
Rhieni/Teulu 
2 Aelod 
 

Ymddiheuriadau:  

 

Rhif 
Eitem 

Eitem / Pwnc Gweithrediad 

1.  CROESO 

 Croesawyd pawb i’r trydydd cyfarfod lleol gan y Pennaeth Addysg, Garem Jackson. 
Hwn fydd y cyfarfod diwethaf ac yn cyflwyno’r opsiynau terfynol. Nodwyd ei fod yn 
farn broffesiynol yr Adran Addysg ac felly mae pob ymdrech wedi ei wneud i gael y 
wybodaeth. 

 Pwysleisiwyd ei bod wastad yn opsiwn i wneud dim, sef parhau gyda’r sefyllfa 
bresennol (y ‘Status Quo’) ac mai’r opsiynau sydd yn cael eu cyflwyno heno yw’r rhai y 
mae’r Adran Addysg o’r farn a fyddai’n welliant ar y sefyllfa bresennol.  

 Pwysleisiwyd mai y Cabinet fydd yn gwneud y penderfyniad terfynol gydag 
argymhelliad yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg. 

2.  

GEIRIAU 
AGORIADOL YR 

AELOD 
CABINET DROS 

ADDYSG 

 Ategwyd y croeso gan yr Aelod Cabinet Dros Addysg, Y Cyng. Cemlyn Williams. 

 Nodwyd y bydd asesiadau effaith yn cael eu cynnal sef asesiadau ieithyddol, llesiant, 
teithio a.y.b. 

 Nodwyd bod bwriad i fynd i Gabinet ar 5 Tachwedd a bydd y penderfyniad terfynol yn 
cael ei wneud gan aelodau’r Cabinet. 

3.  

CYFLWYNIAD 
ASESIAD 

OPSIYNAU 

 Diolchwyd am yr ymatebion yn dilyn y cyfarfod diwethaf ar gyfer y “SWOT analysis”. 

 Eglurwyd mai amcan y cyfarfod yw i fynd drwy’r opsiynau ac i egluro camau nesaf y 
broses. 

 Aethpwyd drwy’r 8 opsiwn a gafodd eu trafod yn y cyfarfod blaenorol. Mae’r adran 
wedi edrych yn fanwl ar yr opsiynau ac wedi ymgorffori’r sylwadau ac erbyn hyn yn y 
sefyllfa i fesur y meini prawf penodol sydd yn y Strategaeth Addysg Gynradd o’r 
Ansawdd Gorau i Blant Gwynedd. Yn 2018, bu i’r Cabinet fabwysiadu egwyddorion 
addysg addas i bwrpas fel uchelgais i resymoli amrediad oedran mewn dosbarthiadau 
ac amser teg i benaethiaid arwain eu hysgolion. Eglurwyd mai sail y drafodaeth fyddai 
gwerthuso yr opsiynau yn erbyn ffactorau y Strategaeth Addysg Gynradd o’r Ansawdd 
Gorau i Blant Gwynedd. 

 Dangoswyd y 9 ffactor o’r ddogfen ac eglurwyd fod 2 wedi’u diystyru yn barod sef 
Amgylchedd Dysgu a Sefyllfa Eithriadol. Y rheswm am hyn yw nad sefyllfa ble cynigir 
adeiladu ysgol newydd yw hon, a hefyd y rheswm dros gynnal y cyfarfodydd hyn yw’r 
sefyllfa eithriadol ac argyfyngus o niferoedd isel y mae’r ysgol yn ei wynebu eisoes. 

 Rhannwyd y ddogfen ddrafft o gymharu’r modelau i aelodau o’r cyfarfod a rhoddwyd 
amser i bawb fynd drwy’r tabl. Eglurwyd mai pwrpas y ddogfen yw i ystyried yr 8 
opsiwn yn erbyn y 7 ffactor sydd yn y strategaeth. 

 Mynegwyd bod nifer o ffactorau coch yn gyson ar hyd y tabl gan nad yw rhai o’r 

Cyfarfod Adolygu Ysgol Llanaelhaearn 

 

36
Page 131



 

opsiynau yn newid sefyllfa bresennol yr ysgol o safbwynt y ffactor penodol hwnnw. 
Rhoddwyd y cyfle i aelodau i wirio’r ffeithiau ac i gynnwys unrhyw sylwadau cyn 
diwedd dydd Mercher, 2 Hydref.  
 
Ffederaleiddio 

 Trafodwyd yr opsiwn ffederaleiddio caled, sef trefniant ffurfiol, nid y trefniant meddal 
sydd ar hyn o bryd.  

 Mae’r adran wedi edrych i mewn i gryfderau, gwendidau, cyfleoedd a bygythiadau 
ffederaleiddio. Adroddwyd yn ystod y broses o gyflwyno cynigion i ffederaleiddio mae 
risg yn bodoli y gall ysgol arall wrthwynebu’r cais. Eglurwyd bod model ffederaleiddio 
yn golygu diddymu cyrff llywodraethu yr ysgolion a sefydlu un corff newydd 
llywodraethol ar gyfer y ffederasiwn. Bydd ffederaleiddio ffurfiol yn golygu bydd 
angen mynd drwy’r broses statudol o ymgynghori. Bydd cyllidebau yn parhau ar 
wahân,  ond byddai cyfle i rannu adnoddau a chyflogi staff ar draws yr ysgolion (ond 
dim ond y staff a benodir yn dilyn sefydlu’r corff newydd, nid staff presennol yr 
ysgolion unigol). 

 Bydd rhaid cael parodrwydd ysgolion eraill i gydweithio ar gyfer yr opsiwn yma; fel 
arall bydd rhaid dechrau proses ffurfiol tebyg i adolygu sefyllfa’r ysgolion hynny.  
 
Cau Ysgol Llanaelhaearn a’r disgyblion i’w haddysgu mewn ysgol amgen 

 Trafodwyd yr opsiwn o gau Ysgol Llanaelhaearn. 
 

4.  CAMAU NESAF 

 Eglurwyd mai’r camau nesaf fydd edrych ar yr opsiynau yma ac edrych yn fwy manwl 
ar yr asesiadau. Mi fydd yr holl wybodaeth (gan gynnwys y ddogfen gymharu 
modelau, asesiadau, strategaeth a.y.b.) mewn pecyn a fydd yn cael ei gyflwyno i’r 
Cabinet ar 5 Tachwedd. 

 Gofynnwyd a oes modd cyflwyno’r adroddiad Cabinet i’r Corff yn ogystal. Bydd y 
Swyddog Addysg yn cyflwyno’r adroddiad i’r Corff Llywodraethu. Mae’r adroddiad yn 
gyhoeddus ar wefan y cyngor oddeutu 25 Hydref a bydd cyfle i’r Aelod Lleol gyflwyno 
ei sylwadau. 

 Gofynnwyd i FfJ rannu’r strategaeth ar e-bost i’r Llywodraethwyr. 

 Bydd angen i aelodau o’r cyfarfod gyflwyno unrhyw sylwadau ar e-bost erbyn dydd 
Mercher, 2 Hydref ar gyfer y ddogfen gymharu modelau. 
 

5.  CLOI 
 Diolchwyd i bawb am fynychu’r cyfarfod ac am eu mewnbwn drwy gydol y broses. 

 
 

37
Page 132



  

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

Meeting: Ysgol Llanaelhaearn Review 3 Date:  30/09/2019       7:30pm 
Location: Canolfan y Babell, Llanaelhaearn 

 

Present: Officers: 
Gwern ap Rhisiart (GapRh); Garem Jackson (GJ); Cyng. Cemlyn Williams (CW); Ffion Jones (FfJ); 
Betsan Williams (BW); 
 
On behalf of the Governors of Ysgol Llanaelhaearn:  
7 Members 
 
Parents/Family 
2 Members 
 

Apologies:  

 

Item 
Number 

Item / Subject  Actions 

1.  WELCOME 

 Head of Education Garem Jackson welcomed everyone to the third local 
meeting. This will be the last meeting and will present the final options. It was 
noted that it was the professional opinion of the Education department and 
therefore every effort has been made to obtain the information. 

 It was emphasised that it was always an option to do nothing, namely to 
continue with the 'Status Quo' and that the options being presented tonight 
were those that the Education Department was of the opinion which would be 
an improvement on the current situation. 

 It was also emphasised that the Cabinet would make the final decision with 
the recommendation of the Cabinet Member for Education 

2.  

CABINET 
MEMBER FOR 
EDUCATION’S 

OPENING 
WORDS 

 Cabinet Member for Education, Cllr. Cemlyn Williams. 

 Noted that impact assessments will be carried out such as linguistic, well-
being, travel etc. 

 It was noted that there is an intention to go to Cabinet on 5 November and the 
final decision would be made by Cabinet members. 

3.  

OPTIONS 
ASSESSMENT 

PRESENTATION 

 Thanks were expressed for the responses following the last meeting for the 
SWOT analysis. 

 It was explained that the objective of the meeting is to go through the options 
and explain the next steps in the process. 

 The 8 options discussed at the previous meeting were discussed. The 
department has looked in detail through the options and incorporated the 
comments and is now in a position to measure the specific criteria contained 
in the Strategy for Primary Education of the Best Quality for Children in 
Gwynedd. Since the document's introduction, the cabinet has adopted the 
educational principles that are fit for purpose as an ambition to rationalise the 
age range in classes and a fair time for headteachers to lead their schools. It 
was explained that the basis of the discussion at the meeting was the factors 
of the Excellent Primary Education for Children in Gwynedd Strategy when 
weighing up the options. 

 The 9 factors of the document were shown and it was explained that 2 factors 
would not be used as a criterion, namely Learning Environment and 
Exceptional Situation. This is because it is not a situation where it is proposed 
to build a new school, and also the reason for holding these meetings is the 

Ysgol Llanaelhaearn Review Meeting 

 

38
Page 133



 

exceptional and critical situation of low numbers that the school is already 
facing. 

 The draft document comparing the models was distributed to members of the 
meeting and everyone was given time to go through the table. It was 
explained that the significance of the document is to go through the 8 options 
against the 7 factors in the strategy. 

 It was stated that a number of red factors are consistent across the table as 
some of the options do not change the current position of the school in terms 
of that particular factor. It was noted that if members felt that the comments 
needed to be changed or that facts were incorrect, this would need to be 
responded to the officers before the end of Wednesday, 2 October. 
 

Federalisation 

 The option of hard federalisation, a formal arrangement not the current soft 
arrangement, was discussed. 

 The department has looked at the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, 
threats of federalisation. It was reported that there is a risk of another school 
refusing to federate but it is possible to force a school to federate. It was 
explained that a federation model meant abolishing the governing bodies of 
the schools and establishing one new governing body for the federation. 
Formal federalisation will mean going through the statutory consultation 
process. Budgets will remain separate, but there would be an opportunity to 
share resources and employ staff across schools. 

 This option will require the willingness of other schools to collaborate, 
otherwise a similar formal process of reviewing the situation of those schools 
will have to be initiated. 
 

Close Llanaelhaearn School and pupils to educate them in alternative school 

 The option of closing Ysgol Llanaelhaearn was discussed. 
 

4.  NEXT STEPS 

 It was explained that the next steps would be to look at these options and look in 
more detail at the assessments. Everything included (including the model 
comparison document, assessments, strategy etc.) will be presented to the 
Cabinet on 5 November. 

 It was asked if the Cabinet report could also be presented to the Body. The 
Education Officer will present the report to the governing body. The report is 
made public on the council's website around 25 October and the Local Member 
will have had an opportunity to include his comments in it, in his capacity as the 
Local Member for the Ysgol Llanaelhaearn catchment area. 

 FfJ was asked to email the strategy to members of the Governors. 

 Members of the meeting will need to submit any comments via email by 
Wednesday, 2 October for the model comparison document. 

5.  TO CLOSE 
 Everyone was thanked for attending the meeting and for their input throughout 

the process. 
 

39
Page 134



Yn dilyn y cyfarfodydd lleol, mae crynodeb isod o’r sylwadau a dderbyniwyd: 

Cyfarfod 1 – 24 Mehefin 2019 

1 cais i addasu’r cofnodion.  

Cyfarfod 2 – 9 Medi 2019 

3 ymateb: 

1 yn nodi y byddai ymglymiad gan yr Awdurdod i sicrhau fod yr ysgol yn agored am gyfnod 

penodol yn rhoi cyfle i godi niferoedd, ac i sefydlu ysgol feithrin.  

1 yn nodi opsiynau sy’n cael eu ffafrio gan y Corff Llywodraethu, sef ffederaleiddio, gwarant 

o 5 mlynedd neu sefydlu clwb gofal plant.  

1 yn gwneud cais i’r Adran Addysg gynnal asesiad stoc tai ar gael yn Llanaelhaearn ac yr ardal 

gyfagos (yn cynnwys tai fyddai yn gallu bod ar gael yn y dyfodol agos - gwyddom am ddau dy 

fyddai bosib fod ar gael i deuluoedd yn y pentref). Hefyd, asesiad o’r teuluoedd Cymreig  gyda 

diddordeb byw yn yr ardal yma/enwau ar y rhestr, a rhestr fer o bobl fyddai bosib eu hannog 

i’r pentref.  

Cyfarfod 3 – 23 Medi 2019 

Ni chafwyd fewnbwn yn dilyn y cyfarfod hwn.  

 

Yn dilyn y trydydd cyfarfod, bu i’r Adran Addysg gael eu hysbysu o ddiwrnod agored a fyddai’n 

cael ei gynnal ar y 23 Hydref 2019 er mwyn casglu barn yn lleol os oes angen am dai ar gyfer 

pobl leol yn ardal Llanaelhaearn.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40
Page 135



Following the local meetings, a summary of the responses received are below: 

Meeting 1 - 24 June 2019 

1 request to modify the minutes. 

Meeting 2 - 9 September 2019 

3 responses: 

1 noting that Authority’s commitment to ensure that the school is open for a fixed period 

would provide an opportunity to increase numbers, and to establish a nursery school. 

1 sets out the Governing Body's preferred options of federalisation, 5 year guarantee or 

setting up a childcare club. 

1 request that the Education Department carry out a housing stock assessment available in 

Llanaelhaearn and the surrounding area (including houses that could be available in the 

near future - we know of two houses that could be available to families in the village). Also, 

an assessment of the Welsh families with an interest in this area/names on the list, and a 

short list of people who could be encouraged into the village. 

Meeting 3 - 23 September 2019 

There was no input following this meeting. 

 

Following the third meeting, the Education Department was informed of an open day to be 

held on 23 October 2019 to gather local views on the need for housing for local people in 

the Llanaelhaearn area. 

 

 

 

41
Page 136



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet 

Date of meeting: 5 November 2019

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Gareth Wyn Griffith

Contact officer: Dafydd Wyn Williams - Head of Environment 
Department

Contact Number: 32371

Subject: Gwynedd Council Staff Travel Savings 

THE DECISION SOUGHT

To agree to adopt an alternative plan to achieve the proposed savings in the Staff Travel 
field. 

REASONS FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION

To adopt a scheme that will not have a detrimental impact on services

______________________________________________________________________________________

INTRODUCTION AND RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 The Council's current Financial Strategy includes savings deriving from staff travel 
allowances. An initial figure of £390,000 was earmarked based on work 
completed by specialist consultants from Edge Public Solutions (2014).  This saving 
is in addition to Departmental schemes.  The basis of their projection was that 
there were opportunities to save 15% of the travel budget at the time by:

 establishing pool car arrangements 
 improved management of journeys. 

1.2 The graph below (Chart 1) sets a simple cost per mile ratio (based on relatively 
recent fuel prices) and highlights the potential to save on travel costs under the 
right circumstances.

Page 137

Agenda Item 7



Chart 1: Cost per mile comparison for a personal vehicle, a pool vehicle and a 
hire vehicle

1.3 A simple chart (Chart 2 below) has also been developed, which outlines 
considerations in an attempt to encourage Council staff to give more thought to 
the need to travel, and if the journey is necessary, whether it is possible to 
undertake it in a way which costs less.  

Chart 2: Considerations for the need to travel

Page 138



1.4 There are some successful examples of departments within the Council, which 
have diverted journeys to pool cars and improved their management of journeys, 
and thus achieved savings by spending less on funding travel.  In some cases, the 
departments have achieved a better cost per mile than the above (i.e. less than 
35p per mile).

1.5 Much work has been done in an attempt to discover the potential savings within 
this field.  It is quite evident that the £390,000 noted is far beyond what is 
practical, and that around £120,000 would be more realistic as a first step.

METHODOLOGY

1.6 The chosen methodology is relatively simple, and has been decided upon after 
considering a number of different options for achieving a sensible solution.  In 
simple terms, work has been done to identify all journeys over 60 miles, and the 
cost of each journey set at 35p (the highest cost for a pool vehicle) per mile 
against those journeys rather than the current allowance of 45p per mile.

1. It is felt that this methodology provides scope for Departments to further 
trial pool vehicles and of course, to look at journey management and 
challenge whether the journey is necessary or if it is possible to make the 
journey or have the discussion using an alternative method.

2. The model, therefore, is not purely scientific and a scheme of this kind 
would be a project in changing attitudes as much as logistics. It is also 
evident that there is no one solution to fit each service, and so the 
proposition here is to establish a target to be achieved by maximising the 
use of pool cars along with reducing the amount of travel.

3. In developing the basis, a series of exceptions was established to 
acknowledge the likelihood that there would be less travel options 
associated with certain positions. Journeys of under 60 miles were made 
exempt, and focus was therefore give to the longest journeys. 

4. Some positions have also been excepted where it was acknowledged 
that it would be difficult to make the journey with pool cars e.g. 
domiciliary carers and supply teachers.

Sum to be saved by each Department based on the methodology and journey 
management:

1.7 The table below sets out the 'target' sum for each Department based on the 
methodology.

Page 139



OBSERVATIONS BY THE DEPARTMENTS TO DATE

1.8 I have tried to discuss this savings scheme with all Heads of Department. The 
following is a list of some observations I have received to date:

 These savings have been included in our savings plan - double counting
 More journeys to be made exempt
 What support is available to help us in achieving this?
 Clearer details are needed regarding the hire vehicles available and how 

to arrange them.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 To agree to adopt an alternative plan to achieve the proposed savings in the 
Staff Travel field.  The savings to be achieved during the 2020/21 financial year.

______________________________________________________________

Department Net savings from 
grants

Education £9,775
Environment £8,772
Corporate Support £7,064
Finance £2,379
Economy and Community £6,526

Adults £33,183
Children £31,463

Highways and Municipal £3,463

Leadership Team £1,159
Consultancy £13,130

Housing and Property (?) £1,084

Total £117,998

 

Page 140



VIEWS OF THE STATUTORY OFFICERS

Monitoring Officer:
No comments to add regarding propriety

Head of Finance Department:
The Council's proposed savings program includes £ 390,000 from historic plan, which has 
been in place since the corporate approach of identifying savings before the move to 
the departmental 'ownership' savings regime. By now, I agree with the author of the 
report that the ambitious estimate provided by “EDGE”, outlining how much could be 
saved from staff travel was over-optimistic, or that departments have already realised a 
proportion of the relevant savings. Therefore, the value of the historic savings plan must 
be adjusted.

The scope for realizing savings from changing staff travel arrangements varies between 
the Council departments. However, I know that the author has secured agreement from 
all heads of departments and Cabinet Members to contribute the 'target' amount for 
each Department, which is noted in 1.7 of this report.

If the Cabinet were to approve the decision sought, we would reduce the total savings 
from this plan from £390,000 to £117,998. Of course, this would add £ 272,002 to the 
Council's funding gap for 2020/21, but we must plan on sound basis. Furthermore, reports 
will be submitted to the scrutiny committees in November detailing departmental 
proposals for £ 2m of potential savings to be realised in 2020/21.

Page 141



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet

Date of meeting: 05/11/19
Cabinet Member: Councillor Gareth Griffith
Contact Officer: Gareth Jones Assistant Head of Department Environment 

Department
Contact Telephone 
Number: 

34092

Title of Item: National Development Framework Consultation 
____________________________________________________________________________

THE DECISION SOUGHT

That the Cabinet:

Approves the draft response to the consultation on the National Development Framework 
(Appendix 1). 

Authorises the Assistant Head in consultation with the Cabinet Member to undertake any 
amendments arising from the Cabinet's discussions, including editorial and administrative 
changes. 

Authorises the Assistant Head in consultation with the Cabinet Member to create a cover letter 
highlighting the Cabinet's main points and for this to be submitted with the response in 
Appendix 1 to Welsh Government by 15 November 2019. 
____________________________________________________________________________

THE REASON FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION 

Welsh Government has prepared a National Development Framework, the document is currently 
the subject of a public consultation and a response needs to be submitted by 15 November 2019.  
________________________________________________________________________

INTRODUCTION AND RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS
BACKGROUND

1.1 Welsh Government is required to prepare a NDF under the Planning (Wales) Act 2015.  
Following its adoption, the NDF will replace the Wales Spatial Plan - a document that is 
considered ineffective to a great degree.  Essentially, and contrary to the Wales Spatial 
Plan, the NDF will have development plan status.  This means that its subordinate plans, 
namely Strategic Development Plans and Local Development Plans, must be consistent 
with it. 

WHAT IS THE NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK? 

Page 142

Agenda Item 8



1.2 The NDF is a 20 year plan and once adopted, it will apply to the period between 2020 - 
2040.  The draft document sets out Welsh Government policies on developing and using 
land in the spatial context. 

1.3 Welsh Government describes how a NDF will address national priorities through the 
planning system, including: 
 Maintaining and developing a thriving economy 
 Decarbonisation 
 Developing resilient ecosystems 
 Improving the health and well-being of our communities  

1.4 The NDF is divided into five parts.  

1 Introduction - This section explains the purpose of the document, its status when it is 
a final document, how the document is in keeping with the broader policies of Welsh 
Government   

2 Wales: Overview - Challenges and Opportunities - This section sets out the main 
challenges and opportunities facing Wales over the next 20 years.  Including, e.g.  Climate 
Change, Transport, A Changing Population, A Wales where the Welsh language is alive 
and thriving, A Vibrant Landscape, A Changing Economy, Various Regions  
3 NDF Outcomes - Through the NDF, the Government hopes to create a Wales where 
people live... 

 and work in connected, inclusive and healthy places  
 in rural, vibrant places where they can live, work and receive services  
 in distinctive regions that address health inequalities and socio-economic 

inequalities through sustainable growth  
 in places where the Welsh language is thriving  
 and work in towns and cities that are a focus and trigger to sustainable 

growth  
 in places where prosperity, innovation and culture are promoted  
 in places where travel is sustainable  
 in places with the highest quality digital infrastructure  
 in places that manage their natural resources sustainably and reduce 

pollution  
 in places with biodiverse, resilient and connected ecosystems  
 in de-carbonised places. 

1.5 The NDF proposes 11 'outcomes'. These Outcomes are general ambitions based on 
national Planning principles and the national creating sustainable places outcomes noted 
in Planning Policy Wales. 

4 Spatial Strategy and Options:  NDF Spatial Strategy - This section sets out a spatial 
strategy that notes the type and location of development across Wales.  The spatial 
strategy is a lead framework for those places that will change on a large scale and 
developments of national importance.  In the north Wales region, the spatial strategy 
shows that Wrexham and Deeside will be areas of national growth (mainly employment 

Page 143



opportunity areas and a large-scale increase in new housing), with Bangor and 
Caernarfon as regional growth areas.   This section also introduces 11 Policies relating to 
Sustainable Urban Growth, Supporting Rural Communities, Delivering Affordable 
Housing, Strategic Framework to Improve Biodiversity, National Forest, Wind Energy and 
Solar Energy in priority areas (outside these areas).  A Map displaying the NDF's Spatial 
Strategy is included as appendix 2 to this report.  

5 The Regions - This section sets outs policies for the regions.  The Government states 
that it is important for Strategic Development Plans to be drawn up and Policy 16 outlines 
what should be included in SDPs.  The other Policies in this section of the document 
relating to the north Wales region (including Gwynedd, Anglesey, Conwy, Denbighshire, 
Flint and Wrexham, map included of the North Region as appendix 3 to this report), 
includes Policy 18 - Coastal Settlements in North Wales. The policy supports this area as 
the focus for managed growth.  The area extends from Caernarfon to Deeside.  There are 
also policies on Holyhead Port (Policy 20) and Policy 22 North-west Wales and Energy 
(Policy 22). 

1.6 The documents that are the subject of the public consultation can be viewed here: 
https://gov.wales/draft-national-development-
framework?_ga=2.124342346.1791518843.1571923704-1057805724.1499345243

MATTERS TO CONSIDER AND AN OUTLINE OF THE RESPONSE TO SUBMIT TO 
WELSH GOVERNMENT 

1.7 The consultation document includes 15 questions in order to give a structured response.  
It is suggested that a response is given to the individual questions noted in appendix 1, 
accompanied by some general points.   

1.8 Summary of the observations: 

 Support the principle of establishing a NDF.  

 Questions regarding whom will prepare Strategic Development Plans, will 
Councils receive additional resources in order to prepare them? 

 Concerns about the lack of policies relating to the rural areas of Wales, a risk that 
the focus on cities and large towns and the growth of urban areas will increase the 
existing spatial differences, and sections of the document gives the impression 
that rural areas will be voids, except for agriculture and visitors. 

 Concerns about how the Welsh language is portrayed in the document, with 
references to the weakness of the Welsh language and the risk for the Welsh 
language to be portrayed as something historical to protect, rather than as a 
means of communication that should be professed and developed.  

 Questions over the evidence base supporting the NDF, e.g. housing and 
affordable housing figures, renewable energy priority areas, 

 The document refers to a built coastal arch from Caernarfon to Deeside as a focus 
for managed growth, reflecting the important sub-regional role that this area plays 

Page 144

https://gov.wales/draft-national-development-framework?_ga=2.124342346.1791518843.1571923704-1057805724.1499345243
https://gov.wales/draft-national-development-framework?_ga=2.124342346.1791518843.1571923704-1057805724.1499345243


when supporting the main growth area noted, namely Wrexham and Deeside.  No 
reference to supporting the sub-regional area. 

 No reference whatsoever to the Welsh Government designated Enterprise Zones 
in the document. 

 No reference to the connection between rural areas and the regional growth 
centres.  No reference to towns that have an important role as they serve rural 
areas such as Porthmadog, Pwllheli, Blaenau Ffestiniog, Dolgellau.

 Unclear from the document whether the Government supports Low Carbon Energy 
or favours renewable energy.  How does this affect plans for Wylfa Newydd and 
the LDP and plans for the Small Modular Reactors (nuclear)?

NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE

A response to the consultation needs to be sent to the Welsh Government by 15th 
November 2019. 

ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING THE DECISION
The Joint Planning Policy Unit has consulted with the Housing Department, Gwynedd 
Consultancy, Economy and Community Department and the Language Advisor. The draft 
response to the questions are based on input from the Environment Department and the 
input received from the other Departments.  Also note that a discussion has been held at 
a recent Joint Planning Policy Panel and consideration given to the matters raised.  
_______________________________________________________________________

Opinion of the statutory officers

Chief Finance Officer:

I note that the report, in the second bullet point under 1.8, asks if any additional resources will 
be available for local authorities to prepare Strategic Development Plans.

Monitoring Officer:
The National Development Framework forms part of the  framework of development plans 
under the Planning (Wales) Act 2015. As a consequence it is a document of high and long 
term significance. It is appropriate that the Cabinet determines the Councils response to the 
consultation. 

Appendices

Appendix 1 – Draft Response to the National Development Framework Consultation
Appendix 2 – Spatial Strategy Map 
Appendix 3 – North Wales Region Map 

Background Documents

Consultation Documents – National Development Framework – Welsh Government August 2019

Page 145



Appendix 1
 
NDF Outcomes (chapter 3)

4.1 The NDF has proposed 11 Outcomes as an ambition of where we want to be in 
20 years’ time. 

 Overall, to what extent do you agree or disagree the 11 Outcomes are a realistic 
vision for the NDF? 

Strongly 
agree Agree

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

Don’t 
know

No 
opinion

x

 To what extent do you agree with the 11 Outcomes as ambitions for the NDF?

Agree with 
all of them

Agree with 
most of 
them

Agree with 
some of 

them

Agree with 
none of them Don’t know No 

opinion

x

 If you disagree with any of the 11 Outcomes, please tell us why:

Outcome 1 – Is this excluding rural areas? It is important that rural areas are digitally well 
connected so that the same opportunities for working from home and self-employment are 
available as there are in larger cities, towns and villages. It is also important the rural areas 
have the same offer of a good quality of life for their residents. As this outcome is worded, 
and with outcome 2 below it is felt that this excludes rural areas. Should this first outcome be 
for the whole of Wales?

Outcome 2 –  As outlined above rural areas should be as well connected digitally as the 
larger towns and cities, residents of Wales should not be penalised for living in rural areas. 

Outcome 4 - There is a need to be cautious that the wording in Outcome 4 does not allow 
some authorities to consider education alone as a way of promoting and developing the 
language.   The Welsh language needs to be a key consideration throughout any plans 
relating to the economy and a number of authorities could use the wording, "Where Welsh is 
the everyday language of the community," as a way out of obligations as it is a very difficult 
statement to define and measure.  

Also how is "Where Welsh is the everyday language of the community," defined? What is the 
community?  How much of the population must speak Welsh for it to be an 'everyday 
language'?  Why is it only in communities where the Welsh language is the 'everyday 
language of the community' that development work will need to be managed in order to 
ensure that jobs and homes are available so that the language can be central to the identity 
of those communities?  If the aim of having a million Welsh speakers is going to be 
achieved, the Welsh language will need to be promoted beyond the heartlands. 

Page 146



What about the visibility of the Welsh language?  Signs, etc.?  It is believed that this should 
be promoted nationally.  

The Welsh language must be a responsibility for all, and not just the education authorities, 
across the whole of Wales.  

Also, the linguistic connection should be highlighted in the other outcomes that relate to work 
opportunities and community services (Outcome 2), economic opportunities in cities and 
towns (Outcome 5) and economic development, investment and innovation (Outcome 6) for 
example.  

The language should filter through each of the objectives and outcomes.  

Outcome 6 - This outcome should refer to reducing difference - within society and between 
places.

1. Spatial Strategy (policies 1 - 4)

The NDF spatial strategy is a guiding framework for where large-scale change and 
nationally important developments will be focused over the next 20 years. 

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the spatial strategy and key 
principles for development in…

Strongly 
agree Agree

Neither 
agree 

nor 
disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

Don’t 
know

No 
opinion

Urban 
areas
(Policies 
1, 2 & 3)

x

Rural 
areas 
(Policy 4)

x

 If you have any comments on the spatial strategy or key principles for 
development in urban and rural areas, please tell us:

General Points on the Spatial Strategy  

 A substantial risk that the Plan will be considered as one for cities / towns only, due to the 
focus on cities and large towns and growing urban areas increasing the existing spatial 
differences and that these areas continue to be poor and lose their young population.   

Page 147



 Elements on the right track, but give the impression that rural areas will be voids, except 
for agriculture and visitors.  

 The nuances of the references to rural suggest that they are relatively close to larger 
centres - there is a lack of appreciation about how far some areas are. There is a need to 
appreciate marginalisation as a substantial challenge for many communities.

 The list of economic activities that should be prioritised in the rural areas is too narrow...a 
range of economic activity and a selection of jobs (and well-paid jobs) is needed in the 
countryside - reference should be made to encouraging higher value economic activity 
that is not as dependent on location (e.g. digital).  

 Para. 4 on page 29 needs to refer to West Wales as well as Mid Wales. 

Page 24 the text goes from describing the urban areas to then refer to smaller towns & 
villages and then important regional centres. It would flow better going from urban areas to 
regional centres and then referring to smaller towns and villages.

Map - page 25 
There are links between South Gwynedd and Aberystwyth and South Gwynedd and 
Wrexham and these should be identified on the Spatial Strategy Map. Welsh Government 
designated Enterprise zones should be identified on the Spatial Strategy Map areas for 
economic development/growth. There are also links between Dwyfor and the Bangor 
Regional Growth area and these links should be recognised.

P2 - the language should be a consideration and an important factor when considering the 
location of services and facilities.  There are linguistic implications to any decision to 
centralise services and facilities in urban areas and this could have a positive impact on 
individuals' use of Welsh-medium services.  This should be highlighted.

P3 –The promotion of the use of publicly owned land is welcomed. The review of publicly 
owned land is currently undertaken as part of the evidence gathering when preparing LDPs 
therefore this is not a new policy here. Mae angen amlygu bod y Gymraeg yn ffactor ac 
ystyriaeth berthnasol mewn trefi a dinasoedd hefyd, ac nid yn perthyn i ardaloedd gwledig yn 
unig. 

There is a need to highlight that the Welsh language is a factor and a material consideration 
in towns and villages also, and that it does not apply to rural areas alone.

P4 - It is considered that Policy 4 could be more ambitious, that is, not only relying on the 
more ‘traditional’ economic activities related to the rural areas. There should be reference to 
the other economic activities which are prevalent and growing in the rural area such as 
science and technology. On the whole it is considered that the rural and more marginal 
areas of Wales do not receive sufficient representation in the NDF. These areas are sub 
regionally very important, as areas where people live and work. It is vitally important that 
these areas provide opportunities to access housing, high quality (well paid) employment, 
access to services, transport and digital infrastructure and how this will be delivered should 
be outlined in the NDF.   
Reference should be made to the Welsh Government designated Enterprise Zones in the 
rural areas and the aims for these. There is little mention of the Enterprise Zones anywhere 
within the NDF. It is welcomed that the NDF recognises that rural areas can be quite 
different to one another depending on their proximity to major urban centres. It will be 
important, therefore that the definition of what is rural for Development Management 
purposes is made in the Local Development Plans not the Strategic Development Plans due 
to the difference in rural locations across these regional areas.

Page 148



2. Affordable Housing (policy 5)

The NDF sets out the approach for providing affordable housing, encouraging local 
authorities, social landlords, and small and medium-sized construction and building 
enterprises to build more homes. 

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the approach to increasing 
affordable housing?

Strongly 
agree Agree

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

Don’t 
know

No 
opinion

x

 If you disagree, in what other ways can the NDF approach the delivery of 
affordable housing?

The delivery of affordable housing is an objective for most, if not all LDPs in Wales in 
accordance with National Guidance. Whilst we do not disagree with Policy 5 on delivering 
affordable housing, some authorities no longer have any land which is appropriate for 
housing in their ownership. Therefore utilising it to deliver affordable homes will not be 
possible. In times when public funding is low and budgets are being cut, Local Authorities 
who do have land in their ownership may be looking to maximise the land value on these 
sites. When considering small and medium sized construction and building enterprises they 
will be focussed on the viability of projects. Viability is an important consideration when 
considering the delivery of affordable housing and may have implications for local authorities 
when trying to identify sites for affordable housing led developments, as well as for 
construction businesses in bringing schemes forward. Those Local Authorities who do not 
have land within their portfolios for the delivery of affordable housing should not be penalised 
and funding should still be allocated for the delivery of affordable housing in their areas 
through other means, such as in partnership with RSLs. 

What does this mean?  - ‘To address this we will support a more balanced approach with 
local authorities, registered social landlords and Small and Medium sized construction and 
building enterprises encouraged to build more homes' ? 

Page 30 Delivering Affordable homes 
Reference to the need of on average 47% of additional homes to be affordable housing for 
the 5 year period 2018/19 to 2022/23. However it does not have regard to the impact of 
viability on market sites and that on average it is unlikely that a level of 47% affordable 
provision will be achieved in the majority of sites in rural locations throughout Wales.  

3. Mobile Action Zones (policy 6)

 To what extent do you agree or disagree the identification of mobile action zones 
will be effective in encouraging better mobile coverage? 

Strongly 
agree Agree

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

Don’t 
know

No 
opinion

x

Page 149



 If you disagree, in what other ways can the NDF improve mobile phone coverage 
in the areas which currently have limited access?

This policy is supported.  Ensuring that all parts of Wales, including rural areas, are 
supported by the telecommunications infrastructure, is welcomed.   When will the Mobile 
Action Zones be identified by Welsh Government?  

However, Policy 6 needs to be extended beyond mobile phones - reference needed to 
broadband and internet infrastructure also. Mobile Action Zones will be a long / middle term 
intervention; therefore, should the policy be more long-term? 

4. Low Emission Vehicles (policy 7)

 To what extent do you agree or disagree that policy 7 will enable and encourage 
the roll-out of charging infrastructure for ultra-low emission vehicles?

Strongly 
agree Agree

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

Don’t 
know

No 
opinion

x

 If you disagree, in what other ways can the NDF enable and encourage the roll-
out of charging infrastructure for ultra-low emission vehicles?

The objectives of this policy is supported.

5. Green Infrastructure (policies 8 & 9)

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the approach to maintaining and 
enhancing biodiversity and ecological networks?

Strongly 
agree Agree

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

Don’t 
know

No 
opinion

x

P8 - The enhancement of biodiversity and the resilience of ecosystems is welcomed. 
However, who are the key partners that will identify the areas which could be safeguarded as 
ecological networks? Will these be identified in partnership with the Local Authorities? Will 
these areas be subject to public consultation before being finalised and what resource 
implications would the be for Local Authorities to administrate / manage these networks? As it 
stands this policy is extremely open ended and due the areas not having been identified yet, 
it is difficult to comment in full. Does reference need to be made to Ash die back (and other 
such issues of national importance)  in the NDF which is a national issue which will have 
implications for the whole of Wales. 

Page 150



P 9 - As with Policy 8 above, given the lack of detail on the areas under consideration it is 
difficult to provide detailed comments on this policy. Will the delivery sites be identified in 
consultation with local authorities and other relevant key partners? When will they be 
identified and will they be subject to public consultation before being finalised?

6. Renewable Energy and District Heat Networks (policies 10-15)

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the NDF’s policies to lower carbon 
emissions in Wales using…

Strongly 
agree Agree

Neither 
agree 

nor 
disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

Don’t 
know

No 
opinion

Large scale 
wind and 
solar 
developments

x

District heat 
networks

x

  If you disagree with the NDF’s approaches to green infrastructure, renewable 
energy or district heat networks, what alternative approaches should we consider 
to help Wales to enhance its biodiversity and transition to a low carbon 
economy?

General Points 
From a linguistic perspective there is a large number of renewable energy schemes, in 
particular community-run hydro schemes, which therefore make a direct contribution to 
creating prosperous communities and to the well-being of the community - and very often to 
the Welsh language.   

No reference is made in this section to linguistic benefits, and the table on page 70 does not 
show that any relationship is seen between energy policy and the Welsh language.   

Consideration should be given to obtaining a national policy for nuclear energy as well as 
renewable energy.

Page 36 Renewable Energy (locally owned) - Reference is made to one gigawatt of 
renewable energy consumption to be generated from renewable energy locally owned and 
for renewable energy projects to have at least an element of local ownership by 2020.
While local ownership is welcomed, it is felt that further clarification should be included within 
the NDF over what is defined as local ownership of a scheme to ensure that it complies with 
this target or a link to a specific document if this is available elsewhere.

Page 151



Page 36 Renewable Energy (grid infrastructure) - Reference is made to the priority areas 
providing a critical mass of new renewable developments together to build the case for new 
or reinforced grid infrastructure. 
It is unclear whether the NDF has undertaken any analysis of the current capacity serving 
the priority areas identified. This could have an impact over the level of additional 
infrastructure required and this additional infrastructure could impact upon high value 
environmental designations outside the priority area e.g. new grid connections on Anglesey. 
Page 38 - States that further guidance will be produced to assist in the development 
process. It is unclear the scope, timescale and who will produce this guidance.

P 10 - No specific reference is made within the policy over an element of local ownership 
with such proposals. Whilst they state that applications must demonstrate how local social, 
economic and environmental benefits have been maximised it is felt that this is not explicit 
enough that local ownership is sought with such proposals.  This needs to be more clear to 
reflect the local ownership statement on page 36 (see above comments).

Due to the potential scale of wind turbines the policies should also include reference to the 
appropriateness of the highway network to accommodate the proposed development and 
not simply refer to suitable access to the site.

Policy 10 also notes that there is an acceptance of landscape change in these areas, this 
appears to contradict page 48 which outlines that the North West has an area of high 
landscape quality, how then has the NDF come to the conclusion that landscape change is 
acceptable here on such a scale. In addition Policy 10 outlines that Planning applications 
must demonstrate how ‘the following adverse impacts have been minimised’…this includes 
‘landscape and visual impacts, cumulative impacts and the setting of National Parks and 
Areas of outstanding Natural beauty’. There is an area of outstanding natural beauty 
surrounding the Isle of Anglesey, has an assessment of the impacts the developments 
proposed through the NDF could impact this AONB.  

Page 42 Wales Energy Priority Areas 

The National Grid as part of the Wylfa Newydd project undertook work to identify a preferred 
route for a new overhead line grid connection. Their identified preferred route was the 
orange route which passes through a large part of the identified Solar and Wind Energy 
priority area identified on Anglesey. The National Grid withdrew their application in light of 
Horizon delaying the Wylfa Newydd project although the decision in relation to the 
Development Consent order will be announced in October. This could result in the site 
having permission for development in the near future. Has any consideration been given 
towards the proposed priority area on Anglesey sterilising the previously identified preferred 
route for the grid connection to the Wylfa Newydd project?

The supporting evidence which outlines the Stage 1 and Stage 2 work to identify the Priority 
Areas states that this was a high level desktop review. The Development Plan Policies in 
recently adopted LDPs (or Joint LDP) provides justification over the size of wind turbines / 
solar farms that can be accommodated having regard to a Landscape Sensitivity and 
Capacity Study. It is understood that NRW are undertaking work to produce National 
Guidance in relation to this matter.

The work undertaken by ARUP has identified broad areas considered to be of greatest 
opportunity and that wider matters at site-specific level will need to be considered in the 
context of more detailed planning as sites come forward. It is felt however that the current 
wording of the policy does not reflect that these are areas of greatest opportunity with site-
specific issues to be satisfied for proposals to be supported.   

Page 152



It seems that one of the Special Landscape Areas identified within the Anglesey & Gwynedd 
Joint LDP falls within the Anglesey Priority Area. Such areas are supported by a Statement 
of Value and Significance which clearly set out how each area meets the criteria for 
designation, and include a set of ‘special qualities’ that underpin the designation. Any 
development proposals within the SLA will need to take account of its special qualities. It is 
felt that this should also be reflected within the NDF.  Given the robust evidence on which 
the recently adopted Gwynedd and Anglesey LDP – it is difficult to see how the proposed 
designations in the NDF, which appear to undermine the LDP, are justified and what 
evidence there is to support this.

Consideration needs to be given towards the impact of development on the setting of the 
National Park and the AONB. Part of  Priority Area 1 is in close proximity to the AONB in the 
North of Anglesey.
    
P12 - Welcome the sentence which outlines that proposals close to the boundaries of the 
AONB must demonstrate that the development will not undermine the objectives that 
underpin the purposes of the designation, how does this fit with Policy 10?

P13 - If the criterion in Policy 11 are to be followed is there any need for a separate policy. 
When will be energy atlas be produced and who will prepare this? Will be subject to public 
consultation before being finalised?

7. The Regions (policy 16)
 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the principle of developing 

Strategic Development Plans prepared at a regional scale?

Strongly 
agree Agree

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

Don’t 
know

No 
opinion

x

4.4 The NDF identifies three overall regions of Wales, each with their own distinct 
opportunities and challenges. These are North Wales, Mid and South West Wales, 
and South East Wales. 

8. North Wales (policies 17-22)

4.5 We have identified Wrexham and Deeside as the main focus of development in 
North Wales.  A new green belt will be created to manage the form of growth.  A 
number of coastal towns are identified as having key regional roles, while we 
support growth and development at Holyhead Port.  We will support improved 
transport infrastructure in the region, including a North Wales Metro, and support 
better connectivity with England.  North West Wales is recognised as having 
potential to supply low-carbon energy on a strategic scale.

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposed policies and 
approach for the North Region?

Page 153



Strongly 
agree Agree

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

Don’t 
know

No 
opinion

x

9. Mid and South West Wales (policies 23-26)

4.6 Swansea Bay and Llanelli is the main urban area within the region and is our 
preferred location for growth.  We also identify a number of rural and market towns, 
and the four Haven Towns in Pembrokeshire, as being regionally important.  The 
haven Waterway is nationally important and its development is supported.  We 
support proposals for a Swansea Bay Metro.

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposed policies and 
approach for the Mid and South West Region?

Strongly 
agree Agree

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

Don’t 
know

No 
opinion

x

11. South East Wales (policies 27-33)

4.7 In South East Wales we are proposing to enhance Cardiff’s role as the capital and 
secure more sustainable growth in Newport and the Valleys. A green belt around 
Newport and eastern parts of the region will support the spatial strategy and focus 
development on existing cities and towns. Transport Orientated Development, using 
locations benefitting from mainline railway and Metro stations, will shape the 
approach to development across the region.  There is support for the growth and 
development of Cardiff Airport.

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposed policies and 
approach for the South East Region?

Strongly 
agree Agree

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

Don’t 
know

No 
opinion

x

4.8 If you have any comments about the NDF’s approach or policies to the three 
regions, please tell us. If you have any alternatives, please explain them and tell us 
why you think they would be better. 

The North Wales Region – General Points:

The Regions
Given that vast areas of the North Wales (and Wales as whole) region can be considered as 
rural, a policy which  relates to rural areas is appropriate, outlining how these areas can be 

Page 154



supported to ensure that they thrive and can provide for the needs of these areas in terms of 
Housing, Employment, access to services, sustainable transport and digital infrastructure. 

Page 48 - The facts included on the diagram are useful but some kind of context is needed 
for these figures, for example, what is the significance of the fact that there are 200,000 
Welsh speakers in the area?  It is noted on the map that West Wales is an area of high 
landscape and environmental quality, it is assumed that the area of the whole region 
includes areas of high landscape quality, including the Clwydian Hills and Dee Valley AONB.  
More of a rural nature than a hinterland - the Welsh description is better, hinterland again 
suggests that they are on the outskirts of urban areas. 

No reference to Anglesey Enterprise Zone or Snowdonia Enterprise Zone which are Welsh 
Government designations and how the Government objectives about the Enterprise Zones 
will be delivered.  In that respect, it is important to ensure that there is a specific reference to 
Snowdonia Aerospace Centre (Llanbedr Airfield) as a National asset.   

There is no reference to how the rest of the North Wales can be supported to benefit from 
the growth of Wrexham and Deeside (the majority of the attention is focused over the 
border...) 

Priorities should ensure that the most peripheral area are treated fairly, e.g. in the provision 
of digital infrastructure, access to jobs, housing, etc.

Page 50 - What does the square symbol on Holyhead represent?  It is not included in the 
key - port?  Anglesey Airport is shown on the map but there is no reference in the text.  As it 
is an important link between north and south Wales, this needs to be reflected in the 
document.   

Why is Holyhead not a 'Regional Growth Centre'?  Holyhead's connections by road, train, 
port and air (within a reasonably close distance) means that there are opportunities for 
Holyhead to be a 'Regional Growth Centre'.  Similar settlements in other parts of Wales, 
such as Milford Haven and Pembroke are identified as Regional Growth Centres. It is 
considered that Holyhead merits the same status.  
Para 6 on page 52 refers specifically to the 'Advance Manufacturing Research Centre', it is 
unclear why there is only reference to this but not to other schemes which are as significant.

P 16 – There is some concern that certain more rural areas which do not have national 
growth could be overlooked within Strategic Development Plans. When developing Strategic 
Development Plans will further funding be available for Local Authorities? What happens in 
regions where some Local Authorities don’t currently have an adopted Local Development 
Plan, or in areas where the timetable of plan revisions are significantly out of sync? It is 
recognised that the NDF states that SDPs are shaped by the Welsh Government’s regional 
Economic Development Plans and City and Growth deals has the NDF been informed by 
these? The document states that the WG requires SDP to come forward in each of the three 
regions to deliver the requirements of this policy. However the third paragraph under the 
Policy states that LPAs should determine the geographical footprints of the SDP. The last 
paragraph on page 10 states that the SDP should cover regional or sub-regional scales. In 
addition the foreword by Julie James AM states that LPAs are encouraged to move ahead 
with developing SDPs. It is unclear therefore whether an SDP has to cover the whole region 
or whether they should rather be focussed on a sub-regional basis e.g. areas identified as 
being National Growth Area? This needs to be made clearer within the Framework.  A Joint 
Local Development Plan has been prepared for the Gwynedd and Anglesey LPAs and this 
plan is currently the only example of a joint plan in Wales. The plan is a strategic one for the 
sub-region which has considered issues for both counties and wider impacts / planning 
issues.

Page 155



P17 - Support the principle of ensuring that Wrexham and Deeside are supported, but do not  
support the concept that this should be the focus for economic growth, the provision of 
services and facilities, transport and digital infrastructure - this is important for the entire 
region  .

P18 - When developing this policy have the aims an objectives of the North Wales Growth 
bid been taken into consideration? The fact that settlements on the Isle of Anglesey have 
been omitted from the growth arc suggests that it has not. Large schemes have been 
outlined in the North Wales Growth Bid (Morlais for instance) for the Island and therefore it is 
considered that housing and key services will need to be provided as outlined in Policy 18 on 
the Island too.  

It is stated that the central estimate for the North Wales Region stands at 19,400 additional 
homes up to 2038 with 51% of these being for affordable dwellings over the next 5 years. It 
is stated that these estimates provide part of the evidence and context on which Housing 
Requirements for SDP can be based. Planning Policy Wales (PPW) in paragraph 4.2.6 
states that the Household Projections together with the LHMA and Well-being plan for a plan 
area will form a fundamental part of the evidence base for development plans; in addition it 
is stated that these should be considered with other key evidence in relation to issues such 
as what is the Plan seeking to achieve. 

The reference to 114,000 additional homes up to 2038 in the central estimate for the whole 
of Wales on page 30 is not as explicit in that this will be part of the growth level expected 
over the NDF period.  A review of the past build rate seen within the 7 North Wales Planning 
Authority reveals an annual build rate of approximately 1,700 units per annum (see Appendix 
1). This would equate to a growth level of approximately 34,000 over the next 20 years.  The 
latest figures within adopted development plans for the 7 North Wales Planning Authority 
indicate a build rate of approximately 2,340 units per annum (see appendix 2). This would 
equate to a growth level of approximately 46,800 over the next 20 years. The Framework 
needs to be clearer what is the meaning of the figure 19,400 within the NDF for the North 
Wales region. If this is a starting point then this needs to be stated throughout the document 
otherwise objector’s seeking a lower growth level could well use this figure to object to 
alternative figures within SDP / LDPs.  It is unclear what the evidence base is for the number 
of additional homes referred to and it is suggested that no figure is provided unless it is 
based on robust evidence. If a housing need “target” is required on a regional basis – should 
this evolve through the SDP process? 

P20 and P21 
The fact there is a policy for the port of Holyhead which outlines its importance as a strategic 
gateway further supports the argument that Holyhead should be included as a regionally 
important Centre and should also be included in Policy 18 as an area for managed growth. 

What about the third bridge over the Menai Straits? There is no reference to this in the 
document at all, it has been the subject of a public consultation and a statement on the 
Government's website suggests a start date of 2020/2021 and a completion date of 
2022/2023.  The statement also highlights that the A55 has local, national and international 
importance.  This is the main economic route for North Wales and it is a part of the Euro 22 
route on the European roads network - as it is a development of national significance it is 
considered important for it to be referenced in the document.  It is important to have better 
connections between north and south Wales, in order to maximise opportunities and ensure 
better access to the south-east, and not just focus on connections to north-west England.

P22 Through this policy, is the NDF promoting/favouring renewable energy over non-
renewable energy? If so how does this effect the proposals for Wylfa Newydd? There are 
policies in the Gwynedd and Ynys Môn Joint Local Development Plan which relate 

Page 156



specifically to development at Wylfa Newydd. Is Policy 22 specifically related to Nuclear/low 
carbon energy generation? If so should this be explicit here, rather than using the 
terminology non-renewable energy generation in order to provide clarity. 

Trawsfynydd is recognised nationally as a site for small nuclear reactors and the text in 
paragraph 4 of page 54 should be amended to reflect this.

Attention to the Welsh language: 
It is disappointing that so little attention is given to the language in these sections, and only 
one repeated sentence appears under the sub-heading, "The Welsh Language".  

The Government should be setting a clear vision throughout this document of what local 
authorities and regional plans should act upon in terms of planning and economic 
development in order to strengthen the situation of the Welsh language and contribute to the 
million speakers they have set as a target with Cymraeg 2050.   
The fact that a number of the regional policies are being noted as ones with an intention to 
realise the outcome of creating "places where the Welsh language is thriving" on the table 
on page 70 is very contentious.   

The Welsh language should be a consideration in any plans relating to creating jobs and 
community prosperity.  

There is also a need to be cautious that the language does not appear in connection with 
rural areas only.   

In terms of the regional plans of North Wales, great emphasis is placed on developments in 
the Wrexham and North West area, and there is a need to be careful of the impact this has 
on the Welsh language as there is a very different context to the language in the community 
and socially across North Wales.

12. Integrated Sustainability Appraisal

4.9 As part of the consultation process, an Integrated Sustainability Appraisal (ISA) 
was conducted to assess the social, economic and environmental impacts of a 
plan. The report identified a number of monitoring indicators, including health, 
equalities, Welsh language, the impact on rural communities, children’s rights, 
climate change and economic development. 

 Do you have any comments on the findings of the Integrated Sustainability 
Appraisal Report?  Please outline any further alternative monitoring indicators 
you consider would strengthen the ISA.

Note that the assessment of the NDF's impact on the Welsh language has been included 
within the Integrated Sustainability Appraisal.  Due to the importance of the Welsh language 
and the target of increasing the number of speakers to a million by 2050, the NDF should be 
supported by the Impact Assessment on the Welsh Language outside the Integrated 
Sustainability Appraisal.

13. Habitats Regulations Assessment

4.10 As part of the development of the NDF, a Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) 
was undertaken. The purpose of the HRA process is to identify, assess and 

Page 157



address any ‘significant effects’ of the plan on sites such as Special Areas of 
Conservation and Special Protection Areas for birds. 

 Do you have any comments on the Habitats Regulations Assessment report?

No comments

14. Welsh Language

4.11 We would like to know your views on the effects that the NDF would have on the 
Welsh language, specifically on opportunities for people to use Welsh and on 
treating the Welsh language no less favourably than English. 

 What effects do you think there would be?  How could positive effects be 
increased, or negative effects be mitigated? 

This is addressed in some of the previous questions. 
Considering that economic development and community regeneration is integral to linguistic 
prosperity, we are very disappointed to see the insufficient consideration given on a national 
level to the impact on the Welsh language or on the opportunities to increase the use of the 
Welsh language in the NDF.  

The NDF is a very important planning document and the Welsh language is a matter of 
national importance.  A document on such a strategic level by Government should show 
guidance and set ambitious aims and push the authorities and regions to do more.   It is not 
at all clear from this document what the Government wishes to see.

4.12 Please also explain how you believe the proposed NDF could be formulated or 
changed so as to have:

I. positive effects or increased positive effects on opportunities for people to use 
the Welsh language and on treating the Welsh language no less favourably than 
the English language, and 

II. no adverse effects on opportunities for people to use the Welsh language and on 
treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language. 

The impact on the Welsh language and the need to consider how the plans work in favour of 
the Welsh language must be highlighted through the entire document in order to ensure that 
there is a relationship between each change and policy in the NDF and a positive impact on 
the language and community well-being.   It does not make sense, for example, that policy 
20 on the chart on page 70-17 notes a relationship with the Welsh language, but not policy 
21.  Any plans that look at mobility and economic advantages is likely to have a linguistic 
impact. 
Much more than 13 out of 33 policies should aim to obtain outcomes that lead to the 
prosperity of the Welsh language.  

It is completely unacceptable that the Government is considering that it should not be aimed 
to realise the outcome with the policies relating to Newport and the Heads of the Valleys.    
This does not set an expectation for the regions for those areas where there is a genuine 
need to give strategic consideration to the Welsh language.  How can you talk about 
regeneration activity and improving well-being without also talking about the Welsh 

Page 158



language?  Perhaps the majority of the population in these areas are not Welsh speakers, 
but this does not mean that no well-being needs associated with the Welsh language exist.  

There is a risk of discriminating against the Welsh speakers (i.e. affect their right to use the 
Welsh language) and treating the Welsh language less favourably than English unless the 
Welsh language is a core consideration of any regeneration, well-being and economic plans.  

The Government should carefully consider its role in setting the correct vision and ambition, 
and make changes to the Framework that challenge and push everyone to go further than 
what they currently do.  Referring to the Welsh language in one brief sentence in every 
region, rather than having it permeate through the economic plans, gives regions and 
authorities too much room to neglect their responsibility to work in favour of the Welsh 
language.  

It must be ensured that the Welsh language is not just a priority in those areas "where Welsh 
is the everyday language of the community". 
The wording of Outcome 4 on page 20 is weak and there is a risk for the Welsh language to 
be portrayed as something historical (see wording of page 12) to protect, rather than as a 
means of communication that should be used and developed.  The wording is too vague, 
and there is a risk that the various definitions of "everyday language" will lead to a lack of 
action, instead of triggering development.

15. Further comments

 Are there any further comments that you would like to make on the NDF, or any 
alternative proposals you feel we should consider? 

See below the Council's General Points  

Part 2 Page 12  
Page 12: The final sentence refers to the fact that people in north-west and west Wales 
continue to live their everyday lives through the medium of Welsh.  There are communities in 
all parts of Wales where Welsh is a living language and where the population live their lives 
in Welsh.  Believe that this paragraph can be re-worded.  
 Welcome the concept of establishing the NDF as a method of aligning efforts to increase 

prosperity and reduce differences across, and within regions - but they need to be 
reinforced. Suggest the need for further emphasis on the role of the NDF as a proactive 
tool to enable the distribution of growth (and prosperity) and the importance of ensuring 
that this is the priority for public spending 

 Welcome the concept of establishing the NDF, SDPs and LDPs, but note that it is 
unclear how the development of the SDPs is being led and who / how / when it must be 
prepared 

 Welcome the direction to working alongside the Regional Economic Development Plans 
but note that the regions and local areas have had input into the documents to date and 
that thre is a need to be clear how these will sit alongside the strategies that the regions 
are preparing (i.e. NWEAB in our case) 

 Note uncertainty regarding how the three Welsh Government regions tie-in with the four 
economic regions established by Local Government through the City & Growth Deals 
(suggest that Welsh Government should adopt the same system) 

 Note the importance of ensuring that settlements (large and small) are sustainable and 
pleasant places to live and work

Page 159



 Suggest the need to refer to low carbon energy, not renewable, in the general sections of 
the document  

 Is there a need for further emphasis on ensuring economic prosperity in the language's 
strongholds (bearing in mind that these areas are outside the locations suggested as a 
priority) 

 When referring to digital connectivity, reference should be made to broadband, mobile  
and internet  in all cases

 Page 14 - reference should be made to quarries as well as coal mines 
 Not much reference to rural in the context of North Wales - this has been restricted to 

Mid Wales...

16. Are you...?

Providing your own personal response

Submitting a response on behalf of an organisation

  

Responses to the consultation will be shared with the National 
Assembly for Wales and are likely to be made public, on the 
internet or in a report.  If you would prefer your response to 
remain anonymous, please tick here

Appendix 1 – Past Build Rate for North Wales Planning Authority

Planning 
Authority

Published JHLAS 
Used

Total 
Completions

Annual Average 
Completions

Anglesey & 
Gwynedd Planning 
Area

2015 to 2019 2,140 428

Snowdonia 
National Park

2014 to 2018 152 30.4

Conwy 2014 to 2018 1,293 258.6

Denbighshire 2015 to 2019 804 160.8
Flintshire 2014 to 2018 2,866 573.2
Wrexham 2014 to 2017 977 244.25
TOTALS - 8,232 1,695.25

Appendix 2 – Build Rate within Adopted LDP / UDPs in North Wales

Page 160



Planning 
Authority

Plan & Period Overall Growth 
Level

Level Per Annum

Anglesey & 
Gwynedd Planning 
Area

Joint LDP
2011 to 2026

7,184 479

Conwy LDP
2007 to 2022

6,520 434.6

Denbighshire LDP
2006 to 2021

7,500 500

Snowdonia 
National Park

LDP
2016 to 2031

770 51.3

Flintshire UDP
2000 to 2015

7,400 493.3

Wrexham UDP 
1996 to 2011

5,775 385

TOTALS - 35,149 2,343.2

Page 161



Appendix 2 – Spatial Strategy Map 

Page 162



Appendix 3 – North Wales Regional Map 

Page 163


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 15 OCTOBER 2019
	6 YSGOL LLANAELHAEARN
	Item 6 - Appendix A - Ysgol Llanaelhaearn
	Item 6 - Appendix B - Impact Assessments Pack
	Item 6 - Appendix C
	Item 6 - Appendix Ch - Ysgol Llanaelhaearn

	7 GWYNEDD COUNCIL STAFF TRAVEL SAVINGS
	8 NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK CONSULTATION



